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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERH®RE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

For and on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”, each a “Director”) of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s 2018 audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to RMB96.1 million (2017: RMB90.5 million), an increase
of 6.2% as compared to 2017. This was mainly due to (i) the growth
in property management business revenue from RMB910.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB948.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of RMB37.4
million, or 4.1%; and (ii) the growth in other services from RMB23.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB33.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of
RMB9.8 million, or 41.9%.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK2.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 5.0 cents) to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 6 June 2019, making the
total dividend payment of approximately HK$20.4 million.

OPERATION REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management company
in China. In 2018, the Group was rated among the Best 10 of
property management enterprises in China in terms of the overall
strength by FRIEHE %1€ (China Real Estate Association*), /&
SEEMENFTFT (Shanghai E-house China R&D Institute®) and A
= b2 BIEE A 0 (China Real Estate Appraisal Centre®).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had expanded its presence to
43 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 570
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 70.5 million square meters (“sg.m.”). This represented an
increase of 5.7% compared to the aggregate contracted GFA of 66.7
million sg.m. as of 31 December 2017. In relation to the delivered
GFA of 56.9 million sg.m. in 2018, the increase represented a growth
of 4.2% compared to the delivered GFA of 54.6 million sq.m. as at 31
December 2017.

In 2018, the Group further acquired 7.5% equity interest in AT KA
YEEIEHBR AR (Zhejiang Yongcheng Property Management
Company Limited*) (“Yongcheng”) at total consideration in form of
cash of RMB22.5 million. Upon completion of the further acquisition,
the Group holds 85% of the registered capital of Yongcheng. Those
acquisition provided a stable and healthy growth of the Group’s
business.

In December 2018, the Group successfully acquired 75% equity
interest of MMEZRZMEEIEEFR A A (Hangzhou Anjia Property
Management Company Limited*) (‘Hangzhou Anjia”), which is a state-
owned enterprise, at a consideration of RMB18.1 million.

On 26 February 2019, the Group entered into the capital injection
agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to make a capital
injection in total amount of RMB56.3 million into &M T ¥EREEY
¥R BPR AT (Suzhou Industrial Park House Construction Property
Development Company Limited®) (“Suzhou House Construction”),
which is a state-owned enterprise, and subscribe for 66% of the
enlarged registered capital in Suzhou House Construction.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREWmE

It is expected that () the introduction of the Group as a strategic
investor of both Hangzhou Anjia and Suzhou House Construction will
have positive effect to the profit and growth of Hangzhou Anjia and
Suzhou House Construction; (i) the investment in Hangzhou Anjia
and Suzhou House Construction and with their respective state-
owned enterprise background will enhance the exploration and
development of new business of the Group. It will also enhance the
Group’s exposure, experience and reputation in the market as well as
the overall competitiveness of the Group for property management
projects in the future; and (iii) it will provide the Group with investment
opportunities to broaden its income stream, increase the reserved
area for the property management services business of the Group,
further enhance the value of the Group and maximise the returns to
the Shareholders.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain its own
advantage as an independent property management company,
competing with counterparts in the market by its high quality service
and operation efficiency, actively establishing stable partnership with
leading property developers in all regions, exploring potential new
development projects and pursuing properties which have owners’
association been established. When right opportunities arise, the
Group will accelerate its expansion of business scope and coverage
in China through acquisition of property management companies and
other service companies which provide services related to
communities.

In addition, we will closely persist in the philosophy of stable
development by gradually expanding the upstream and downstream
industry chain, as well as strategically realigning our industry foothold.
On the one hand, we expect to penetrate into the first-hand and
second-hand agency services, while further advancing the
downstream sector of the industry chain by acquiring firms
specialized in cleaning and landscaping maintenance. In the next few
years, we will gradually ride on our strength to extend our reach along
the upstream and downstream of the industry chain with a focus on
property management. In doing so, the Company will ultimately
evolve into an integrated operator offering the whole-industry
community services.

6 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
every shareholder and business partner for their constant support
and trust of the Group, and also to every employee for their hard
work and contribution to the Group over last year. In the coming year,
the Group will continue its active expansion of business and enhance
its property management service quality, so as to bring a better, more
enjoyable and more satisfying experience for home life to residents.
With the continuous efforts of the Group, | believe that the Group will
bring good returns to its shareholders in the long term.

Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M=

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLFE

2018 2017

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change

AR®T ARBTT &
Revenue W25 1,023,011 977,552 4.7%
Gross profit EH 282,105 296,837 -5.0%
Profit for the year FRFE 106,950 99,288 7.7%
Profit attributable to owners SRR ARG FE

of the parent 96,088 90,549 6.1%
Gross profit margin (%) FEFZEK (%) 27.6% 30.4% -2.8pp
Net profit margin (%) HHFE (%) 10.5% 10.2% 0.3pp
Basic earnings per share (RVB) BRERNZF (AL T) 0.119 0.113 5.3%
Final dividend per share (HK$) BRARERE (ET) 0.025 0.05 -50.0%

8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBHE
REVENUE GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS
Y= PROFIT MARGIN
(RMB milion) EMNRERNZE
(ARBEER) (RMB million/%)
1,023.0 (ARBEETT/%)
9776 0.3 33.2
23.1 41.5
432 SO
27.6
24.7
296.8
282.1
635.1 8.2
11.8
55.7
948.3
911.0
156.7
559.4
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
B Property management [ 020 business income
services O20FEBWA
MEEE RS
B Sale assistance [ Other services and
services sales of goods
iEEES HAib R RIHE S
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY i
AATEEAEEFE(EE)
(RMB million)
(ARBEER)
96.1
90.5
(6.4)
2016 2017 2018
FREREEERAT 9
2018 F 3R



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M54 2

TOTAL ASSETS TOTAL EQUITY
EEHRE A
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEER) (AREBETT)
606.0
1,341.2 546.7
1,236.4
1,116.2 | | 443.4 |
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
(Restated) (Restated)
(£«<E§|J) (%ﬁi 5‘])
TOTAL CONTRACTED GFA AVERAGE PRICE OF PROPERTY
BENEBERER MANAGEMENT SERVICE
(million sg.m.) V¥ EEREEHEHR
(BBFHK) (RMB/sq.m./month)
(AR¥E/FEFAK/A)
70.5 1.76 1.81 g2l
66.7
60.0 13.6
12.2
15.4
56.9
54.5
44.6
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
I Delivered GFA B Undelivered GFA [ Average price per revenue-bearing GFA'
BREEER R REMEE Bt E RS REEEN T ER

Note:

1. Itis calculated as a weighted average of all the prices and fees specified on
the contracts that are generating revenue as of the end of each relevant year,

excludes management fees for parking lots.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management company
in China. In 2018, the Group was rated among the Best 10 of
property management enterprises in China in terms of the overall
strength by R EIEHIE %17 & (China Real Estate Association*), /&
S EEMENFTFT (Shanghai E-house China R&D Institute*) and A
B ERIFEH Ly (China Real Estate Appraisal Centre®). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had a total contracted gross floor area
(“GFA”) of 70.5 million square meters (“sq.m.”) where it was
contracted to manage 570 properties across 43 cities in China.

The Group main business line is property management business.
Under the property management business line, the Group is engaged
in the provision of property management services, sales assistance
services and other services.

Property management services

The Group primarily provides property developers and property
owners with a broad range of property management services to
mainly residential properties, commercial and government buildings.
Services provided by the Group include standard property
management services and also ancillary services such as cleaning,
gardening, security, repair and maintenance and butler services.
Through its butler services, the Group provides personalized and
premium property management services to residents with its trained
butlers onsite. While its primary and long-term business focus is on
the residential property market, the Group also provides services to
non-residential properties, including both stand-alone non-residential
properties and properties associated with residential properties, such
as schools and commercial buildings.

The Group believes that service quality is fundamental to establish a
solid foundation to support the growth of the Group’s business. The
Group holds various qualifications and licenses in respect of property
management services, namely ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001
and level one property management qualification certificate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

Sales assistance services

The Group provides property developers with sales assistance
services by deploying on-site staff at the sales centres to maintain the
conditions of the centres and provide timely assistance to facilitate
various aspects of the sales process. The Group generally continues
to service the property developer clients after the expiration of the
sales assistance contracts by entering into preliminary property
management contracts. Sales assistance serves as an important
source of business for the property management services.

Other services

This business line primarily consists of the provision of engineering,
catering services and the sales of engineering spare parts.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had expanded its presence to
43 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 570
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 70.5 million sg.m.. This represented an increase of 5.7%
compared to the aggregate contracted GFA of 66.7 million sg.m. as
at 31 December 2017. In relation to the delivered GFA of 56.9 million
sg.m. in 2018, the increase represented a growth of 4.2% compared
to the delivered GFA of 54.6 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2017.

The Group strives to develop new business relationships from the
existing customer base and own network in order to provide strong
organic growth to the Group. In addition to organic growth, the Group
continues to identify the right acquisition targets to strengthen its
portfolio and increase geographic presence across China.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

The Group will continue to strategically select markets to enter into,
focus on those with more developed economies and comparatively
high per capita GDP. Once the Group has established presence in a
new city, it seeks to expand its business within the same city or
neighboring cities with a view to maximizing its economies of scale.

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown of different
geographic areas where the Group has established presence for the
years indicated.

EIEE R T

I 5 5

AEEREERBENERAREENTS &
EREEREEAAIBRANEERERSHNMS
AEBEEFWTLER  EHEHRRA MK
T TNV TS - UBERAN RIS

TREBINARFEAREBEHAEN TR
F Yz BRAR

2018 2017

2018 5§ 2017 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Eastern and Central China HEH L EH 706,286 676,262
Southern China TR 252,648 235,479
Northern China ks 51 64,077 65,811
Total st 1,023,011 977,552
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Gl BETL

The map below illustrates the cities in which properties the Group  TEE R 2018E 12 A31 B AEFE AN EEH
was contracted to manage were located and the number of projects  #ZEMEM T RS MAEEEE -
in each city as at 31 December 2018.

°28

A B

>

M Eastern and Central China M Southern China Northern China Western China
ERRES £ i Eokis]

Eastern and Central China #XRR#H

1. Changde ®1E(1) 9. Jiaxing (1) 17.  Taizhou #&INQ)

2. Chongging EE(1) 10.  Nanchang & (1) 18.  Taizhou Z&IN(1)

3. Chuzhou &M (5) 11, Nantong F3E(13) 19.  Wenzhou &/M(8)

4. Hangzhou #iM (58) 12, Ningbo ZK (296) 20. Wuxi #E85(12)

5.  Heze SWIE(@) 13.  Quzhou M (5) 21.  Xuancheng EH.(5)
6. Huaian /% (2) 14.  Shanghai 78 (14) 22. Yueyang EF5(1)

7. Huanggang (1) 15.  Shaoxing #3%1(16) 23.  Zhenjiang $EIT(3)
8. Huzhou /M (20) 16.  Suzhou %M (8)

South China #®

24, Cenxi ZY£(5) 29. Huizhou M (2) 34. Wenchang X&(1)
25. Chongzuo 527 (1) 30. Jiangmen JTFI(1) 35. Wuzhou #B/M(4)
26. Foshan f#1L(20) 31. Nanning RI%(18) 36. Zhaoqging ZE(4)
27. Guangzhou &M (11) 32. Qingyuan J&ix(3) 37. Zhongshan m1L(2)
28. Guilin  FEM(1) 33. Sanya =iI5(9)

Northern China #dt

38. Baoding fR7E (1) 40. Beijing b= (3) 42. Eérduosi SBEEZHT(1)
39. Baotou B (4) 41, Dalian A3E(1)

Western China @
43. Lhasa HIfE(1)

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of contracted projects. Mzt © SR EIETHE B &E -
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The table below sets forth the delivered contracted GFA and the
number of properties under management as at the dates indicated.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B A £

DT

TREBIRFARARZERNENEEMELE
BHMEHE -

As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017
MA2018512A31H

R2017412 A 31 H

Sqg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FEHK £ 4= FFEAHK B

Residential properties FEYE

Eastern and Central China® ERLGFEHRO 34,664 252 33,450 239
Southern China® FEFO 12,818 55 12,414 56
Northern China® 31 2,054 6 1,861 6
Subtotal N3 49,536 313 47,725 301
Non-residential properties IEEYE 7,371 150 6,836 132
Total #st 56,907 463 54,561 433

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s contracted GFA of undelivered
properties amounted to approximately 13.6 million sg.m. (2017: 12.2

million sg.m.)

Notes:

B¥IK) -

GEE

(1) Including Changde, Chongging, Chuzhou, Hangzhou, Huaian, Huzhou, 1)
Jiaxing, Nanchang, Nantong, Ningbo, Quzhou, Shanghai, Shaoxing,
Suzhou, Taizhou, Taizhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuancheng and Zhenjiang.

) Including Cenxi, Foshan, Guangzhou, Guilin, Huizhou, Jiangmen, )

Nanning, Qingyuan, Sanya, Wuzhou, Zhaoging and Zhongshan.

Q) Including Baoding, Baotou, Beijing and Dalian.

BiERE -
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BRERE

B5E-
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1L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEE R AT

The Group will continue to expand its business through obtaining new 7K £= B 48 4% 42 3% 38 55 BT IR 78 = B2 1% Ui B H 4 i)
service engagements and acquisition of other property management % & B AT MIAREE - TRBIERNB A LE
companies. The table below indicates the movement of the total SEEERANEEZTNEENYESBEOES -
contracted GFA and the number of properties the Group was

contracted to manage during the year.

As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017

M20185F12H31H M2017E12 A31 A
Sqg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FRIFK 2B FEFK #E
As at beginning of period HA7]) 66,747 500 59,995 455
New engagements!”) RO 8,830 83 8,574 66
Acquisitions U & 2,140 27 258 3
Terminations® ®iEe (7,267) (40) (2,080) (24)
As at end of period HRZR 70,450 570 66,747 500
Notes: B =k -
(1) In relation to properties the Group manages, new engagements (1) BAEEMEENYENS  HZETEEED
primarily include service engagements for new constructions developed ¥URAHEENTAEERBEENRBZE - &
by property developers and service engagements for residential FEVEFRAEMESTERANREEE -

properties replacing their existing property management companies.

(2)  Including the contracted GFA and the number of properties the Group  (2) BEAEEITBEENYEANERZEA@ME
ceased to manage, which were primarily due to non-renewal of certain LEE  FEATEEETUESEARORER
property management contracts and mutual termination prior to PEEARNEMATEE &L
expiration for commercial reasons.

SALES ASSISTANCE SERVICES 1t 85 AR 75

The Group provides property developers with cleaning, security and NS A1 ¥ 5 2 B i R (R EE (7 M SH & AP O AY
maintenance of their model homes and sales centers and assists in =~ /B2 * REKRIRE © WiHBREYERHERBIE
facilitating the sale process of the properties. The sale assistance W RFELH— K A2H6eE=18EA - AEZ MR
service contracts generally have a duration of 6 to 18 months and ~ FI B & HAYER T @ "I fEfEm B BIATAR 1E o 1
could be terminated prior to the expiration date if all display units have 2018 4 [ 2017 & + AN &5 B (A 65 & K 66 &%)
been sold out. The Group provided sales assistance services to 65  EREFHIERE - FRE REZEMNE LIZREL
and 66 properties in 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Group can 1B #ERTS - RSB A FE L HEERBHERNLZEHY
enter into new property management contracts with most of the EEERIUFTVESELY -

property developers via this sales channel by demonstrating the

expertise and providing of quality sales assistance services.

~| 6 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER SERVICES

The Group provides installation, repairing and maintenance services
primarily to the elevators of the properties under management and
provides light-current engineering services to properties under
management. Engineering spare parts can be sold separately to other
elevator servicing companies. Also, the Group operates canteens in
the government buildings and provides catering services there.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group will continue to maintain its own advantage as an
independent property management company and compete with
counterparts in the market by its high quality service and operational
efficiency. The Group will actively establish stable partnership with
leading property developers in all regions and explore potential
projects under development. The Group will strive to develop new
business relationships from the existing customer base and own
network in order to provide strong organic growth to the Group. The
Group also targets to expand its portfolio of customers by pursuing
properties which have owners’ association been established.
Furthermore, when right opportunities arise, the Group will accelerate
its expansion by expanding its business scope and coverage in China
by means of acquisitions.

Pursuant to the terms of the Joint Venture Agreement entered
between the Group and the Vendors of T kK EEIRBRR A A
(Zhejiang Yongcheng Property Management Company Limited*)
(“Yongcheng”) on 26 July 2016, the Group will acquire the remaining
interests in Yongcheng in four tranches of 7.5% each at a price of
RMB22.5 million for each of the subsequent acquisition. Since the net
profit of Yongcheng for the financial years of 2016 and 2017 has met
the profit guarantee provision provided to the Group, the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with the vendors to purchase
two tranches of 7.5% of the registered capital of Yongcheng each at
a consideration of RMB22.5 million (the “Further Acquisition”) on 26
July 2017 and 22 June 2018 respectively.

Upon completion of the Further Acquisition, the Group holds 85% of
the registered capital of Yongcheng in which Yongcheng remains as
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results will continue to be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. The directors are of the view that the
Group’s increase in shareholding in Yongcheng will further
consolidate the profit base and provide a stable return of investments
to the shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

In December 2018, the Group successfully acquired 75% equity
interest of MMM % 53 E BB R 2 Rl(Hangzhou Anjia Property
Management Company Limited*) (‘Hangzhou Anijia”) from #iu/N i /B {E
[% 2R 0 A PR A |l (Hangzhou Residential Area Development Center
Company Limited*) , which is a state-owned enterprise, at a
consideration of RMB18.1 million. Hangzhou Anjia is a PRC property
management company located in Hangzhou with 27 properties and
approximately 2.1 million sq.m. of GFA under its management.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 February
2019, the Group entered into the Capital Injection Agreement
pursuant to which the Group agreed to make a capital injection in
total amount of RMB56.3 million into # /M T X E R ZEY X HRAMR
‘A7 (Suzhou Industrial Park House Construction Property
Development Company Limited”) (“Suzhou House Construction”) and
subscribe for 66% of the enlarged registered capital in Suzhou House
Construction. Suzhou House Construction is a PRC property
management company located in Suzhou with 30 properties and
approximately 3.7 million sg.m. of GFA under its management. Upon
the completion of Capital Injection, the Capital Injection Amount will
be applied by Suzhou House Construction as its working capital and
for its business development.

It is expected that () the introduction of the Group as a strategic
investor of both Hangzhou Anjia and Suzhou House Construction will
have positive effect to the profit and growth of Hangzhou Anjia and
Suzhou House Construction; (i) the investment in Hangzhou Anjia
and Suzhou House Construction and with their respective state-
owned enterprise background will enhance the exploration and
development of new business of the Group. It will also enhance the
Group’s exposure, experience and reputation in the market as well as
the overall competitiveness of the Group for property management
projects in the future; and (iii) it will provide the Group with investment
opportunities to broaden its income stream, increase the reserved
area for the property management services business of the Group,
further enhance the value of the Group and maximise the returns to
the Shareholders.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEE R T

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW BRI EEE
Revenue U &=

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded #HZ2018F 12 A31HILFERN  KAEBEEESW
revenue of RMB1,023.0 million, representing an increase of 4.7% I AR 1,023.0B & 7T © B2017FEMN4.7%
over the year 2017.

Breakdown of Revenue by business line and services REFEE N RIS E 2 #Y Uk 2= B8R 48

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A1BLEEE

2018 2017 Change
2018 2017 & &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARETR ARETRT ARETT %
Property management business VIES=RIES S
— Property management — MEEBRRS
services 948,343 910,941 37,402 41
— Sales assistance services — W EARTS 41,503 43,187 (1,684) -3.9
— Other services — HAM AR 33,165 23,424 9,741 41.6
Total st 1,023,011 977,552 45,459 4.7
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS MEEBEK

The Group’s property management business includes the provision of ~ANEBYEE R XKD BIRHMEESERYE - %
property management services, sales assistance services and other  $5ARIE A K EABARTS - KRB 2 MBI ¢
services. Details of analysis of each service are as follows:

Property management services Y EE R R

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB37.4  #12%& 1% RIS FT15 R ES 5 2017 F & I AR ¥ 37 .4
million or 4.1% over 2017 primarily due to organic growth in the HB&L%K4.1%  TERAAHARAEBERBFYE
Group’s existing property management services business as a result EREREEFALER AN T AHEER
of increase in the delivered contracted GFA by 2.3 million sg.m. A N2.3B5EF XK -

PRIAREEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

Sales assistance services

Revenue from the sales assistance services for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB41.5 million, comparing to RMB43.2 million
in 2017, representing a decrease of RMB1.7 million, or 3.9%. The
decrease in revenue from the sales assistance services was primarily
due to the decrease in the number of projects from 66 in 2017 to 65
in 2018 and the slightly decrease in average revenue of each project
from approximately RMB654,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB638,500 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Other services

Revenue from other services during the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB33.2 million (2017: RMB23.4 million). This service
primarily consists of the provision of engineering and catering
services, and the sales of engineering spare parts. The increase in
revenue of this service was mainly due to increase in the needs of
clients.

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The Group’s cost of sales and services for property management
business primarily comprise (i) sub-contracting costs, representing
the expenses paid to sub-contractors for various services under the
property management and sales assistance business lines; (ii) staff
costs; (iii) repair and maintenance expenses, and depreciation
expenses associated with equipment and property used in providing
services; and (iv) costs of other services such as salaries cost of the
technicians in the provision of elevator engineering services; costs of
the spare parts sold and operating costs in running the catering
services.

Cost of sales and services for the property management and sales
assistance services increased by 7.8% from RMB664.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB715.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase was primarily
due to (i) the increase in staff costs and sub-contracting costs were
mainly attributable to increase in the average salary of the employees
of the Group and workers of sub-contractors; (i) the increase in repair
and maintenance expenses were mainly attributable to improve the
living environment of the communities under the Group’s
management; and (iii) the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

20

{75 45 BR 7%

HZE2018F 12 A1 B IEFE  HERIEFTEIK
HAARKALSEET  R2017FMARK43.2
BETRIDAREAITEELH3.9% - HIERG
ks RLTIEEMRNIEE EE R2017F66
w2 = 2018 F W65 E A B E FHWKE B
HZE=2017F12A31 8 I F E 4 A R #654,000
TEMTBREHE2018F12A31BIEFEHA
R 638,500 JTLATEX °

H B 75

REZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE - BRI 2 I
H=AARKIB2HEIL(2017F : AR¥2348
B0  WIRBETZRERETIERENRS - A
NIEE TSI - WRBGR 2 WSEMHES
EARPFHIgM-

#HE R ARES AR

REBETYEEEESNHEERREXNAETE
BRODBEERAERYEEERBEEBRRETZ
ERBNFHREOAY) ()8 TAA : (i) i
HERESEANIERDEBANEE L GES
BARITERSY « & (v) EMARIEAA - fIa0iR 4
HEBTIERBTFORMABHFENS  HEST
B AN I 2 BB SR ARIS HO S B AN o

MEEEMBERBNEERBRBERNABEZE
201712 A1 HILFERNHARE664.0 8 &L
BN7.8%ZEEHE2018F 12 AT HEFEHAR
7155 B8T - BAEEMNEZERAA{)ETK
REDBEAEN  NTEARAEERELD
BETANFELEHESEN: ()EERREERY
m DEEERRERAEEEEMNLEETR
B Ri) A EEEBREREE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Costs of other services for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB25.5 million (2017: RMB16.7 million), which primarily consisted
of (i) salaries cost of the technicians in the provision of elevator
engineering services; (ii) costs of the spare parts sold; and (iii)
operating costs in running the catering services.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The tables below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margins by services for the years indicated:

EREHBEA

HZE2018F 12 AN HIEFE  HMREHKE A
ARB25HBL(2017F : ARB16.7TEH B
L) TEVRF()RHEARETERBEHEMAE
FHEMA () TET A : K (i) & EZ MR

EFMRERR
FRAFIAEEAFRERRBEEDOERR
ERE

For the year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31HLEE

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 F
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARET T HE% ARETT e %
Property management business EELE S
— Property management — YEERIRE
services 259,748 27.4 274,127 30.1
— Sales assistance services — RS 14,646 35.3 15,979 37.0
— Other services — Hib AR 7,711 23.3 6,731 28.7
Overall =g 282,105 27.6 296,837 30.4

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB282.1 million, comparing to RMB296.8 million in 2017,
representing a decrease of RMB14.7 million, or 5.0%. The Group’s
gross profit margin decrease from 30.4% for the year ended 31
December 2017 to 27.6% in 2018. The decrease was primarily due
to the net effect of (i) increased economies of scale as multiple
phases of the same properties were delivered and became revenue-
bearing; (i) termination of property management services to certain
residential properties as the profitability of these properties did not
meet the Group’s expectations; (iii) the increase in staff costs and
sub-contracting costs which were mainly attributable to increase in
the average salary of the employees of the Group and workers of
sub-contractors; and (iv) the increase in repair and maintenance
expenses were mainly attributable to improve the living environment
of the communities under the Group’s management.

HE2018F12A31HILEFE - AEEEFAA
REE2821F BT B2017F M A REE206.8H
ETURDAREA47HETHE.0% o AEBEF|
KHEFE2017F 12 A31 HIEFE K 30.4%EE
2018 FK)27.6% ° ML EEBERNIAT 2 F LM
B HEER —METR BT K ERREL
B REKFTERE (VR EETEFENT
FAEEEHNYETERY : (i) EIXARD
BRAEM  DEEHRTEEEERSBET
ABFHEHSEMN K (v EERREBREN -
DEZERRNEHAEREEMLEMETRIE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s other income and gains for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB30.8 million, comparing to RMB20.6 million in 2017,
representing an increase of RMB10.2 million, or 49.5%. The increase
was primarily due to (i) the increase in net exchange gain of RMB1.4
million; (i) the increase in bank interest income of RMB1.1 million; (iii)
the increase in gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of RMB2.8 million; (iv) the increase in gain on
disposal of a joint venture of RMB1.5 million; and (v) the increase in
rental income of RMB2.1 million.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB5.5 million, comparing to RMB6.4 million in
2017, representing a decrease of RMBO0.9 million, or 14.1%. The
decrease was primarily due to the Group impose cost control on
selling and marketing expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB151.1 million, comparing to RMB115.1
million in 2017, representing an increase of RMB36.0 million, or
31.3%. The increase was primarily due to the net effect of (i) the
reversal of share-based payment expense of a subsidiary of RMB13.0
million in the corresponding period; (i) the reversal of share-based
payment expense of the Company of RMB3.2 million in the
corresponding period; (iii) the increase in directors’ emoluments of
RMB4.6 million; (iv) the increase in the salaries of RMB5.8 million for
newly added project managers for better coordination of community
affairs; (v) the increase in average salary of the employees of the
Group; and (vi) the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES REVERSAL/
(RECOGNISED) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group’s reversal of impairment losses on financial assets was
RMB1.7 million, comparing to provision for impairment losses on
financial assets of RMB29.5 million in 2017, representing a decrease
of RMB31.2 million in the provision for impairment losses on financial
assets. The decrease was primarily due to better collection on trade
and bills receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group’s other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018
was RMB1.6 million, comparing to RMB10.3 million in 2017,
representing a decrease of RMB8.7 million, or 84.5%. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in net exchange loss of RMB8.7
million.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs decreased from RMB9.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The decrease was primarily due to (i) the reversal
of imputed interest expenses on consideration payable which had
been recorded as an interest expense for the year ended 31
December 2017; and (i) the reversal of imputed interest expenses on
non-current liabilities for cash-settled share-based payments which
has been included as a credit in the finance cost in the corresponding
period.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB50.4 million. The Group’s effective tax rate decrease
from 33.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 32.1% in 2018,
which was primarily due to the decrease of non-deductible expenses.

GOODWILL

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded goodwill of RMB155.5
million, representing an increase of 47.3% as compared with that of
RMB105.6 million as at 31 December 2017. The goodwill of the
Group primarily included (i) the goodwill of RMB3.5 million in relation
to the acquisition of Eastern Harbour Engineering Management
Limited; (ii) the goodwill of RMB101.1 million in relation to the
acquisition of Yongcheng; (i) the goodwill of RMB24.9 million in
relation to the acquisition of Enlightening Excess Limited; (iv) the
goodwill of RMB3.0 million in relation to the acquisition of _E/&)5 %5
B AR AR AR (Shanghai Tangnian Cleaning Service Company
Limited®); (v) the goodwill of RMB6.7 million in relation to the
acquisition of MR ZERBE AR A A (Guiin Gangshen Property
Services Company Limited*); and (vi) the goodwill of RMB15.0 million
in relation to the acquisition of Hangzhou Anjia. The goodwill primarily
derived from the expected future business development of the above
acquired companies, increase of market coverage, expansion of
service portfolio, integration of value-added services and improvement
of management efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

The management of the Group believes that the performance of the
acquired companies in 2018 reached the management’s expectation,
the management of the Group determined that no impairment of
goodwill should be recognized.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables mainly arose from property management
services income.

As at 31 December 2018, total trade and bills receivables of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB207.8 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB16.9 million compared to
approximately RMB190.9 million as at 31 December 2017. The
increase was primarily due to (i) the increase of RMB7.9 million after
the acquisition of cleaning and gardening companies, and Hangzhou
Anjia in 2018; and (i) the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

The Group’s trade receivables turnover days for the year ended 31
December 2018 was 71 days (year ended 31 December 2017: 65
days).

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments and other receivables primarily comprise payment on
behalf of customers to utility suppliers, prepayments, deposits paid to
utility suppliers and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepayments and other
receivables amounted to approximately RMB196.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately of RMB84.2 million
compared to approximately RMB112.3 million as at 31 December
2017. The increase was primarily due to (i) the increase of RMB36.3
million after the acquisition of Hangzhou Anjia in December 2018; (ii)
the increase in payment on behalf of residents for construction of
public facilities of RMB7.6 million; (i) the increase in bid bond for
tenders of RMB6.8 million; (iv) the increase in payment on behalf of
residents for repair and maintenance of public facilities of RMB13.0
million; and (v) the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables primarily comprise payables to sub-contractors of the
Group’s property management services. Trade payables increased
from approximately RMB45.0 million as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB47.7 million as at 31 December 2018. This was
primarily due to the expansion of the Group’s business scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals primarily comprise receipts on behalf of
community residents for utilities, contract liabilities, received in
advances, accruals, deposits received and other payables. Other
payables and accruals increased from approximately RMB386.0
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB433.3 million
as at 31 December 2018. The increase was primarily due to the net
effect of (i) the increase of RMB32.6 million in receipts on behalf of
community residents for utilities; (i) the increase of RMB9.6 million in
contract liabilities and receipts in advance; (iii) the increase of RMB6.1
million in accruals; (iv) the increase of RMB6.0 million in other
payables; (v) the decrease of RMB5.6 million in deposits received; (vi)
the increase in amounts due to non-controlling equity holders of a
subsidiary of RMB5.2 million; and (vii) the decrease of RMB5.9 million
in other tax payables.

DEFERRED TAXATION

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the deferred tax asset
recognised was mainly attributable to the allowance of doubtful debt
of RMB29.3 million and RMB23.4 million, respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial position. The
Group’s principal sources of funds to finance the working capital,
capital expenditure and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As at 31 December 2018,
net working capital (calculated as current assets less current liabilities)
was RMB171.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB54.6 million
from RMB226.2 million as at 31 December 2017. The current ratios
(calculated as current assets/current liabilities) are 1.3 times as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 1.4 times).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank borrowings
denominated in RMB of RMB20.0 million (2017: RMB23.0 million)
which was secured by certain investment properties of the Group and
bore interest at fixed-rate. In addition, Hangzhou Anjia’s non-
controlling equity holder Fi/l T /EEEEHEH LBR AR (Hangzhou
Residential Area Development Centre Company Limited*) has
guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans up to RMB30.0 million
(2017: Nil) that bore interest of fixed rates as at the end of the
reporting period at nil consideration, and the Group had an unsecured
bank borrowing amounting to RMB61.8 million (2017: RMB78.0
million) which was variable-rate and denominated in HK$ as at 31
December 2018.

EREHHED N

Htt BRI REARETER

EENZEREFEATEZRER AR EER
HEEPRKFE - 608G FHBKGIE - BT E
A Bldee R EMmEMHRIE - EfEMRIEAER
FEEr B A Mm2017F 12 A3 HH AR K386.08H
BT E2018F 12 A31 B ARKE433.3E BT
EMEZHR()SEABFEMAE TP RIEFKIG
IMARES26BEETT : (i)A 48 E & TEKZTEE
IMARBI6EET : (i)EtEREMMAREG.1
BEI: (v HMEAKIEENAREOEET
VMERESHIDARBS6EE T Vi)EN—K
MIEB AR IR R A ARNREEMAREKES.2
BB Ryl EtEMNRERD>ARKSIES
TCHF BT -

IEFE R R

R2018F 2017 F 12 A31 B » FriERELER 18
BEDETERRRERBESIAARK203EHE
TTRARE3AFETT

RBES  MBEERRELRERE

REBWYBARAREERE AEBEXEFEAN
HELAMNRERMRTEN  AEEES &K
MY REMERERREHRESD - K2018F 12 A
31H  BEESFERADEER A A G
B)ABARBATI6EE T ®82017F 12 A31H
MARB262EETTADARKESIEETT °
R2018F 12 A31 H * MBI E(ZRBEERIA
REBEAE)B13Z(2017F 1 1.415) -

R2018F 12 A31H » AEB ARG EMIRE
TEFAEARE200BE T(2017F: AR
28.0BETL) UWAKBZETREWMEERIFR
ABEEFEETE o WWINRRERKR - ML =ZH
FEREEREAMMNTEFREERFLOARA
BAINERERRISENE TRITERGREEF
R B)EARBI0EET(2017F : £) &
MR2018F12H31H  AEEEARKGI8ES
TL(2017 & : AR¥E78.0HE L) ZEIKIFIRITE
Ko TIOEBEE RABIILEE ©

FREREERRAA
2018 F 3

25



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

The Group principally focused on the operation in the PRC. Except
for the cash, bank deposits and bank borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group was not subject to any other material
risk directly relating to the foreign exchange fluctuation. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, despite the depreciation of RMB against
USD and HKD, the Directors expected any fluctuation of the RMB
exchange rate would not materially and adversely affect the
operations of the Group. The management will continue to monitor
foreign currency exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
to minimize the currency translation risk.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings add amounts due to
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and net of bank
balances and cash divided by total equity. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group was in a strong financial position with a net cash position
amounting to RMB293.7 million (2017: RMB377.8 million).
Accordingly, no gearing ratio is presented.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, investment properties of RMB93.1 million
(2017: RMB91.4 million) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2018.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 10,000
(2017: 7,300) employees. In order to enhance the morale and
productivity of employees, employees are remunerated based on
their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices.
Compensation policies and packages of management staff and
functional heads are being reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition to
basic salary, performance related salary may also be awarded to
employees based on internal performance evaluation. Moreover, the
Company adopted a share option scheme in April 2015 and share
award scheme in June 2017 in order to retain elite personnel to stay
with the Group and to provide incentives for their contribution to the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also invests in continuing education and training
programmes for management staff and other employees with a view
to upgrading their skills and knowledge. These training courses
comprise internal courses run by the management of the Group and
external courses provided by professional trainers and range from
technical training for butlers to financial and administrative trainings
for management staff.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 June 2018,
the Group enter into the Agreement with the Vendors of EFIEEE
¥ZARIEAR AR (Guangxi Huihuang Property Advisory Services
Company Limited*) (“Huihuang Property”) and & FE#24E 5= i 2 =4 s AR
HEBBR AT (Guangxi Huihuang Real Estate Advisory Services
Group Company Limited*) (“Huihuang Real Estate”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to acquire and the Vendors agreed to sell
51% equity interest in Huihuang Property and 51% equity interest in
Huihuang Real Estate (“Sale Capital”) at an aggregate consideration
of (i) RMB30.0 million payable by the Group in cash (subject to
adjustment); and (i) not more than RMB70.0 million payable by the
Group in cash to the First Vendor upon satisfaction of the Profit
Guarantee. As at the date of this annual report, the above transaction
has not yet been completed.

Save as disclosed above in this annual report, the Group had no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above in this annual report, at 31 December 2018,
the Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for
major capital assets or other business. However, the Group will
continue to identify new opportunities for business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

On 25 November 2015, the Company issued 200,000,000 new
shares of nominal value of HK$0.01 each in connection with the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange (the “IPO”). The net
proceeds after deducting the underwriting commission and issuing
expenses arising from the IPO amounted to HK$289.1 million
(equivalent to RMB238.2 million).

Up to 31 December 2018, RMB59.6 million has been utilised for the
development of the 020 platform and RMB176.5 million has been
utilized in the acquisition of property management companies.
RMB2.1 million has been utilized for the implementation of training
and recruitment programs. As at 31 December 2018, all the net
proceeds have been utilised.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results and business operations may
be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties, some of which are
inherent to the Group’s business and some from external sources.

Industry Risk

The China residential property management industry is highly
competitive and fragmented. Competition may intensify as the
Group’s competitors expand their product or service offerings into or
as new competitors enter the Group’s existing or new markets. If the
Group does not compete successfully against existing and new
competitors, the Group may not be able to renew its existing
contracts upon expiration or fail to win the bid for new projects.

Increased competition in the property management industry may
result in reduced pricing for the Group’s services and a decrease in
the Group’s market share.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of responding promptly to
market changes within the industry sectors it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such
changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial condition, results, and business operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to
various financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s earnings and financial position may be adversely
affected by movements in foreign exchange rates and interest rate. In
particular, any depreciation in the Group’s bank balances
denominated in foreign currency may affect its net profit. The Group
will closely monitor the relative foreign exchange positions of its
assets and liabilities and allocate its holdings of different currencies
accordingly in order to minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In the management of
liquidity risk, the Group’s management monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its
customers. However, the Group had no concentration of credit risk in
respect of trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
customers, who are residents and property developers in the
communities managed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the written resolution of the board of the Company
passed on 15 January 2019, the Company issued and granted an
aggregate of 6,516,000 new shares to 14 eligible employees of the
Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group at
nil consideration.

On 26 February 2019, the Company entered into a capital injection
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to make a capital
injection in total amount of RMB56,300,000 into Suzhou House
Construction. Suzhou House Construction is a company established
in the PRC with limited liability which is principally engaged in property
management. Upon completion, Suzhou House Construction will
become a 66%-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R AT

At 29 March 2019, the board of directors has resolved to recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 5.0 cents) to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
6 June 2019. Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”), the final dividend is expected to be payable on or about
20 June 2019. The aggregate amount shall be paid out of the
Company’s share premium account if the payment of the dividend is
approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

In December 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement
to purchase 60% of equity interests in &5 & $R5 B M R B %5t 72
BBRA 7] (Guangdong Ming-King-City Landscape Architecture Co.
Ltd*) (“Ming-King-City”) from an independent third party at a total
consideration of RMB9,000,000. The transaction was completed in
January 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DIRECTORS
MR. LIU JIAN

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 51, is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first members of the
Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao Property Management
Company Limited (“Zhong Ao Property”) with Ms. Chen Zhuo in
September 2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the sole director of Zhong
Ao Property in September 2005 and has been primarily responsible
for overall operation and management, strategic planning and
business development. Mr. Liu plays a key role in the Group’s
business development and has led its business expansion from
Guangdong province to other parts of China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu worked at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd. (M HERE R
fR 2 7)) from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last position held was
manager. From September 1994 to March 1999, he worked at Guilin
Royal Gardens Hotel Co., Ltd. (#7885 BR /A F]) and his last
position held was manager. From 1999 to December 2003, Mr. Liu
served as general manager of Guangzhou Olympic Garden Property
Co. Ltd. (EINEBIIEZEE Y F]) and from February 2004 to
June 2005, as general manager of Nanguo Aoyuan Property
Company (R BIERE¥% A 7)), both companies being subsidiaries of
Guangdong Yabo Property Service Company Limited (& 5 HEiE 45
RIS BR A A)) (“Guangdong Yabo”). Mr. Liu graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (FEAF I T A £2) with
a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu attained a
master’s degree in business administration from Asia International
Open University (Macau).

MS. CHEN ZHUO

Executive director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 41, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5 January
2015. Ms. Chen joined the Group as vice president when Zhong Ao
Property was established in September 2005. As a founder and a
member of the core management team of the Group, she has been
primarily responsible for financial management, strategic planning and
business development. Ms. Chen served as deputy general manager
of Guangdong Yabo from August 2002 to March 2005. Ms. Chen
received a college degree from Sun Yat-sen University (FF1LAE) in
1999, majoring in business management. Ms. Chen obtained the
qualification of a property management manager in 2000 from the
Ministry of Construction of the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSAEEEMNT

MR. LIANG BING

Executive director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 47, is a vice president of the Company and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5 January
2015. Mr. Liang joined the Group as vice president in September
2005. As a member of the Group’s core management team, he has
been primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Liang served as
deputy general manager of Guangdong Yabo from May 2002 to June
2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a bachelor’s degree in
environmental engineering from Hunan University (%5 X2 located
in Hunan, the PRC in July 1996. He later obtained a master’'s degree
in business administration for senior management from Sun Yat-sen
University (| 1K) in 2013.

MR. LONG WEIMIN

Executive director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 56, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5 January
2015. Mr. Long joined the Group as vice president in June 2008. As
a member of the Group’s core management team, he has been
primarily responsible for overall operation and management, strategic
planning and business development. Mr. Long has 14 years of
experience in the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Long served as a deputy general manager at Guangxi Nanning
Fenghuang Lodge (P % ElEE £8) from November 2001 to
January 2004, as a deputy general manager at Purui Hotspring Hotel
(EImB FBJE) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general manager at
Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co. Ltd. (/% SEEBERE 8 E B R
‘A |]) from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Long graduated and attained a diploma
from Guangxi Radio and TV University (& 74 & & SR A ) in 1982.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. WEI ZHE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Zhe, aged 48, joined the Company and was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr. Wei has
over 20 years of experience in both investment and operational
management in China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wei served as
corporate finance manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now part of
PricewaterhouseCoopers) from 1995 to 1998 and as the head of
investment banking at Orient Securities Company Limited from 1998
to 2000. Mr. Wei was a vice chairman, from 2002 to 2006, and a
consultant, from 2007 to 2011, of China Chain Store & Franchise
Association. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei was also the chief
representative for Kingfisher’s China sourcing office, Kingfisher Asia
Limited. Mr. Wei joined Alibaba Group and served as senior vice
president of the B2B Division, from November 2006 to January 2007,
and president of the B2B Division and executive vice-president of
Alibaba Group, from February 2007 to February 2011. He was an
executive director and chief executive officer of Alibaba.com Limited,
a leading worldwide B2B e-commerce company listed on the Stock
Exchange in 2007, from October 2007 to February 2011. He was
voted as one of “China’s Best CEOs” by FinanceAsia magazine in
2010. He founded Vision Knight Capital, a private equity investment
fund in June 2011 and served as a founding partner and the
Chairman. Mr. Wei graduated from Shanghai International Studies
University with a bachelor’s degree in international business
management in July 1993. He also completed the corporate finance
program at London Business School in June 1998.

Mr. Wei was a non-executive director of HSBC Bank (China)
Company Limited from April 2007 to February 2011 and The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from January
2008 to February 2011. He was an independent non-executive
director of PCCW Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0008), from November 2011 to May
2012 and was re-designated as a non-executive director in May
2012. He was an independent director of Shanghai M&G Stationery
Inc., which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from June
2014 to May 2017. He was an independent non-executive director of
Zall Smart Commerce Group Ltd., a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2098), from April 2016 to
June 2017 and was re-designated as an executive director in June
2017. He is currently a non-executive director of PCCW Limited. Mr.
Wei is also a non-executive director of JNBY Design Limited, and an
executive director of Zall Smart Commerce Group Ltd., which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent director of Leju Holdings Limited and OneSmart
International Education Group Limited, which are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.
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EENSAEEEMNT

MS. WU QIMIN

Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Qimin, aged 48, joined the Company and was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on 17 April 2015. Ms. Wu
joined E-house Capital (5 /& &) in 2008 and became one of the
founding partners. Currently she serves as executive CEO of Jupai
Holdings Limited (NYSE: JP) and president of Jupai Capital. Ms. Wu
graduated from Shanghai Institute of Urban Construction (/&3 i
L2 0t) with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1992. She
later obtained a master’s degree in construction economics and
management from Tongiji University (&% AX22) in 1999 and currently
participates in the finance DBA program for Doctor’s Degree in The
Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.

MR. ZHENG DONG

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zheng Dong, aged 53, joined the Company and was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 5 January 2017. Mr.
Zheng has over 20 years of experience in sales and property
development. From May 2011 to March 2016, Mr. Zheng was the
managing director of Yixing Hongli Oriental Tourism Real Estate
Development Company Limited (B #3837 8 7 iRz E M AR A
A)). From April 2007 to March 2011, Mr. Zheng was the director and
general manager of Jiangsu Zhong Tang Real Estate Company
Limited (T ¥ &% 5 R 2 7). From October 1996 to March 2007,
Mr. Zheng held various management positions at China Sports
Industry Group Company Limited (82 E £ EE D AR A F). Mr.
Zheng held sales position in a number of other companies between
1988 and 1997. Mr. Zheng graduated from Liaoning University with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1988, and obtained a master’s
degree in Economics from Liaoning University in 1996 and a master’s
degree in Project Management from University of Management &
Technology in 2005.
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MR. ZHANG WEILUN

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Zhang Weilun, aged 46, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 5
November 2015. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as an assistant
project manager and project manager at Shimizu Corporation (/& 7K
RIS H) from June 1996 to November 1997 and from December
1997 to May 1998 respectively. During 1999 to 2004, he successively
served as a general manager of Nanguo Olympic Garden (5 & Bk
L ERE) , a president, vice-chairman and director of Wuhan
Chengcheng Cultural Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EUEBA U EIRE
EBRMAER AR (later changed to Wuhan Aoyuan City
Development Co., Ltd. (B2 REH R KD BRR A F]) and then
Wuhan Wanhong Group Co., Ltd. (RZEREBIRMNAER A F)
(stock code: 600681), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, an executive vice president and a director of Aoyuan
Group Limited (2E £ E AR A &)). Mr. Zhang has been the chairman
and general manager of Guangzhou Willsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (&
MHEFRE ZEGTR A R)) since 2005. Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan
University of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering (& 7K FI|E 1 K22
with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1993.

MR. CHAN WAI CHEUNG, ADMIRAL

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, aged 45, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 31 May 2017. Mr. Admiral Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Admiral
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting and auditing
fields. Mr. Admiral Chan is an executive director of Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 353), an independent non-executive director of Carnival
Group International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 996), an independent non-
executive director of SFund International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1367)
and a non-executive director of China Nonferrous Metals Company
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8306). He was an independent non-executive director of EJE
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (formerly knows as Jia Meng Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8101), from 26 September 2013 to 22 May 2016.
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EENSAEEEMNT

MR. CHAN KA LEUNG KEVIN

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin, aged 50, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 31 May 2017. Mr. Kevin Chan, holds a Bachelor of Accounting
and a Master of Finance from the University of lllinois of the United
States of America. Mr. Kevin Chan has extensive experience in
corporate finance. He is currently a responsible officer of a
corporation licensed under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) to conduct type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity. He was an
independent non-executive director of Greens Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1318) from 9 January 2015 to 19 November 2015. Greens
Holdings Ltd is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and is principally engaged in production and sale of
heat transfer products, wind turbine towers and the services of waste
heat power generation through its subsidiaries. On 29 September
2015, a winding up petition was filed against Greens Holdings Ltd
and the petition is pending for further hearing.

MR. HUANG ANXIN

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Huang Anxin, aged 56, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 3
October 2017. Mr. Huang obtained a master degree in management
from Central China Normal University in 2000. He is currently the
head professor of school of management of Guangzhou Open
University. He has over 29 years of experience of teaching in the
People’s Republic of China and in particular, the subject of corporate
management and administration. He also has intensive knowledge in
other areas such as property management, economic management
and administration and community governance.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

36

PR tE
BUIBTEF

BRERR A - 505% ' 20174F5 A 31 HMMAKA A
WEZEAARNRARBUIERTES - MREILE
BEEXBRFNEABSHBE LB KB FEE
TEN - BMREEAENRCEVF I ARELER
B A A—MRBREBEEEENESEESFLB
EIEG) ([FH RS G ]) ATE1T5E 6 48 (ki
MEREBER)ZAEZINFEEENEEA
8o ®MN2015F1 A9H £2015F 11 A19H #2
EREERBRAT (RBZFTER ETHAR]
BRI - 1318) B IENITE S - IWEILERE
RARANFAEHESFMERINERAR  £2
EREWNBARINBELEEREERRRER A
NEEBEE R E RS - K 20159 A
208 RERBRERARWABFIREE £H
ERAFE— TR -

BEROEE
BUIFNTEF

O E  B68% 0 R2017F 10 A3 HMAARR
RV EZEAARRARBIIENTEE - EEER
2000 FREFEFMEANEETIELIE T M - FIRE
ENTEREGASZEEERMEHIE - HRF
EARKMBEEB B2 FHELE  FRI2h %
ERMATHRERRE @ FNEREDMEEE -
LEEIBEITHR RIS E AN EEM
s



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. CHAN KONG

Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 69, joined the Group as a vice president in April
2008. Prior to joining the Group, he served as an executive housekeeper
at Guilin Riverside Resort, China (8 %t & £E) from February 1987 to
February 1988. From February 1988 to January 2002, Mr. Chan worked
with Macau CTS Hotel Management (International) Limited (32 P9 #p ik (X
B)BEIEEIE AR A R]). He joined as a project coordinator in 1988 and
was later assigned by a secondment to Hotel Universal Guilin in the
capacity of an executive housekeeper. He was subsequently promoted
and served as general manager of Hotel Universal Guilin and general
manager of Hotel Metropole, Macau (295 &0EJE) and Xi'an Eastern
Haojing Hotel (78% 5 775328 & ). From 2003 to 2004, he served as a
general manager at Man Wah Dongguan Hotel (SR 52 X ZH 5).

MS. XIANG YAN
Assistant to CEO

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 33, joined the Group in October 2005. She is
currently the Assistant to CEO of the Group. Ms. Xiang graduated
from Jinan University (/8 X2) and obtained a diploma in
property management.

MR. YU HO MING

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Yu Ho Ming, aged 41, joined the Group on 10 April 2015. He is
currently the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for accounting, financial
management and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Yu
has over 16 years of experience in auditing, advisory accounting and
financial management. Mr. Yu is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
obtained his honours diploma in accounting from Hong Kong Shue
Yan College (currently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and he was awarded a Master of Finance from Curtin University.
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company is
pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards
of corporate governance of the Company to ensure that formal and
transparent procedures are in place to protect and maximise the
interests of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as
its code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company applied and complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code except for code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, and explained
with considered reasons for such deviation.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and oversees the Group’s businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

o To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and employees; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of four executive
directors, three non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. There is a strong independent element
on the Board, to ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board’s decision making process as well as the thoroughness
and impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the management.

The Board possesses, both as individual Directors and
collectively, appropriate experience, competencies and personal
qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to discharge
its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition, the
Board collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise
relevant to each of the material business activities that the
Company pursues and the associated risks in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight.

Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, professional
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.

The Board members have no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with
each other.
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The Board of the Company currently comprises of the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin

Mr. Zheng Dong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2018, seven board
meetings were held. Prior notices convening the board
meetings were despatched to the Directors setting out the
matters to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed and
approved. The company secretary is responsible for keeping
minutes for the board meetings.

Responsibilities of the Board and management

The executive directors, with the assistance from the senior
management, form the core management team of the
Company. The executive directors have the overall responsibility
for formulating the business strategies and development plan of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and
the senior management personnel are responsible for
supervising and executing the plans of the Group.
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(iv) Independence of independent non-executive

directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive directors have appropriate and
sufficient diversity, industry or finance experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of the Shareholders. One of the independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent
non-executive directors has submitted a written statement to
the Stock Exchange confirming their independence and has
undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as soon as
practicable if there is any subsequent change of circumstances
which may affect their independence. In addition, the Company
has also received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors in respect of their
independence. Based on such confirmations, the Board
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Induction for Director and continuous
professional development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under relevant status, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company also provides Directors with regular
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The company secretary of the Company
has from time to time updated and provided written training
materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key aspects of the
management of a company. Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership for the board and management of the board while chief
executive officer is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Clear division of these responsibilities should be in place to
ensure a balance power and authority. The code provision A.2.1 of
CG Code which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 of CG Code.

The Company consider that having Mr. Liu acting as both the
chairman and chief executive officer will provide a strong and
consistent leadership to the Group and allow for more effective
strategic planning and management of the Group. Further in view of
Mr. Liu’s experience in the industry, personal profile and role in the
Group and historical development of the Group, the Group considers
it is to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects that Mr. Liu
continues to act as both the chairman and chief executive officer after
the Listing. Therefore, the Company currently has no intention to
separate the functions of chairman and chief executive officer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that Non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term until termination by the notice period as
stipulated in the respective appointment letter in writing served by
either the Company or the respective Director. They were, however,
subject to the requirement of retirement and re-election at least once
every three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s articles of
association. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures were taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices were no less exacting than those in the code
provisions of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 5 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rule and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The audit committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Zhang
Weilun, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka Leung,
Kevin, all being independent non-executive directors. Mr. Chan Wai
Cheung, Admiral is the chairman of the audit committee and is the
independent non-executive director with the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, three audit committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each director is
set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At Meetings”.

At the meetings, the members of audit committee principally reviewed
and discussed with the external auditor of the Company about the
Group’s annual results and audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the interim review scope and
process for the Group’s result for the six months ended 30 June
2018, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
audit scope and process for the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and assessment, financial reporting process and
internal control system, respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee four members, namely
Mr. Zhang Weilun, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
and Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin. Mr. Zhang Weilun is the chairman of
the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and approve
recommendations on management remuneration.
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The remuneration committee meets to determine the policy for the
remuneration of Directors and assess the performance of executive
directors and approving the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts. In determining the remuneration for Directors, the
remuneration committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one remuneration
committee meetings were held and the individual attendance of each
director is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee has four members, namely Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Zhang Weilun,
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin. Mr.
Liu Jian is the chairman of the nomination committee. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two nomination
committee meeting was held and the individual attendance of each
director is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

NOMINATION POLICY
I.  Obijective

1.1 This Policy sets out the approach and procedures the
board of the Company (the “Board”) adopts for the
nomination and selection of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), including the appointment of additional
Directors, replacement of Directors, and re-election of
Directors.
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Il. Policy Statement

2.1

2.2

The Company recognises the importance of having a
qualified and competent Board to achieve the Group
corporate strategy as well as promote shareholder value.

The Company believes that a Board that possesses a
balance of skill set, experience, expertise and diversity of
perspectives enhances decision-making capability and
the overall effectiveness of the Board. The Board is
committed to ensuring that proper nomination and
election processes are in place for the selection and
nomination of Directors.

Ill. Selection Criteria

3.1

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in terms
of qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age,
culture, ethnicity and gender diversity. The Nomination
Committee shall consider the following selection criteria
and such other factors that it may consider appropriate
for a position on the Board:

(i) Attributes Complementary to the Board: The
candidate should possess attributes that
complement and expand the skill set, experience
and expertise of the Board as a whole, having
regard to the current structure, size, diversity profile
and skills matrix of the Board and the needs of the
Board.

(i)  Business Experience & Board Expertise and
Skills: The candidate should have the ability to
exercise sound business judgment and also
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management.

(i)  Awvailability: The candidate should have sufficient
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director, including devoting adequate time for the
preparation and participation in meetings, training
and other Board or Company associated activities.
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Motivation: The candidate should be self-
motivated and have a strong interest in the
Company’s businesses.

Integrity: The candidate should be a person of
integrity, honesty, good repute and high
professional standing.

Independence: Independent non-executive
director (“INED”) candidates must satisfy the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The INED candidate shall be independent in
character and judgement and be able to represent
and act in the best interests of all shareholders of
the Company.

above criteria are for reference only and are not

meant to be exhaustive or decisive. The Board shall take

into

consideration the benefits of a diversified Board when

selecting Board candidates.

IV. Nomination Procedures

46

41

M

(i)

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

If the Board determines that an additional or
replacement Director is required, it will deploy
multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from Directors,
shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of
potential candidates, the Nomination Committee will
shortlist candidates for consideration by the Board
based on the selection criteria and such other
factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has
the final authority on determining suitable director
candidate for appointment.
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4.2 Re-election of Directors and Nomination from
Shareholders

()  Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election, the Board shall consider and,
if consider appropriate, recommend such retiring
Director to stand for re-election at a general
meeting. A circular containing the requisite
information on such retiring Director will be sent to
shareholders prior to a general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) Shareholder(s) may nominate a candidate to stand
for election as a director at a general meeting in
accordance with the “Procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company” published by the Company from time to
time.

V. Review and Monitoring

5.1 The Board will from time to time review this Policy and
monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining an effective Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. The Board has adopted the Board Diversity
Policy with an aim to promote broad experience and diversity on the
Board.

In designing the Board composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board has reviewed, through the Nomination Committee, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board as well as the
nomination and appointment procedure of directors during the year.
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PEE RS
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT EENSENEELE
MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various meetings held T &H#H 5| &2 ENEH E2018F 12 831 HILFE
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the table  RFFER{TE B EHHFELE
below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Board

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
Name EREES FHEES REEES =g BRR
=18 =f 28 =E 28 BEXEg
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman) N/A N/A 1/2 5/7 11
Bkt (EE) T3 A NiE
Ms. Chen Zhuo N/A 11 N/A 7/7 11
PRE 22+ T E A T EA
Mr. Liang Bing N/A N/A N/A 77 1/1
%L TEA i A NEA
Mr. Long Weimin N/A N/A N/A 6/7 11
ERREA TiE A NiE A T iE A
Mr. Wei Zhe N/A N/A N/A 6/7 11
HEEE TEA N E TEA
Ms. Wu Qimin N/A N/A N/A 1/7 0/1
Riagat TEA NiE NEA
Mr. Zheng Dong N/A N/A N/A 2/7 0/1
B AE T E A T iE A T EA
Mr. Zhang Weilun 2/3 11 2/2 6/7 0/1
SRR A
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral 3/3 1/1 2/2 5/7 11
BRIEE L4
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin 3/3 1/1 2/2 7/7 11
BRERREE
Mr. Huang Anxin N/A N/A N/A /7 1/1
s AE TEA NiE T E A
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total fees paid/payable in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
Ernst & Young are set out below:

TLEERMS
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RMB’000
ARETR
Type of services: PRIEER
Audit services EZRF
Audit of the annual consolidated financial statements &% EE 454 BB HR* 1,900
Interim review of financial results for the six months #HZE_—Z— N\E/ A=+ 1L E AR BEEN
ended 30 June 2018 HERER % 1,100
Other assurance services H Az B RS 1,678
4678

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
accounts of the Group and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and the management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s independent external auditor, Ermnst &
Young, about their reporting responsibilities is included in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the chairman, Board and Board
committees by developing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company Secretary of the Company was an
employee of the Company and the Company did not engage an
external service provider as its company secretary. The Company
Secretary took no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness, while the management and other personnel are
responsible for implementing and maintaining the internal controls
systems that covers governance, compliance, risk management,
financial and operational controls to safeguard the Group’s assets
and stakeholders’ interests. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

A.

50

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
following is the summary of the Internal Control and Risk
Management Report.

This report summarizes our assessment and procedures for the
Company’s risk management, and its internal control is
considered to be sufficient and at low risk. This report also aims
to assist the Company to recognize its internal control
weakness in relevant financial procedures, systems and internal
controls area.

Our assessment commencing from assessing the over
compliance system and risk management control, the financial
reporting and disclosure control, and the operating controls of
the Company. Approaches include interviews with
management, reviewing on relevant documents, walkthroughs
of processes, tests on selected operating samples, and a
follow-up assessment after implementation of recommendation
on internal control issues.
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We have performed annual enquiries, reviewed of company’s
documents, and on-site inspection to identify and understand
the extent of the risks. The Board of Directors has full
responsibility to set up a strategy when designing a system of
internal controls that eliminate risk and achieve business
objectives. In our findings, an Internal Control and Risk
Management basic framework is established and it consists of
effectiveness and efficiency of operation; reliability of financial
reporting; and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
An Operation Manual is also imposed for employees to comply
with applicable laws and all in-house procedures and practices.

On an annual basis, the Department Heads review and update
their risk registers; discussion sessions are then led by the Chief
Executive. Control activities are built on top-level reviews,
segregation of duties and physical controls by documenting all
control process in policies and procedures to limit delegation of
authority, identifying the material risks, planning the action
items, and finalizing the budget and business objectives through
variance analyses. The Company Secretary and legal advisor
are also responsible to review adherence to the laws, while the
Board is responsible to delegate roles and authorities to the
Board members and senior management and ensure they
understand them.

For employee risk management, the Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics are set out; training sessions are regularly held
to reiterate the Company’s zero tolerance approach to bribery
and proper business ethics.

Internal Audit Function

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has an internal audit department which consists of 2
employees to monitor the daily operations of the Group.
Besides, the Company also appointed an internal control
advisor (the “IC Advisor”) to perform internal audit for the Group
during the financial year ended 31 December 2018. The IC
Advisor reported to the Audit Committee and to the Company’s
management. The IC Advisor conducted its internal audit review
activities according to the endorsed internal audit plan during
the financial year ended 31 December 2018. The IC Advisor
reported the internal audit findings and recommendations to
both the Audit Committee and the management of the Group.
The management of the Group agreed on the internal audit
findings and adopted the recommendations by the IC Advisor
accordingly.
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C. Management’s confirmation on risk management

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal audit
review activities mentioned in the aforementioned paragraphs,
the management of the Group had provided a confirmation to
the Board that the Group had maintained an effective risk
management mechanism and internal control system during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

No significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, internal audit, risk
management and internal controls functions of the Group were
identified. There is no material weakness in the internal control
of the Company identified.

The Board and the Audit Committee, continue to evaluate the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting and internal
audit functions, as well as that function’s training programs and
budget. Based on its annual review, the Board and the Audit
Committee are not aware of any material deficiencies in the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and consider them effective
and adequate.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
and putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Article of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of the requisition the Board fail to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

The annual report and the Company’s website provide the contact
details of the Company. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders may
also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Cayman Islands Company
Laws or the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph to
convene an EGM for any business specified in such written
requisition.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and investors through diversified
communication channels, including (i) printed copies of corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, notice of meetings, circulars and proxy forms) required under
the Listing Rules, and shareholders can choose to receive such
documents using electronic means through the Company’s website
(www.gdzawy. com); (i) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise questions with the Board: (i) the Company’s
website contains the announcements, latest data and information of
the Group, so that the shareholders and investors can access and
inspect the information of the Company in a timely manner; (iv)
analyse briefings are arranged from time to time to update
shareholders and investors on the Group’s performance.

The Company has not made any changes to the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Associations on or after the Listing
Date. A latest version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is also available on the website of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual report together
with audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services and property management consulting services.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair
review of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2018, and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance
Report” sections of this Annual Report. The above sections form part
of this report.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to reducing emissions and minimizing
negative environmental impacts through the implementation of the
environmental management system (“EMS”) across our properties.
The Group’s EMS is certified to the international standard 1ISO14001.
Apart from complying with all relevant international and local
regulations, the Group regularly identify potential environmental risks
and strive for continuous improvement. The key environmental
concerns from the Group’s operations relate to resource use and
waste management. The Group have implemented relevant initiatives,
such as implementation of metering systems to monitor the energy
and water consumption, installation of LED lighting and energy
efficient water pumps. The Group also promote environmental
protection awareness to its employees and property owners through
posting reminders and providing recycle bins.
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The Group obtain the certification from OHAS18001 occupational
health and safety management system. The Group prides itself on
providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment and it
values the health and well-being of its staff. Adequate arrangements,
training and guidelines have been implemented to ensure its working
environment is healthy and safe.

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
regarding the same period covered in this annual report, will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
within three months from the publication of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained a good relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers:

Employees: Employees are the most valuable asset for the
Group. The Group therefore strive to create a
motivated workplace by providing employees a
safe and healthy working environment, and a fair
workplace with a prospective career. The Group
also emphasis on its employees’ work-life balance,
and organized various activities throughout the
year.

Customers: The Group is committed to upholding excellence in
its service quality in each and every part of the
services, and providing a feel-at-home experience
to build customer connection. Various
communication channels are set up to listen to its
customers’ opinions.

Suppliers: The success of the Group highly depends on the
quality of products and services obtained from
them, hence, the Group developed procurement
procedures to select and assess its suppliers
carefully.

More details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company within three months from the
publication of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 78 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Proposed
Final Dividend”) (2017: HK5.0 cents) to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 6 June
2019.

Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), the
Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be payable on or about 20
June 2019. The aggregate amount shall be paid out of the
Company’s share premium account if the payment of the dividend is
approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY
I.  Purpose

1.1 The Dividend Policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation
to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits as
dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

Il Principles and Guidelines

2.1 In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a
balance between retaining adequate reserves for the
Group’s future growth and rewarding the shareholders of
the Company.

2.2 The Board shall also take into account, among other
things, the following factors when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends:

— the Group’s overall results of operation, financial
condition, expected working capital requirements
and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position and future expansions plans;

— the amount of retained profits and distributable
reserves of the Company;
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— general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group;
and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

2.3 The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, the Listing
Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.

2.4 The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that
may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

2.5 The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

lll. Review of the Policy

3.1  The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and modify the Dividend Policy at any
time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

past five financial years is set out on page 228.

DONATIONS

The Group had no charitable donations during the year ended 31
December 2018.

LOANS

Please refer to note 27 to financial statements of this annual report for
details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property and
equipment are set out in note 14 to financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman lIslands, distributable
reserves of the Company as of 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB352.8 million (2017: RMB414.9 million).

DIRECTORS

The following is the list of Directors during the year and up to the date
of this annual report.

Brief biographies of the current Directors of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this
annual report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhe
Ms. Wu Qimin
Mr. Zheng Dong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin
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Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Long Weimin, Mr. Wei Zhe, Ms. Wu Qimin and Mr. Zhang Weilun
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance) in force for
the benefit of the Directors throughout the year 2018 and as at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which the
Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he/she is involved by reason of being
a Director, except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the fraud or dishonesty of
the Directors. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the
Directors arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis. During the year 2018, no claims were
made against the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmations, the
Company still considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or which otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

() Long position in Shares

EERBETHRAERKRSG - HER
B RESFNERS

HE2018F12A31H EEREHBEARAR
Bl AR EE (FEER BB EMFESTIEEF
NEREAEE ([ FH REE RG] EXVED) &K
HEARDEEFTHEREESRBEKRASE
352 BTFBEME L MATAEE - SRR ET R A
T E BT AZESEITESRR SWMIZESTEIA
MEARR B REZATRIRERIAT -

%R

RAR B Retn RARBER D My as

(i) BROFHNFE

Approximate

Capacity in which interests Number of percentage
Name of Director were held shares of interest
=Y e HERZNSH RGEE BB
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, Interest

in controlled corporation 435,820,000 53.73%

Bl aE EREETEIA - I EE R
Mr. Wei Zhe Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000@) 11.62%
BHEEE LA EER
Notes: BftsT -

(1) Dawngate Limited (“Dawngate”) holds 40% of the issued share
capital of Qichang International Limited (“Qichang”) and is taken
to be interested in all the shares of Qichang and all the Shares of
the Company held by Qichang for the purposes of Part XV of the
SFO. The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15% by
Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of the
Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of the Liu Family Trust, Mr. Liu
is taken to be interested in all the Shares of the Company that
the Liu Family Trust is interested under Part XV of the SFO.
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(ii)

Central Oscar is held as to approximately 95.5% and 4.5% by
Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and Vision Knight
Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund Il, L.P. respectively, both of
which are managed by VKC, an exempted limited partnership
registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the general
partner of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC (China) GP I Ltd.
is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of VKC (China) GP
Il Ltd and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is
wholly owned by Mr. Wei Zhe. Under the SFO, each of VKC,
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il Ltd, and Mr. Wei Zhe is
deemed to be interested in the 94,262,000 Shares of the
Company held by Central Oscar.

Long position in underlying Shares
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Central Oscar % 5l £ Vision Knight Capital
(China) Fund II, L.P. k% Vision Knight Capital
(China) Entrepreneur Fund II, LP. ## & 4
95.5% K 4.5% - T M & 5 B VKC (B 1R 1%
FEeRSLAEIMNEREERETEY
TF)ERE H—KRE % ABVKC (China)
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(i) HEROPHEFE

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage
Name of Director interests were held underlying Shares of interest
=Y e BERZNS 5 HERGEE BAESEE D
Mr. Liu Jian Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.22%
Bl EmfEAA
Ms. Chen Zhuo Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.22%
PRE L BEmlEaA
Mr. Liang Bing Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.22%
PRESE EmfEAA
Mr. Long Weimin Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.22%
EARREE BEmlEaA
Mr. Wei Zhe Beneficial owner 16,000,000 1.97%
HEEE EmfEAA

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, none of the [ Fii#TEE I » R 2018F 12 A31H @ ifEE

Directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debenture of the Company or any
associated corporations.

SREBE ARAR R SERAABEBA D -
MR D R BT RA AR EORR

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y

o1



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEmS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the written resolution of the Shareholders passed on 20
April 2015, the Company granted the Pre-IPO Share Option to 380
eligible participants to subscribe for 80,000,000 shares as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Further details of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the share options granted are
disclosed in note 30 to financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As announced by the Company on 20 June 2017, the Board resolved
to adopt a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) which
has taken effect immediately.

The purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by certain employees of the Group and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The maximum number of shares that may be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme during its term is limited to 3% of the issued
shares capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date of 20 June
2017. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, new Awarded Shares may be
allotted and issued to the Administration Committee or the Trustee
under general mandates granted or to be granted by the
Shareholders at general meetings of the Company from time to time
and be held in trust for the Selected Persons until the end of each
vesting period. The issue price of such new Shares shall be at the
nominal value of Shares. When the Selected Person has satisfied all
vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of making the
Award and become entitled to the Awarded Shares, the
Administration Committee or the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
Awarded Shares to that Selected Person.
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During the year, a total of 8,500,000 Awarded Shares were granted
to 21 employees of the Group by way of allotment and issue of
8,500,000 new Shares to them. There is no other vesting condition
imposed by the Board on the Selected Persons in relation to the
award of 8,500,000 Awarded Shares. Further details of the Share
Award Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to financial statements.

Unless otherwise defined in this section, the capitalized terms used in
this section shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements made by the Company on 20 June 2017 and 22
June 2017 relating to the Share Award Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into with any individual, firm or body corporate during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors had an interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the business in which the Group is
engaged.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. Liu Jian, Dawngate Limited and Qichang
International Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in
favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant to which each
of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure any of its/his
associates and any company directly or indirectly controlled by he/it
(not include any member of the Group) not to either on his/its own or
in conjunction with any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual agreement, whether directly or indirectly, whether
for profit or not, carry on, participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or
operate, or provide any form of assistance to any person, firm or
company (except members of the Group) to conduct any business
which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete with the
business presently carried on by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any other business that may be carried on by any of
them from time to time during the term of the Deed of Non-
competition, in Hong Kong or China and such other places as the
Company or any of its subsidiaries may conduct or carry on business
from time to time, including but not limited to provision of property
management services, residential community O20 business and
other related services.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have
complied with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO recorded
that the following entities, other than the Directors of the Company,

FERR

R2018F 12 A31H » AARIREFESLHER
BIEIBCIKRFENEERREZMEEH - UTEE
(KRBEEBRIN RAR BE 1D s F8 B8 I 5

had an interest in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as

i A T #E3S

follows:
Long positions HE
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
Capacity and underlying percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interest Shares of interest
B 43, 1EEa AR
Nt SO RERMEE R4 8B BO
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 435,820,000 53.73%
HFEA
Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation 435,820,000@ 53.73%
BEBR AR Ry EE R
Qichang International Limited Beneficial owner 435,820,000 53.73%
RMEBRBER AR BEmBEAA
Vision Knight Capital (China) Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000® 11.62%
GPII, LP. Ry EEER
Central Oscar Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 94,262,000 11.62%
EnEE A
Decision Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 54,000,000 6.66%
Em#AA
Shanghai Hengji Assets Interest in controlled corporation 54,000,000 6.66%
Management Center (L.P.) REEEER
FEEREESEDL (AREAE)
Briarwood Capital Partners LP Investment manager 64,322,000 7.93%
RELE
Briarwood Capital Partners GP LLC Interest in controlled corporation 64,322,000 7.93%
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The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and
85% by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust, a
trust with Mr. Liu as founder and established in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries of the Liu
Family Trust include Mr. Liu and immediate family members of Mr. Liu.

Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of Qichang and is
taken to be interested in all shares of the Company held by Qichang for
the purposes of Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment Limited,
Signgain Limited and Onsure Limited, being the wholly-own investment
holding company of Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long
Weimin respectively, holds 20% of the issued share capital of Qichang.

Central Oscar is held as to approximately 95.5% and 4.5% by Vision
Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and Vision Knight Capital (China)
Entrepreneur Fund II, L.P. respectively, both of which are managed by
VKC, an exempted limited partnership registered under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, the general partner of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd.
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd
is wholly owned by Mr. Wei Zhe. Under the SFO, each of VKC, VKC
(China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il Ltd, and Mr. Wei Zhe is deemed to be
interested in the 94,262,000 Shares of the Company held by Central
Oscar.

Decision Holdings is wholly-owned by Shanghai Hengji Assets
Management Center (L.P.), a limited partnership registered under PRC
laws, the general partner of which is Shanghai Yidejin Investment
Management Center (L.P.) (“Yidejin”), which is also a limited partnership
registered under PRC laws. Yidejin is managed by Shanghai Yubo
Investment Management Company Limited (“Yubo”), a limited company
established in the PRC, which is a non-wholly owned indirect subsidiary
of E-House (China) Holdings Limited. Under the SFO, each of Hengji,
Yidejin and Yubo is deemed to be interested in the 54,000,000 Shares
of the Company held by Decision Holdings Limited.

Briarwood Capital Partners LP is a limited partnership registered under
the laws of United States of America, the general partner of which is
Briarwood Capital Partners GP LLC, which is a limited company
registered under the laws of United States of America. Briarwood
Capital Partners GP LLC has 100% control over the partnership’s affairs
but it does not own 100% of the partnership. Under the SFO, Briarwood
Capital Partners GP LLC is deemed to be interested in the 64,322,000
shares of the Company held by Briarwood Capital Partners LP.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not enter
into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
which need to be disclosed in this annual report under Rule 14A.49

of the
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Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s major suppliers are sub-contractors providing relevant
services for the Group’s property management and sales assistance
business lines. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 13.1% (2017: 13.4%) of
the Group’s total purchases, and the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 26.4% (2017: 28.7%) of the Group’s
total purchases.

The major customers of our property management business line
include property developers, property owners and property owners’
associations, while the major customers of the sales assistance
business line include property developers. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.5% (2017: 4.4%) of the Group’s revenue, and the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 8.8%
(2017: 9.8%) of the Group’s revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rate.

The remuneration committee of the Company reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 9 to financial
statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no shares were
repurchased.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed herein, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Certified Public
Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the auditors of the
Company and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong Ao
Home Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 78 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BEEEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KA EE P EEERETER

Impairment of trade receivables
B 2 RNFRRRE

As at 31 December 2018, the gross balance of trade
receivables amounted to RMB292,636,000 of which a
provision for impairment amounting to RMB85,850,000 was
made. The expected credit loss assessment of trade
receivables involves management’s significant judgement and
estimation, such as the existence of disputes, historical
payment record, forward-looking factors and any other
available information that may impact the estimated expected
credit loss. Therefore, we identify it as a key audit matter.
2018 12A31E BRI R ERLE R AR
292,636,0007T + H A B EHRIE R A R 85,850,0007T °
BRI HENTEREEBETESRERENE X6 R
e Pl FEESZE  BLN KRG - AR RARAIEE
TEMFEREEEENEMEMARES - Bt - K
HETE RBRETEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MHERRBEMNAGRA M EHRRMEIR22 -

We checked the ageing analysis of trade debtors
prepared by the management and assessed the
assumptions applied. We evaluated the existence of
disputes, historical payment records, historical credit loss
and forward-looking factors. We obtained and evaluated
the historical observed default rates prepared by
management to assess the overall provision for
impairment. We have also assessed the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures in the financial statements.
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Key audit matter

REESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R AER PREBRETSEE

Valuation of investment properties

RENENGEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to RMB184,384,000. The Group recorded a net fair
value gain of RMB3,216,000 for the year, which has been
determined with reference to the valuations performed by an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers on the
market approach. The valuation of the investment properties
involves significant estimates and key assumptions on items
such as the selection of comparable properties and market
price.

2018 12A31H ESBENREMVERAREK
184,384,000 © BEHREHEAFEATFEKRARE
3,216,000 7T * N2 ERXRB U EXE ERMEMITETIS A
FRETTHEMERE - REMENGEED SERATLLEMER
TISEREFIR B NEXRGET RERRER -

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
appropriate similar properties, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including: an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition or
location, less active market transactions and discounted cash
flows of rental income.
ERRABEYELNERTISNRTERBEALT - EXKEE
BREZENRIRENER - BFEARME - RO ED
MERERETS  EBMSRX S5 RESBAFRRER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEBREMNALGRE T BHREMEIR15 -
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We examined the objectivity, independence and
competence of the external valuers. We checked the
property related information and involved our valuation
specialists to assist us in reviewing and assessing the
underlying assumptions adopted by the valuers in their
valuation, such as selection of comparable properties,
market price and discounted cash flows of rental income.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KA EE P EEERETER

Impairment of goodwill

BENRE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB155,456,000 as at 31
December 2018 arising from the acquisitions of business in
2018.

201812 31 H + EHREHFIRN 2018 F Ui E 15
P8 AR ¥ 155,456,000 7T °

Management is required to assess goodwill impairment on an
annual basis. The impairment reviews performed by the
Group’s management include a number of significant
judgements and estimates including those regarding cash
generating units (“CGU”) identification, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
Changes in these assumptions may have significant impact on
the impairment assessment.

EREAGFAAEHERNE AEEEEELETHRERS
BIEETERAE MG BRAEReELEU([REE
B HEMN  SERMNER - KEERERURE - ZF
REHNEE IR RENAEEEATE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEBEMNAGRE I BREMEIRAT7 -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
impairment model for goodwill and reviewed the key
assumptions adopted by management, including those
regarding CGUs identification, operating profit forecasts,
perpetuity growth rates and discount rates. We tested
the mathematical calculation of the forecasts and
carrying values in management’s impairment model and
compared management’s estimate of the recoverable
amount with the carrying amount of each CGU.

RATMERE T HFE BRI ERR T F1EE IR B

RRR  BRZSFEHERREELE M - €28
BRI KARRRRIFRE - ARAS T R REEE

RERERERNTOBEFTE - WA EEEL A IKE
SENGHRSREESBUMNRAELER

We compared short and long-term growth rates with the
historical trends. We also considered the results of
management’s prior period forecasts. We involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the
perpetuity growth rate and discount rate for each CGU
by comparing with past performance and relevant risk
factors. We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed
by the Company’s management on the impact of
changes in the key assumptions.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

B I BEN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Cheung.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBnMlEMEE NS

Year ended 31 December 2018 &= 20184 12 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET R ARET T
REVENUE W 6 1,023,011 977,552
Cost of sales HEX A (740,906) (680,715)
Gross profit EF 282,105 296,837
Other income and gains H AU A Rz 6 30,809 20,617
Selling and marketing expenses HE REEMAS (5,539) (6,394)
Administrative expenses THHEX (151,065) (115,121)
Net impairment losses reversal/(recognised) £ & R EE B[R
on financial assets (FER) F58 1,672 (29,472)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(ELA TR KR &8 -
Joint ventures BEPE 18 2,895 2,645
Associates iR lNE] 19 4 (111)
Other expenses HAtnFsZ (1,641) (10,282)
Finance costs EUp DN 8 (1,833) (9,512
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R %1 B0 F 8 7 157,399 149,207
Income tax expenses TSt 11 (50,449) (49,919)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFNHE 106,950 99,288
Attributable to: AT AL FEL
Owners of the parent BREHEA A 13 96,088 90,549
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRERS 10,862 8,739
106,950 99,288
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & A F&@ERERIEE AR M
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF
THE PARENT
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — EAREE(AREIL) 13 0.119 0.113
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, FERBBERERA
NET OF TAX, FOR THE YEAR 106,950 99,288
Attributable to: LA AL -
Owners of the parent (SYNSIETZS PN 96,088 90,549
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 10,862 8,739
106,950 99,288
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
are MR

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o= AR¥T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property and equipment I EYE L] 14 41,533 35,287
Investment properties WEYME 15 184,384 163,592
Prepayments for acquisition of properties W ) 3£ O TR IR 16 7,958 14,738
Goodwill B 17 155,456 105,560
Investments in joint ventures RESDPERNKRE 18 4,412 5,020
Investments in associates REE N AIRIEE 19 3,175 2,689
Intangible assets B E 20 90,837 94,836
Long-term deposits KH%e 997 2,267
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 21 30,929 24,530
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 519,681 448,519

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 1,409 824
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e GOE & R E % 22 207,826 190,932
Prepayments and other receivables TE A 58 & H Ath FE W IR 23 196,508 112,290
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EY 24 415,795 483,806
Total current assets REBEEHE 821,538 787,852

CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBRE
Trade payables 2 Z I RIR 25 47,687 44,965
Other payables and accruals Hib S FIAMERT B A 26 433,332 385,962
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITER 27 70,382 42,276
Tax payables JEITIE 98,573 88,439
Total current liabilities RBAEGEHERE 649,974 561,642
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 171,564 226,210
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2&ERABARE 691,245 674,729

FREREERRAA
2018 F 3

79



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReFBIRR

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR®TRE ARKTR

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities EIETIBAE 21 25,376 26,059
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STESRITIER 27 41,459 58,693
Other long-term payable Eb R EIFEMFIE 28 18,460 43,284
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEHETE 85,295 128,036
NET ASSETS EEFRE 605,950 546,693

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BAREEAEGEEZ
OF THE PARENT

Share capital R 7K 29 6,689 6,619

Reserves HiE 555,123 485,760
561,812 492,379

Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE RS 44,138 54,314

TOTAL EQUITY EREE 605,950 546,693

Liu Jian Chen Zhuo

2z fReE

Director Director

EFE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N A
1( /\%nll\éb%

Year ended 31 December 2018 # = 20184 12 A 31 HILFE

[\\/ N

Attributable to owners of the parent Non-controlling interests

NG ZN FERER
Share
Retained option
Capital Share  earnings/ reserve Non-
Issued  Treasury Share redemption  Statutory Other  Special option (Accumulated ofa controlling Total
capital  shares premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) Sub-total subsidiary interests  Sub-total equity
il |
ERE BRE REEY/ AANER
BRIRE EERG ROEE fE EERE EMBE GHER B (RER) N ERE FERER gt Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 31(a)) (note 31(b)) (note 31(c)) (note 30)
(WiEsta) (KizE3tb) (KiE3tc) (=£30)
As at 31 December 2017 R20175128318 6,619 - 439,134 8 19,442 14000  (66,128) 19,744 50520 492,379 - 54,314 54314 546,693
Effect of adoption of REABRNBREER
HKFRS 9 fnote 22) £ORMTE (322 - - - - - - - - (15,990)  (15,090) - (3076 (3076  (19,066)
Asat1 January 2018 (restated) #2018%15 1R (£E5)) 6,619 - 439,134 48 19,442 14000 (66,128 19,744 43530 476,389 - 51,238 51,238 527,621
Proft for the year ERFIE - - - - - - - - 96,088 96,088 - 10,862 10862 106,950
Capital contribution from TR TR
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3,678 3,678 3,678
Aoquisition of subsidlaries [N - - - - - - - - - - - 1,318 1,318 1,318
Transfer £ - - - - 13391 - - - (13,391) - - - - -
Contract toacquire remaining ~ FT4)4E— %WE
interests in a subsidlary - - - - - - 18,035 - - 18,035 - (18,035 (18,035 -
Recognition of equity-ssttled MRIATE
share-based payments 70 - 5,455 - - - - 418 - 5,943 - - - 5943
2018 nterm dividend N18EDERE - - - - - - - - (33964 (33,084) - - - (33984
Dividends to non-controling FERERRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (4,09)  (4,09)  (4,09)
Disposal of a subsiclary HE-ZHBAT - - - - - - - - - - - (203) (203) (203)
Acquistion of non-controling  WEESER IR
inerests - - - - - - (376) - - (376) - (62%) (@4 (1,000
Share options forfeited BB - - - - - - - (283) - (289) - - - (283)
As at 31 December 2018 201851231 E 6,680 - MY 8 B8 140000 MBM6G 1087 23 5612 - M1 M08 60590
Asat 1 January 2017 ROTE1A1H
(as previously stated) (msi30) 6,549 [ 433481 45 580 14000 (9682 22975 (17457 385778 1925 62363 64288 450066
Adusimentoncorectionof  EHF 2 FE ([ 4)
aneror (note 4) - - - - - - - - - - - (6,620) 6,620) (6,620)
Asat 1 January 2017 (restated) 720171518 (ME7) 6,549 3 433481 45 5870 14000 (19682 22975 (17457) 385,778 1,926 55,743 57,668 443446
Proft for the year ERFE - - - - - - - - 0549 9059 - 870 873 99288
Shares canoeled (note 29) B (H20) €] 3 - 3 - - - - - 3 - - - 3
Acquisttion of a subsidiary WE-FHBAR
not constituting (TBRERAH)
business combination - - - - - - - - - - - 3,386 3,386 3,386
Transfer et - - - - 135m - - - (13572 - - - - -
Contract o acquire remaining ~ THME-ZHEAAES
interests in a subsidiary i3 - - - - - - 3,554 - - 13554 - (13554 (18,654) -
Recognition of equity-settled  BEAAEREERRAHZ
share-based payments &} - 5,653 - - - - 2,486 - 8212 - - - 8212
Share aptions foreted BiRkeERE - - - - - - - B - BT (195 - 764
As at 31 December 2017 RO17E12A317 6,619 - 439134 48 19442 140000 (66,128  19744" 59520 492,379 - 54,314 54314 546,693
* These reserve accounts comprised the consolidated other reserves of ~ * ZEREEBEN2018F 12 A31 H K20174F

RMB555,123,000 and RMB485,760,000 as at 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017 respectively.

NRANNBZHEAEMBEEISANAARE
555,123,000 7T & A R # 485,760,000 7T, °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRRERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 &= 20184 12 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR®T AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RERETHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: FREZAIFE 157,399 149,207
Adjustments for: AT HIEAE
Fair value gains on investment properties REMEN R ERE 7 (3,216) (3,960)
Depreciation e 7 11,468 10,045
Amortisation of intangible assets E L EE 7 13,796 16,305
Impairment provision on trade and B 5 EWGUR K B E R
bills receivables WIERE 7 (4,404) 22,431
Impairment of other receivables EoAth e IR E 7 2,732 7,041
Share of profits of joint ventures JEME S S R
and associates NEIPIDE (2,891) (2,534)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses &5 (W) BB F5E 7 (1,431) 8,657
Share-based payment expenses of NN R E N
the Company 30 5,660 2,495
Share-based payment reversal of — KB R RIS KB E
a subsidiary 30 - (12,981)
Loss on disposal of items of HEMHEREBIEE NEE
property and equipment 7 60 77
Finance costs B 75 ik 2N 8 1,833 9,512
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HER A EF B
fair value through profit or loss/available HFELRRENKZE
for sales financial investments 7 (3,915) (1,125)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RH B A RIS 7 (299) -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE-—REEPENE 7 (1,450) -
Bank interest income RITHBUA 7 (2,943) (1,795)
172,399 203,375
Increase in inventories FEEm (585) (76)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B Z MR R EREE
and prepayments and other receivables VAR B 5008 R E A fE
Wi FRIE I A0 (84,013) (94,396)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5N E M FIE R
and accruals FERTE R N 13,874 54,804
Cash generated from operations KEMBHRE 101,675 163,707
Income taxes paid BATATSHE (45,117) (24,211)
Net cash flows from operating activities REREIHNRESHRETZEE 56,558 139,496
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

S ATHE AN =
,%, \E\Eﬁiulbiﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2018 # = 20184 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017
20185 2017 £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR¥TR AR¥TRT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETHHNEERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property HEYENREER

and equipment (19,359) (10,927)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVAE (752) (4,812)
Additions of investment properties NEREME 15 (6,512) (1,883)
Gains from disposal of financial assets at HER AT EF AR

fair value through profit or loss/available FESRIEEN RS

for sale financial investments 7 3,915 1,125
Interest received BFE 7 2,943 1,795
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYENKREEBNERE

property and equipment 256 3,686
Dividend received from a joint venture WHE—FKEEPENKRE 2,275 1,988
Decrease in financial assets at at fair value ~ H AV EE ABZ1HE

through profit or loss/available for TR E DR E ER D

sale financial investments - 2,550
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —K B A F] 33 (29,397) (5,572)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting Wi — M B A R (g AK

a business combination E ) - (5,297)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAF 34 (120) -
Disposal of a joint venture HE—RKE&EhE 2,678 -
Net cash flows used in investing activites  REFZEARESRETE (44,073) (17,347)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETHNRERE

ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FriEiRITER 40,000 23,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (63,314) (45,579)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 1 B S 2 A e 2 (23,500) (22,500)
Dividends paid EARIRE (33,984) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders &, 15 FE3% A% B% 58 A% 2. (4,096) (17,034)
Capital contribution from non-controlling FEFERR R HE

interests 3,678 -
Interest paid BAFE (3,215) (3,030)
Net cash flows used in financing activites & EZE AR S RE T (84,431) (65,143)

TREFEBMERAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEESRER

Year ended 31 December 2018 &= 20184 12 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR%T R ARETT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH R&RBEESZEY (RL),/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (71,946) 57,006
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FH2BR e MIREEEY
of year 483,806 442,473
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ R & &) H) 5§ 2558 3,935 (15,673)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZASRASEEY
END OF YEAR 415,795 483,806
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BT AR R T 13R & M
the statement of financial position 415,795 483,806
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS REeERBRAIIRER
STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS 415,795 483,806
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law on 5 January 2015. The registered office
address of the Company is P.O. Box 2681, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of property management services and sales
assistance services in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
immediate and ultimate holding company is Qichang
International Limited (“Qichang”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

B H5 R M ot

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

AREHR

FRIREBMBRAE ([ARQF])H2015
F1ASARBEREHSAREERSHE
AR RELEAS—FERRERAR - K
A &) 7 03 = 52 69 b 4k & P.O. Box 2681,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RRBIMBLRFEERFEARKME ([
B REEREDETRRE MIHHERE - &
ERB ARAHEERMERERARRME
BERAERAB(RE])  ZRRS—RKNE
BRZEHSE ((RERLES ) EMRILNE
RAR] e

BN BARNER
AT EBHEATMEBMT -

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered FAREMEZEAL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£8 EL, BRITEE/ B Mg TEER
TRREEBH AR
Zhong Ao Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USD1 100% - Investment holding
hRIZERARAF HERUES 1%L REER
Zhong Ao Property Services Hong Kong HKD1 - 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
(“Zhong Ao HK”)
hERYERS (FE)BRAF Bk 15T RAER
([hREFE])
Aidaojia Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands HKD7.75 - 100%  Investment holding
(“Aidaojia Holdings”)
BARERERAF EBEAHS 77587 REER
(IBRZER])
Aidaojia Information Technology Hong Kong HKD2 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
(“Aidaojia Information”)
BAREAMRBRAA EE 2B REER

(TEHREAR])

TREFEBMERAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

86

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NEIER (B)

BEMBE R RNER (@)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered RARELERE DL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£18 EMREL RITEE/ E# EE TFEER
BLEREEMLH R
Eastern Harbour Engineering Hong Kong HKD2 - 70%  Investment holding
Management Company Limited
(“Eastern Harbour”)
RABEIRERERA BE 28T REER
(T&7E%])
BMNBENEREERA PRC/Mainland China HKD1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Xuji")*
BMNBENEREERAR R/ E 1,000,000 % 7T KEER
(TEMBED~
ERMBYEEEARAF PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Guangdong Zhong Ao”)* management services
BRARNEERERAT HE/ R E A AK#100,000,0007C REMEEERY
([BRFE])"
MMEEE R EEEMERBEER PRC/Mainland China RMB2,500,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Hangzhou Lvdu”)* management services
MNEESHEERNERBERAR HE/ REAMN AR #2,500,0007C RENEEERY
([ seER )
MMEENMEERERA PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Hangzhou Huachang’ ) management services
MMEENXERERA HEL/ R i AR 1,000,000 7T RENEEERS
(MmzEg])"
mNEEMEREERRF PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Hangzhou Gaodi")* management services
MMEENEREERAF FEL/ R i AE#500,0007T RENEEBRY
(M= ED"
LK MEEEAR AT PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 - 85%  Provision of property
(“Zhejiang Yongcheng”) management services
LXK EERERRT /R E i AK#11,000,0007T RENEEERHB

(T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

NEIER (#)

BEMBERRNESR (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

registration and registered RARELERE DL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ HEMRL BRITEE/ H# EE FEER
BEREEMLE EfRA
FERENEEEARAT PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 70%  Provision of property
(“Shanghai Yidong”)* management services
FBRERNEERERAR R/ E i A 3,000,0007C REMEERRB
([ EBHRED"
BRBRYEEEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Hongtu”) management services
BERBENEEEERAA HE/ R E A AR #6,000,0007T REMEEERY
(M%&)
BREMEHENERBARAE  PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 85%  Provision of property
(“Ningbo Reston”)* management services
ERENEBENEREERAT  RE/ RERM AR#5,000,0007C REMEEERB
([EREHE]
ERBAYEETEERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 66.81%  Provision of property
(“Ningbo Yongxing”)* management services
ERBAENEERERAT B/ T E i AR 1,000,0007T REMEEE R
([EREE])"
ERKHERIRARAF PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 85%  Provision of engineering
(“Ningbo Yongdu”)* services and sale of
engineering spare parts
BB IRERAR B/ TR E i AR 3,000,0007T REUTERBREETRE
([ZRAHE" fiet
BMTREEEZERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
(“Zhong Ao Shangye”)* management services
BMPREREXERAF HRE,/ R E AE#10,000,0007T REMEERRB
([hEmEED"
MMNERZMEEERRRF PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 75%  Provision of property
(“Hangzhou Anjia”) management services
MR EDEERERAF H /T E i AR #3,000,0007T REMEEERRB
(Mmzz="
FREIREEERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

1.

88

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NEIER (#)

BEMBLBINER (#)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered RARELERE DL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£18 EMREL BRITEE/ E# EE TFEER
BLEREEMLH R
BRI RS 2RSE R D) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Foshan Pairuier”)* management services
BILRIRRBZREBRAR BB A 50,000,000 7T RENEEERE
(T ILRRER L)~
HESFEZREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 60%  Provision of property
(“Shanghai Tangnian”)* management services
FESFEZREAERRAR LR B R AR 500,0007C RENMEEERB
(TE&5E])"
HESREZREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
(“Shanghai Tanglei")* management services
LEERERREERAR BB R AR 2,000,0007T REMEEERB
(TE&5zl)"
EWERDERBERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
(“Guilin Gangshen”)* management services
EWERDERBERAR HEL/ R i AR 3,000,0007T REDEERRY
(TR
* Guangzhou Xuji, Shanghai Yidong and Foshan Pairuier are * BMBE - /818 E R IR R BRI

registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
and the registered capital of Guangzhou Xuji and Shanghai
Yidong has been fully paid up.

# The subsidiary is a limited liability company.

During the year, the Group acquired Hangzhou Anijia, Foshan
Pairuier, Shanghai Tangnian, Shanghai Tanglei, and Guilin
Gangshen. Further details of acquisition of above subsidiaries

are set out in note 33.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.1

90

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property
Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements,
the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are

described below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR E

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

92

()

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-
based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when
certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as
an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group
has applied prospectively, the Group has recognised the
transition adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 39.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Classification and measurement

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, including
the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit loss
calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected credit losses

(“ECLs").

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as
at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

(b)

B H5 R B
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HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
EAGHERNSEORHE Re- EANKREENENHE
Category Amount classification ECL Amount Category
Lol ¢ ENSE EHGEFAE x| Al
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETR
Financial assets tHEE
Financial assets included in BEABRFEREME
prepayments and WHE SREE
other receivables L&R! 86,846 - (13,196) 73,650 AC?
Trade and bills receivables B o EWFUE R EREE L&R 190,932 - (12,225) 178,707 AC
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY L&R 483,806 - - 483,306 AC
761,584 - (5421) 736,163
Other assets Hit&EE
Deferred tax assets EREFEEE 24,530 - 6,355 30,885
Total assets EEBE 786,114 - (19,066) 767,048
Financial liabilities SHER
Financial liabilities included in BEREMENFIER
other payables and accruals EAERzSRARE AC 196,721 - - 196,721 AC
Interest-bearing bank borrowings £ E R 1TE K AC 100,969 - - 100,969 AC
Trade payables S ENFE AC 44,965 - - 44,965 AC
Other Payables for Option Hib B RN B FVPL® 65,439 - - 65,439 FVPL
Total liabilties f e 408,004 - - 408004
1 L&R: Loans and receivables 1 L&R: B3k I FE U R TE
2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost 2 AC B EATIEN S REENS
RhE &
3 FVPL: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 8 FVPLZ AT ETABENEMARE

PRIAREEERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 EFBERBERNR2EE (2)
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(o)  (Continued) ) (&)
Impairment VERE]
The following table reconciles the aggregate opening TREBRBEEESTERFEI95 A
impairment allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL VREREAERRESEMERE
allowances under HKFRS 9. Further details are disclosed ZERFEQRMTEEEEFIBRBYR -
in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements. FEHBEERUMBmMEMTE2R
23 °
Impairment
allowances ECL allowances
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
at 31 December Re- at 1 January
2017 measurement 2018
R2018 5
R2017 181885
12831 ARE BEBIMERE
EBEHER ERIEL
FIFMREE MEBEE
B EfiitE BERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTL ARBTL ARBTT

Trade and bills receivables BHRNGER EREE 78,029 12,225 90,254
Financial assets included in prepayments B 3ERTE R A R H At
and other receivables AT EREE 10,723 13,196 23,919
88,752 25,421 114,173
Impact on retained profits HREENHEE
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits is BEER BB WEERE N EHR
as follows: BaMmgF2EmT
Retained
profits
REBEF
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Retained profits RE BT
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 BIEEESERFE 39502017 F
12 A31 B2 &% 59,520
Recognition of expected credit losses for RIEBRBU SRS EFORERE S
trade and bills receivables under HKFRS 9 FEWRIE N EWEE v FBEEB SR (12,225)
Recognition of expected credit losses for prepayments BIEE BT SRS L F oG IERTR
and other receivables under HKFRS 9 MNEREMERGE BREEBR (13,196)
Deferred tax in relation to the above B ERIBRIELERIR 6,355
Impact on non-controling interests IR ERNTE 3,076
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 BEEBVIEREERF W
MN2018F1 A1 Bzttt 43,530

94 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to
all revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements. As a result of
the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. The Group determined
that there are no significant financial impact arising from
the initial application of HKFRS 15.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction or
development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

96

(e

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. The interpretation has had no impact on
the Group’s financial statements as the Group’s
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets
or non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Leases’
Insurance Contracts®
Definition of Material

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease ,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January
2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
1 January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 BHEMEERERNE B UK R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application. During 2018, the
Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of HKFRS 16. Since the Group’s non-cancellable
operating lease commitment is immaterial as at 31 December
2018, the directors of the Company expect that the adoption of
HKFRS16 will not have significant impact on the financial
position and financial performance of the Group. The new
standard is not expected to apply until the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of
HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture
to which the equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies
HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term
interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and
impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1
January 2019 and will assess its business model for such long-
term interests based on the facts and circumstances that exist
on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief from
restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR E

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, (only if there are revalued assets in
the financial statements) unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

@)

or

108

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

U

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i)

(i)

)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, and equipment and depreciation

Property, and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal useful lives
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 3 to 5 years, whichever is

shorter
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

24 TESHBEBRE )

MK RERTE

BRAEZTIZON - W3R MR AR R 5 T
EREREREYIR - MERRERBH
A BIEIE B B RAEAMEE EZE 2 A £ Ak
RIGES AR AERER RN EREIG
DN

WMERFERER NEFERELENFH(F
Mg RRERS) —RRELHHEER
KM - EN R ERFENBRT - EXR
ERXNEERBMEENMEREERAE © i
KEB “%%&“1%/,\751E?ﬁ REE S
RzFMD /KEFEEAFREITENER
BE -

FERE A ERFRABREMESED

ENREONAZESRERTE B0
BAEZrFERAFRIOT :

B 204F

HEMHEERE THH 3RS FMER

BEE

FREREERE 33ESF
YRE 3E104F

i FEIEY) 3 RBEIE B S E 50 A FEAFR

TE - AZEBEMOKARERLD 2HAEESD

B BEFHHFEIE - a]FERFREINE

HEEEIREYREREEE AR AR
— R (@A) -

ety 109



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software and trademark

Purchased software and trademark are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of three to ten years.

Acquired property management contracts

Acquired property management contracts are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the sum of the
years digits basis over their estimated useful lives of five to
fifteen years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

24 TESHBEBRE )

B EE (BERM)

BRUIRE R BT & EN VIR R IR AT
B - REBAHTUBETLEENKAR S
WEERHNATE - BYEEMREAFH
RAESBRNER - FHERNELEE
HENAEREBEFRANEH  EAPRE
NEFEE R RERIER - RDETTRIERE
AERFRAERNELEENBHFHLE
WHERIMNEMBEFEEEARE X -

BHRBEE

FE AR R B AR IR PR AR T AR (E B 18 51
B WIR=FE+FOEFRERFHRUELR
SEEEEH o

HEHWEEESYN

BSH Y REE S MR AR ERERER
SRR - WiR A E+RFH M A ERFHIN
FRRAEFEREH o

HE
NEEHRARBANN DKL AR (TRE
EEFR)BRASEMAENELY - BHHIE
BMEED - RBEMEORGEE  HEEEN
AT EFEHENRCRERTER I
ERER (TRENEEN) — AR - IR
REMEEERBERRL - RESEAMCBE
BHOBAZEETIMAYMERRE - AiiE
R BEENG A ERFRMmER 2 BEE
& - BEBEONMERATINERR B H
B - ARBRFAE RO Bl E AR R -

At 111



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in debt securities. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR E

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
other long-term payable and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
and other long-term payable are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are merchandise goods stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)  Sales of goods
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(b)  Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

(c) Sales assistance services
Revenue from the sales assistance services is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sales of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services (applicable before 1
January 2018)” below;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(e)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset
related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 30 to the financial statements.

1 32 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

24 TESHBEBE»)

EHNEE(B2018F1 A1 HEER)

EMARERENASEEKRIIEPRE (X
BNRESB)NEFPERERARBNE
- WEPEAKRERTEFEEERIRY
Z BRI ATRAE - BIFE A R AS SR B H By (JA
BREERE)ERARAE - AHNAEBERAE
SEREENETHERBEA -

EHHMA(BH2018F1 A1 AEMR)

BIERTEE W% BELRRBANELE
EERMCMKAS - BITREFNAKME
ERRA - WA ATA R - BB

(@) ARABEEEASANE LA ARERETE
MIEHIG #AER

(b)  RRANEAE SRR K AR (AR R
RIRREHEHNERER -

(c) TERTAAHSE UM -

BN A WA IZ R EEE I M AR
mx o EEREERBORSERA -5 H
AR ARELRIIRFAX -

BRAD SR

ARRRERA —HBREE - ARHEA
SEXBRAERNSERZRERMNS
B K2R - AEERE (BRES) ARHX
TRz VR B - 1 8 B RIIR RIS 1E /&
BEERTANRE((UESEERS]) -

2002F11TA7THERTEENUERES
RBHNRATILEREEBNAFENE -
N ERIMNEGEMAZEREREET - &

Tl IS BN I S MR P RE 30

—+
P
i
=



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair
value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes formula, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
instruments were granted (note 30). The fair value is expensed
over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The cumulative expense recognised for
cash-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of awards that will ultimately vest. The liability is
measured at the end of each reporting period up to and
including the settlement date, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 14% to 20% of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

136

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers:

U)

Identifying performance obligations in multiple underlying
activities of property management services

The Group provides property management services which
comprised of multiple underlying activities to the
customers (i.e., security, maintenance, cleaning,
landscaping, administrative and support services).

While each of these activities are individually capable of
being distinct, the Group determined that they are not
distinct within the context of the contract because the
ultimate objective of the management services is to
perform any activities that are necessary to ensure the
properties are operating as intended. In addition, the
Group determined that the management services
represent a series of services that are substantially the
same and have the same pattern of transfer to the
customers over the term of the contract. Each distinct
service represents a performance obligation that would
be satisfied over time (i.e., over the length of the contract,
not at a point in time) and has the same measure of
progress (e.g., time elapsed). Consequently, the Group
determined that the multiple underlying activities of
property management services to be accounted for as a
single performance obligation.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Determining the method to estimate variable consideration
and assessing the constraint for property management
services

The Group gives discount to the customers as a strategy
to improve the cash collection of property management
fees, which give rise to variable consideration. The Group
determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable
consideration for reductions in property management
services, given that there is a wide range of possible
outcomes which are subject to specific cases and
negotiations with customers.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in
the transaction price, the Group considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The
Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty
on the variable consideration will be resolved within a
short time frame.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
certain properties. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Significant judgements and estimates are involved in cash
generating unit identification, operating profit forecasts,
perpetuity growth rates and discount rates. Changes in these
assumptions can result in materially different on impairment
charges or available headroom. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2018 was RMB155,456,000 (2017:
RMB105,560,000). Further details are given in note 17.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for intangible assets in respect of property
management contracts at the end of each reporting period.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the net carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

The net carrying values of intangible assets are dependent on
future cash flows of the underlying cash-generating units and
significant judgements and estimates are involved in cash-
generating unit identification, operating profit forecasts,
perpetuity growth rates and discount rates for the beneficial
period of the intangible assets.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2018 was RMB114,952,000 (2017:
RMB103,327,000). Further details are contained in note 21 to
the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involved estimated
and assumption on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources for estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and
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31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2018 was RMB184,384,000 (2017: RMB163,592,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurements, are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

On 26 July 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement and a joint venture agreement (the “Agreements”)
with 10 individual equity holders (the “Vendors”) to acquire 70%
equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng with certain
indebtedness (the “Acquisition”) at a cash consideration of
RMB210,000,000. The Acquisition of the 70% equity interests
in Zhejiang Yongcheng was completed in October 2016.
According to the Agreements, net profit of Zhejiang Yongcheng
derived during the period from 1 January 2016 to the date upon
the renewed business licence of Zhejiang Yongcheng being
granted should be appropriated to the foregoing Vendors. The
profit represented identifiable liabilities at the date of acquisition
of Zhejiang Yongcheng. As a consequence, other payables and
accruals and goodwill at the date of acquisition of Zhejiang
Yongcheng recorded by the Group have been understated and
non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition of Zhejiang
Yongcheng recorded by the Group have been overstated. The
correction of error did not have an impact on profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR 4.

(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected

RIS M 5
31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H
AHAZESEEIE ()
HasMBERRERNEE

RERCEBRBIEFRBEXZEVBERER

financial statement account balances for the prior year as BREA&SN T FUEIE :
follows:
31 December
2016
2016 4F
12 A31H
RMB’000
AREETIT
Increase in goodwill and total non-current assets EENIERENE ELEE N 15,447
Increase in other payables and accruals, HibEMZELREABEBRUR
and total current liabilities BB EBEEE M 22,067
Decrease in net assets BEEFEBRD 6,620
Decrease in equity attributable to IR S PR R
non-controlling interests 6,620
Decrease in total equity XA 6,620

The change did not have an impact on profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 or the Group’s operating, investing and
financing cash flows.
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144

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on the geographical zones of services
rendered in the PRC as follows:

(@  Southern Region includes the cities of Guangzhou,
Nanning, Sanya, Foshan, Zhongshan, Jiangmen,
Qingyuan, Zhaoging, Guilin, Wenchang, Huizhou, Wuzhou
and Cenxi;

(b) Eastern and Central Region includes the cities of
Changde, Hangzhou, Suzhou, Chongging, Ningbo,
Jiaxing, Nantong, Shaoxing, Quzhou, Nanchang,
Shanghai, Wuxi, Xuancheng, Zhenjiang, Huzhou, Nanjing,
Hengyang, Chuzhou, Yixing, Chizhou, Wenzhou, Huai’an,
Téizhou, Taixing, Taizhou, Longyou and Changsha;

(c)  Northern Region includes the cities of Baotou, Eerduosi,
Dalian, Beijing, Tianjin, Bazhou, Tangshan, Qingdao,
Baoding and Heze.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that changes in fair value of
investment properties, bank interest income, change in fair
value of financial assets designated as fair value through profit
or loss, share of profits of joint ventures, share of losses of
associates, net foreign exchange gains/losses, share-based
payment expenses, finance costs as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets designated as fair value through
profit or loss and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
other long-term payable, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Operating segments

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R B
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5. REHIER (&)

AL A 3
,%::E 7] DB

Eastern and

Southern Central Northern
Year ended 31 December 2018 Region Region Region Total
ERR
BZ2018E12 831 ALLEE ERHE EdihE 2 E Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%Tn AR%®Tx AR¥T=R
Segment revenue (note 6) SEpUE (FizEe) 252,648 706,286 64,077 1,023,011
Segment results DEREELE 63,157 116,679 15,914 195,750
Reconciliation: #k
Bank interest income RITFEHA 2,943
Fair value gains on investment BEMEN R TERE
properties 3,216
Net foreign exchange gains [ 1,431
Gain on disposal of financial assets ~ HEZAFEF AEEZ S/
at fair value through profit or loss BEZWHE 3,915
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMB AT 299
Gain on disposal of a joint venture  HHE—FRAELMEIE 1,450
Corporate expenses PERS (47,003)
Share-based payment expense e (5,660)
Share of profit of a joint venture [ElE—RE e ENE 2,895
Share of loss of associates i3l =N ) 53 @
Finance costs B RS RAR (1,833)
Profit before tax Br BRI 157,399
Segment assets DEVAE 639,417 770,433 41,771 1,451,621
Reconciliation: #HE -
Elimination of intersegment i SRRE FE M FE
receivables (648,337)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMRHEEE
assets 537,935
Total assets BERE

TREFEBMERAE

1,341,219
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Eastern and

Southern Central Northern
Year ended 31 December 2018 Region Region Region Total
ERK
BZ2018F 1231 ALFE ZENE ZhiE EiWE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Segment liabilities SEAE 274,606 341,047 18,975 634,628
Reconciliation: #Hik
Elimination of intersegment payables %185 25 e 1T 3408 (648,337)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMAIEEE
liabilities 748,978
Total liabilities B EnE 735,269
Other segment information HippIpERt
Net impairment losses recognised/ BT,/ (#E) H{E
(reversal) in profit or loss e EE 974 1,921 (4,567) (1,672)
Depreciation and amortisation nEREE
Unallocated RO 405
Segment nE 4,773 19,962 124 24,859
Investments in associates REENRNTE 3,175 - - 3,175
Investment in a joint venture R—REELENKRE - 4,412 - 4,412
Capital expenditure* BRRFL
Unallocated Fole 2,145
Segment D 9,280 30,445 235 39,960
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and * BB BIEAEMELRE HEYE -

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and

prepayments for acquisition of properties.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R B
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5. REHIER (&)

TR LR SN /g
KEDE (&)

Eastern and

Southern Central Northern
Year ended 31 December 2017 Region Region Region Total
EFR
BZE2017F12A31BIEEE EmME Erhith [ ZEiE FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®ETr ARETR
Segment revenue Gl 235,479 676,262 65,811 977,552
Segment results DEEE 65,061 122,194 11,823 199,078
Reconciliation: #k
Bank interest income RITFEHA 1,795
Fair value gains on investment BEMEN R TERE
properties 3,960
Net foreign exchange loss b F B 1% 88 (8,657)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale H&EEFE & RIEE 7 i
financial investments 1,125
Corporate expenses PEMAT (51,602)
Share-based payment expense AR FRF (2,495)
Reversal of share-based BRBRMEIRAZ
payment expense 12,981
Share of loss of an associate [EIE—KE & DR #E (111
Share of profit of joint ventures [EihA &t ERE 2,645
Finance costs IIEA (9,512)
Profit before tax B 8 A 149,207
Segment assets NEEE 439,460 351,424 13,006 803,890
Reconciliation: #HHk -
Elimination of intersegment D R A FUA
receivables (614,381)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMADIREE
assets 1,046,862
Total assets BERE 1,236,371

TREFEBMERAE
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ReEnHBER
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) KEDER (&)

Eastern and

Southern Central Northern
Year ended 31 December 2017 Region Region Region Total
ZRE
BE17F12 A3 BILFE EmitE ZhipR EitiE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTT ARETRT AR®TRT ARET:R

Segment liabilities SHEE 205,083 332,331 21,791 559,205
Reconciliation: #Hik
Elimination of intersegment Y5 E R N B

payables (614,381)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMRHEEE

liabilities 744,854
Total liabilities BERE 689,678
Other segment information HipahE e
Net impairment losses recognised ~ RERHEARRIERRFHE

in profit or loss 4,849 23,937 686 29,472
Depreciation and amortisation ER#H

Unallocated KOHE 62

Segment nE 4,939 21,210 139 26,288
Investment in an associate R mNRE 2,689 - - 2,689
Investments in joint ventures REETENRE - 5,020 - 5,020
Capital expenditure* EARZT

Unallocated KOHE 1,000

Segment DEp 18,554 6,378 57 24,989
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and * BARY BIERSYENRRE  IREWE -

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and A E MW ERTE RIE -

prepayments for acquisition of properties
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BEHHER @)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) &I (&)
The Group is mainly engaged in property management AREBEBKITEAMESTIBER  HIEER
business, sales assistance businesses and other businesses. REMER NREMIZERIBRE|H 7 AN
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue ERWES REEDNT
and results based on types of business:
Property Sale
management assistance Other
business businesses businesses Total
MEEBER R Hit ¥k @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AREFL AREFTL AREFTT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
(Mista) (f3Eb) (fsEc)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZE2018F12A31HILEE
Segment revenue ARzl G 948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011
Segment results S 171,591 14,646 9,513 195,750
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017TFE12A ALEE
Segment revenue A EME 910,941 43,187 23,424 977,552
Segment results DEEE 185,378 15,979 2,279) 199,078
Notes: BIsE
(@  The Group primarily provides property developers and property @ AEERXIZERMEERBIETREEZ

owners with a broad range of property management services
mainly to residential properties, commercial and government
buildings. Services provided by the Group include standard
property management services and ancillary services.

The Group provides property management service to property
developers for their sales centres. The services rendered by the
Group include cleaning, security and maintenance services for
their model houses and sales centres and the provision of
general assistance to facilitate the sales process of the
properties.

Other businesses comprise engineering services, catering
services and the sale of engineering spare parts.

BWMEEERY  ABOREEVE B
RARBRFET - NEBRHEOREBEER
EYEEHE RS REERT -

AEERMERRBHNEETLRERYE
ERR  AEBERENRBSEIEREE
I RERRLHER  RENEE AR
REBBHEHEBEN—MRIHE

Hib ¥ 0IETRRA -
TREIHME -

ERRS R HE

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)
Information about a major customer

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
was no revenue from transactions with a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

Geographical information

The Group’s total revenue is all generated in Mainland China
and the non-current assets are all located in Mainland China.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

REFTEHER (#)

ReESI (&)
EE—REFEEZEFMEN

HZE2018F K2017F 12 A1 HIEFER -
BEmEE —IMNIREFPNRZIE RSN ASE
BRI 10% 3 0A | o

h @ &

AEF B2 RN A A - MIERED
BEE IR BRI AR B A, o

Wi - At AR W

WaE T T
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREBTT

Revenue from contracts with customers KEEEA AW
Rendering of services RHRS 1,005,742 967,834
Sales of goods HEE R 17,269 9,718
1,023,011 977,552
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

6. Wz HMtWw AR WS #)

REFEFEHNWES
) CEBarFWmER

HBZ2018F 1231 BLLEE

Property Sales
management  assistance
Segments business business Others Total
AN MEEBER HHERBER Hit @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Type of goods or services EnsREER
Rendering of services RAERE 948,343 41,503 15,896 1,005,742
Sales of goods HEER - - 17,269 17,269
948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011
Geographical markets HETIS
Mainland China R A 948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011
Timing of revenue recognition xS TERI SRS
Revenue recognised over time RE KRRk 948,343 41,503 15,896 1,005,742
Revenue recognised at RE—REBERNE
a point in time - - 17,269 17,269
Total revenue from contracts RERPAKNAN G
with customers 948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. W& - HMtl AR WS #)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REBEFEHNNE &)

(Continued)

() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) i)y EnFk=ERGE)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from UTHIKRERFAELHO RS EDIE
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in BATH BRI EER

the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F 1231 HILLEE
Property Sales
management assistance
Segments business business Others Total
paxi| MEEBEY HHERBEYR Hity st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBTR ARBTR ARBT:R

Revenue from contracts REEEAHAMKE

with customers
External customers GNEE 948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011
Intersegment sales HEEEE 58,957 - 4,822 63,779
Intersegment adjustments DEbEAE K

and eliminations #5H (58,957) - (4,822) (63,779)
Total revenue from contracts KEREAY

with customers B 948,343 41,503 33,165 1,023,011
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wz HMtWw AR WS #)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EESHNWE &)
(Continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) i)y Errk=mERE)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRETIRARESHEEIANKE S
recognised in the current reporting period that were B O ABRSHUNAELABELT
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the RBFHRERNBHETER
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2018
2018 F
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Revenue recognised that was included in contract EEtAmEHRYNE A EN
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: BRI -
Property management services ES=SLE S 82,265

(ii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of property management service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within
45 days from the date of billing.

Sales assistance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within
45 days from the date of billing.

(i) BEHERE
ERAEBEHETOERRMNT -

TEHYEE IR

BHBEER RSB FEX
FE—RNEBELRERMEFT45ER
28 -

iR

BB AR IR AR5 B BB A = AX
RIE RN EHRERMREFT45BR
28 -
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)
Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from customer acceptance of delivered goods.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Yz - WA RS @)

EFEHAWE )

(ii)

BHEEE)

EmiHeE
BAORERE MR FER - FIA—
iR B PR RS B mAERT 30 £ 90
RAEIH -

MR2018F 12 A31H NEEEH T E
HNET(RBITHIHO KRBT RS
BRMT

RMB’000

AR®ETT

Within one year —FR 92,010
More than one year —FA -
92,010

All the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. W& - HMt AR WS @)

(Continued)
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEFTT
Other income Hebg A
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 2,943 1,795
Government grants IEg ey E 10,572 11,095
Rental income el A 4,652 2,575
Others Hih 2,331 67
20,498 15,532
Gains W s
Fair value gains on investment properties BEYEN N FERE 3,216 3,960
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERAFEFABZN SR
value through profit or loss/available BE/BESREED
for sale financial investments s 3,915 1,125
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 e F EE 1,431 -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture EE—REEDERE 1,450 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—RWBE LA (BFE34) 299 -
10,311 5,085
30,809 20,617
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRE AR HE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEHNBRHABES R (GTA) 538
(crediting): B :
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®T ARETT
Cost of services provided EIRERB A 728,781 674,806
Cost of goods sold BEEMEAR 12,125 5,909
Depreciation e 14 11,468 10,045
Amortisation of intangible assets B AE#H 20 13,796 16,305
Employee benefit expense EEBAMAXZ
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEREERESTTR
executive’s remuneration): N=Ed D
Salaries and other benefits S K2 H A AR F 353,227 284,361
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR 4& R & 24 5% 20,333 12,039
Share-based payment expenses R 5,592 (11,714)
379,152 284,686
Impairment of financial assets, net TRLVE EREFE
Net impairment losses (reversal)/ B 5 e AR Tk N e Uk
recognised of trade and ZBREESE
bills receivables (@), R F5E 22 (4,404) 22,431
Net impairment losses recognised of H th fE Y F I8
other receivables IEEBERERFHE 23 2,732 7,041
Minimum lease payments under KEHETHRERERIE
operating leases 8,592 7,535
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5 Al 357 B 4,678 2,250
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ % A FE Wz 15 (3,216) (3,960)
Rental income M UA 6 (4,652) (2,575)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses B3 (W), i8558 6 (1,431) 8,657
Bank interest income HRITHR BN 6 (2,943) (1,799)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEAFEGS ABRE 2
fair value through profit or loss/available & @& E FE4
for sale financial investments REZ e 6 (3,915) (1,125)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—ReLrEZNE (1,450) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RITB AR 2 W (299) -
Loss on disposal of items of LEYERBBIER®
property and equipment B8 60 7
Government grants* BT e Bh 6 (10,572) (11,095)

grants.
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Government grants include various subsidies received by the
Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government bodies. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these
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FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BTSRRI AT ¢
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREETIT
Interest on borrowings EESS 4,897 4,646
(Reversal of interest expenses)/Interest expense FtfEM R EMHEE L (FEFAX
imputed on consideration payable BmE),FBFEX (3,064) 6,221
Reversal of interest expense imputed on MRS HEE R MR A
non-current liabilities for cash-settled FERHBEENERY
share-based payments - (1,355)
1,833 9,512
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

9. EERRSITHRAEHM

RIBBMZAES EMARNT EHRRD - F
7R EER P28 383(1)(@) ~ (b) * () B () R A K
NE(REEEMRER) RO 25 WEN
REREZERRRBTHRAEHFHAT

follows:

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Fees we 7,856 4,134

Other emoluments: Hii<
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREDMN G 8,909 8,426
Equity-settled share option expense A BB R ERTE 68 1,228
Pension scheme contributions IRREETEIHER 88 93
9,065 9,747
16,921 13,881

On 20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company. Further details
of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBETHAEFM @)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(@ Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FREMNBYIERITESNESHT

during the year were as follows:

2018 2017
20185 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARBTET

Mr. Zhang Weilun R4 A 152 156
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PRIZE ST A 152 91
Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin PBRR R LA 152 91
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis R4 - 79
Mr. Yuan Boyin RIAREAE - 63
Mr. Wu Haibing RBELAE - 63
Mr. Huang An Xin =L E 152 38
608 581
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRNBEEMEMNB Y IERTESN
independent non-executive directors during the year e (20174 - &|) -
(2017: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERESTHAEHFM 2
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITES:  FPTESKES
and chief executive THAE
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
allowances and  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions remuneration
ge 2ER BEEE BResE
He BENAE BRERX A g0 Fot ]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARETR

2018 2018
Executive directors: WTEE:
Ms. Chen Zhuo BEL+ 1,355 1,848 5 23 3,231
Mr. Liang Bing 2R%E 1,355 1,848 5 23 3,231
Mr. Long Weimin BARELE 1,355 1,850 5 21 3,231
4,065 5,546 15 67 9,693
Non-executive directors: FRITEE
Mr. Wei Zhe BEEE 102 - 48 - 150
Ms. Wu Qimin RGFL 102 - - - 102
Mr. Zheng Dong" YREE" 102 - - - 102
306 - 48 - 354
Chief executive: BRTBAE
Mr. Liu Jian et 2,877 3,363 5 21 6,266
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBETHAEFM @)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITES:  FPTESKES
and chief executive (Continued) THRAE (&)
Salaries,  Equity-settled Pension
allowances and share option scheme Total
Fees  benefits in kind expense contributions remuneration
=) EniE BiRestE
e EMila BRERX i3 bl Ee
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT ARt  ARETRH

2017 20174
Executive directors: WTEE:
Ms. Chen Zhuo Bt 519 1,741 88 23 2,371
Mr. Liang Bing REfAE 519 1,74 88 23 2,371
Mr. Long Weimin EAREE 519 1,743 88 22 2,372
1,657 5,225 264 68 7,114
Non-executive directors: FRITEE
Mr. Wei Zhe HERE 104 - 776 - 880
Ms. Wu Qimin Rt 104 - - - 104
Mr. Zheng Dong* HRfE 103 - - - 103
Mr. Lam Yiu Por* R A 130 - 100 3 233
441 - 876 3 1,320
Chief executive: BRIBAE
Mr. Liu Jian Aerat 1,556 3,201 88 22 4,866
* On 4 May 2017, Mr. Lam Yiu Por resigned as executive * 201765 A4 8 - MEE R Sc EBHE
director of the Company. Mr. Zheng Dong was appointed RNABHITEEMECE L L2017
as an non-executive director of the Company on 5 January F1ASHEZETAKRQARERITE
2017. ES
There was no arrangement under which a director or the MEZENZTSITHRAERERNNE
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any KRB REEMFHHOLHE -

remuneration during the year.
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEEBEHEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRNEEREH EEBE =25FE&EaTT
directors and the chief executive (2017: three directors and the BABQROI7THF : Z2EFFRESTHA
chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in 8) HHFBEEN EXMiTo . REEFE
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the B—H(2017F : —B)RMIFEARARFEEX
remaining one (2017: one) highest paid employee who is neither ERSTHRAENRSHEEMFIESW
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: T

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EBEREWTE 1,320 881
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AR 15 18

1,335 899
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FEENIIEERSTHAERSHFEE AL
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following FENZB RN T -

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7 7T - 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD5,000,000 1,000,001 /7T & 5,000,000 7 7T 1 -
1 1
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11. INCOME TAX 11. FifBH
Provision for PRC corporate income tax (the “CIT”) has been HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE » AR EFRT
provided at the applicable income tax rate of 25% for the year BR([ERMEH]) BETRAEERH
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%) on the assessable X Hb EY B B A B B9 FE SR A A 4% 25% (2017
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China, except for F:25%)MERMEHENRE  ZARKE
those subsidiaries enjoyed lower tax rate for benefit. HMEREENHBARIRIN o
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the HRMEFENAEEBERZEHRFERS
financial statements as no assessable profit was derived from BB AR BEREFSAEFTEFNEBRIELR
Hong Kong during both years. B -
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current — Mainland China: BIHR — AREI A
Charge for the year FRLTH 53,980 60,810
Deferred tax (note 21) EERIE (B 21) (3,531) (10,891)
Total tax charge for the year FRBHRIEZ L 50,449 49,919
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective

11. FTBH (&)

RAVAER R EEARBR A EA IR
B 37 BR BRI R 5T B AR B S 2 B AR A0

rate is as follows: N
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Profit before tax B 25 A1) F8 157,399 149,207
Tax at the applicable tax rate REEMETENTIE 39,350 37,302
Profits attributable to joint ventures BEDE NS N A ENEFE
and associates (849) (662)
Expenses not deductible for tax e[S 6,139 8,763
Income not subject to tax BAERBIA (928) (4,391)
Tax losses not recognised RERBIIBBE 6,943 9,074
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or BEAMBERXTEREHREN
enacted by local authority BIEME - (39)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B AT B RO B TR B 18 (1,503) (300)
Withholding tax on distributable profits of AR [F R B B B A B A R
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries FEEFEINFL 1,297 1,138
Effect on opening deferred tax of TR BRAR S BRH IR A A TE A P 2
decrease in rates - (966)
Tax charge for the year FAMIBRH 50,449 49,919

The share of tax expense attributable to joint ventures
amounting to RMB849,000 (2017: RMB662,000), are included
in “Profits and losses of joint ventures” and “Profits and losses
of associates” in profit or loss.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group has applied an applicable rate of 5% since
the end of 2018 (2017: 5%). The Group will be liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DIVIDENDS 12. RE
During 2018, a dividend of HK5.0 cents per share in respect of R2018F A » AREIEEE EIRIH 2018
the year ended 31 December 2017 was declared by the F5 A HARRIMBRRBF K CHES
directors of the Company and approved in the Company’s E2017F 12 A1 B IEFEMNKR B AFAS5.0
annual general meeting on 25 May 2018. Dividend amounting Bl e R2018F7 A6 EEMNKRESEAA
to RMB33,984,000 was paid on 6 July 2018 (2017: Nil). 33,084,000 7T (20174 : &) o
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. B ARIZEREEEAELEER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 27
PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based BREABT SRV AFER QA a] T @R
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent A AEMTE  URFEANDBRITEER
for the year, and the weighted average number of ordinary hn o ¥ 9 #810,570,384 % (2017 4F
shares of 810,570,384 shares (2017: 798,146,378 shares) in 798,146,378 % )5t & -
issue during the year.
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on: HEGRERNZFTIENR TG EE
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity STESREREFTED
holders of the parent, used in the basic SARIEBRERE ARG
earnings per share calculation palbiE:! 96,088 90,549
Shares [idv)
Weighted average number of ordinary TESREAEFATANER
shares in issue during the year used in BEITE BT T
the basic earnings per share calculation 810,570,384 798,146,378

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did not include the
exercise of the share options of the Company since the exercise
price of the share options was higher than the average market
price of the Company’s shares during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

FEH E2018F K2017F 12 A31HIEF
ELORSTIE: B Reb I NE 3 WNEAN/NG oL il
BATE - RN ERENITEESNARF
f% (7 7 & = 2018 F & 2017412 A31 8 1
FEAKFIHITIHER -

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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166

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. MERRZE
Leasehold Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
BT HENEEE FEREERE RE EEIR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET TR ARET R ARET TR ARETTR ARETTR ARET TR
31 December 2018 20185128318
Cost KA
At 1 January 2018 R2018%E1 1A 20,327 5,960 26,746 10,449 936 64,418
Additions NE 1,330 6,173 4441 8,135 - 20,079
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Wk B AR (17 33) - 670 639 9% - 1,407
Disposals e - 1) (498) (1,312 - (1,831)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE-FHBLR (W2 34) - (2,669) (528) - (936) (4,133)
At 31 December 2018 120181231 B 21,657 10,113 30,800 17,370 - 79,940
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE
M 1 January 2018 Ro018E1 A1B (3,139) (3,387) (17,236) (5,369) - (20,131)
Depreciation provided ENFARINE
for the year (881) (3,164) (4,592) (2,831) - (11,468)
Disposals HE - 21 474 1,020 - 1,515
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) WE-FHBNA (W7 34) - 5M 136 - - 677
At 31 December 2018 1R2018E 12 A 318 (4,020) (5,989) (21,218) (7,180) - (38,407)
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2018, net of R201851 418 -
accumulated depreciation NB2:AE 17,188 2,573 9,510 5,080 936 35,287
At 31 December 2018, net of R2018E12A318
accumulated depreciation Tk E:E 17,637 4,124 9,582 10,190 - 41,533
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

14. MERRE @)

Leasehold Fumiture Motor ~ Construction
Buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
B HENEEE FEREEZE e ERIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
31 December 2017 2017128318
Cost %8
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H 17,933 3,124 25,671 10,111 2,036 58,875
Additions NE 2,394 205 4,792 2,005 1,531 10,927
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHBAF - - 9 - - 9
Transfer B - 2,631 - - (2,631) -
Disposals HE - - (8,726) (1,667) - (6,399)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31 A 20,327 5,960 26,746 10,449 936 64,418
Accumulated depreciation ZE
A 1 January 2017 Ro01TE1 A 1R (1,766) (2,236) (12,622 (4,092 - (20,716)
Depreciation provided for the year FRFEHRITE (1,373) (1,151) (5,360) (2,161) - (10,045)
Disposals HE - - 746 884 - 1,630
A 31 December 2017 Ro017E 12831 B (3,139) (3,387) (17,236) (5,369 - (09,131)
Net carrying amount REE
At 1 January 2017, net of Ro17E1 A1H -
accumulated depreciation MR EHE 16,167 888 13,049 6,019 2,036 38,159
At 31 December 2017, net of R2017TE12A31 8
accumulated depreciation MR E5tHE 17,188 2573 9,510 5,080 936 35,287
PRIAREEERAT
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B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REWE

2018 2017

20184 2017 £F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 BERmEE 163,592 139,660

Additions NE 13,386 19,972
Additions from acquisition of W —RWB R MARE

a subsidiary (note 33) (K1a#33) 4,190 -

Net gain from fair value adjustment N EFHER W FEE 3,216 3,960

Carrying amount at 31 December Mm12 A31 BEREE 184,384 163,592

Certain investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, the details of which are included in note 37.

The Group’s investment properties are all commercial properties
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have
determined that all the investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property. Investment properties are stated at fair value,
which has been determined with reference to the valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, using the market approach, as at 31 December 2018.
The fair value represents the amount of market value at which
the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction at the date of valuation. The Group’s
management had discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results on a regular basis when the
valuation is performed.

Each year, the Group’s property manager and the chief financial
officer decide, after approval from the audit committee, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s property
manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Included in the completed investment properties were certain
buildings with a carrying value of RMB450,000 (2017:
RMB450,000), of which the property certificates have not been
obtained as at 31 December 2018.

The Group’s investment properties with a carrying value of
RMB93,122,000 (2017: RMB91,410,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31

December 2018 (note 27).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

15. REWE &)

=T HEEAR®450,0007T(20174F : AR
¥ 450,000 WEFEFAEERIREY
2 ER2018F 12 A1 B AMBREDE

NEBIREE A RH93,122,0007T (20174 -
AR#91,410,0007T) I EMEE B
BAREBER2018F 12 A 31 HER K —AZE
TRVE R ER (Fisk27) »

DNHEER

TREAXEEREMEN R FEFTER

& -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
FEANTHER2018F12A31 AW A FENE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SERMEN  BEATER EXTIEER
HE BWAHE BWARE Total
(B-F18) (B=F) (B=PE) Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%Tx
Recurring fair value U TIEEMEEUERFE
measurement for: e
Investment properties KEWE - - 184,384 184,384
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
FRNTEER 201712 A31 BN AFEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERTISE)  EAUHEE  EXTAH
WwE BARE REARE Total
(E-B  (BzE)  (F=E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR
Recurring fair value ATIEERMEEERTE
measurement for: ATE
Investment properties AW - - 163,592 163,592

PRIAREEERAT
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B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

15. REWE &)
NPEBHR (&)

FAF-EBREE_ERZELENTE
AAENERE  TEATEAEEAZ=ER
KU F=EREH (2017 F : &) -

AT RIREYFEGHEMRGEERTD RMAEER

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: i A SR MRS
2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBF T
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
fRERTS EATTEERARIE g
Residential properties Direct comparison Market unit price RMB9 to RMB9 to
FEWE method-based per square metre RMB23 RMB24
market observable (the higher of the
transaction of and market unit price,
similar properties the higher of the
and adjusted to fair value)
reflect the conditions
of the subject property
HEERE — RE ¥ AKTIS AR¥OTE AR¥ITZE
mis FREOMENTER  BUER(TSEL AR¥23T AR¥247T
RS AAE L AR R B EBgHE  QNFE
ROMERMMR Hm)

A significant increase in the market unit price per square metre
would result in a significant increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

16. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF

PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deposits of
RMB7,958,000 (2017: RMB14,738,000) in relation to the
acquisition of properties situated in Mainland China paid to
property developers. The acquisition of certain properties was
completed during the current year and the related prepayments
of RMB6,874,000 (2017: RMB18,089,000) were transferred to

investment properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

17. GOODWILL 17. B2
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January B A1 B ZKA R EREFE 105,560 104,630
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) W EEKT B A ) (K5t 33) 49,896 930
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 712 A 31 B 2N LR EE(E 155,456 105,560

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to a group of communities managed by the Group collectively
as the property management cash-generating unit (the
“Property Management CGU”).

The recoverable amount of the Property Management CGU has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is of 15% (2017: 16%) per annum.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2% (2017: 2%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period for the Property
Management CGU are based on management’s estimate of
cash inflows/outflows including revenue, operating expenses
and working capital requirements. The assumptions and
estimation are based on the past performance of the Property
Management CGU and the management’s expectation of
market development. The management of the Group believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions of
the value-in-use calculation would not cause the carrying
amount to exceed recoverable amount of the Property
Management CGU.

2 AR E R

BEEHAHMBRNBECSIEEARE
EEN TR SEAMEEERSES
B (MEERRSELEM]) -

MEEIER S EE BN IKRESFERIEMS
RAEEFTEET HTEERRBLERER
ERERFHR M BEBEEENESRETE
Al e RZIRE REFEHIRBEF 15% (2017
F:16%)WITHRE - AFHRBHNREESR
S0 2%(2017F : 2% )FIBEREEE o

BEHEMEEERSELBUNRERE
FRADERERBHRSRA RO
i BiEWE  REFAXREERER R
BREEFENDXERRGELEME
ERBELEEEHMSEROES - XEME
EEERAEREEFEINEERRNET
AR T eE R ERBE K
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR E

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. & (®)

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of the value in use of the cash-
generating unit, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would
cause the carrying value, including goodwill, of the cash-
generating unit to exceed the recoverable amount.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
Property Management CGU for 31 December 2018. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Operating profit — Operating profit are based on the average
values achieved in the three years preceding the beginning of
the budget period. The operating profit for the Property
Management CGU is within a range of 21% to 31%.

Operating expense — The value assigned to the key
assumptions reflects past experience and the management’s
commitment to maintain the Group’s operating expenses to an
acceptable level.

Perpetuity growth and discount rates — Perpetuity growth rate
is based on published industry research. Discount rate
represents the current market assessment of the risks specific
to the CGU taking into consideration the time value of money
and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate
calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group
and its operating segments and is derived from the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the property management industry and the
discount rates are consistent with external information sources.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
management of the Group determined that no impairment of
goodwill should be recognised for the Property Management
CGU.
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

18. REELENRE

2018 2017

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREFT

Share of net assets JE(hEEFE 4,412 5,020
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: REFESLDPERMFBOT -

31 December 2018

201845 12H31H

Percentage of
Place of UTRENEDL
Paid-up  registration Ownership Voting Profit

Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
£ BREX BIREELE FiERRR REE  FESE IEEER
B maERENERS RMB1,500,000  PRC/Mainland China 60 (@) 60  Provision of property

AR AT (‘Ningoo Disal’) management services
BT EERENE RS AR¥1,500,000 B/ RE R RALMEE RS

BRAR(EREE])

TREFEBMERAE
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31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REETXEMNIRE (&)
(Continued)
31 December 2017 2017F 12 A31 H
Percentage of
Place of NTEENBE DL
Paid-up  registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
&g BREX EEkEFnE FERER R ME E FEXEH
BRTHERENERSE RMB1,500,000  PRC/Mainland 60 (a) 60  Provision of property
AR A7 (“Ningbo Disai”) China management services
BRTAELENERS AR®1,500000  FE/FEAM RENEEERY
BRAR([EREE])
ERAHEEREERDNA RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 35 () 35 Provision of real estate
(*Ningbo Yongdu”) China agency services
ERAHBEEHEARAT  ARE1,000000  FE/REMNM REFHERERS
(1= RKE))
The above interests in joint ventures are indirectly held by the FHlAEErERERIRAARRIEERS -
Company.

RIFERABNAGER  HEED

(@)  According to the Articles of Association of Ningbo Disai,

5

decisions on relevant activities require the unanimous El’]i&ﬂ&zziﬁéﬁu%ﬁ}\ AR T Mk
consent and approval of the equity holders. Therefore, Ko B BRBMETARIERE
Ningbo Disai is accounted for as a joint venture of the HE G ERE -

Group.

() According to the Articles of Association of Ningbo (b)) REZFEKEMNABER  HETH
Yongdu, decisions on relevant activities require the El’]i&ﬂ&zziﬁéﬁu%ﬁ}\ BUERET Bt
unanimous consent and approval of the equity holders. Ao AL IR KEB T ABRTIEARSE
Therefore, Ningbo YongDu is accounted for as a joint HE G ERE -

venture of the Group.

Ningbo Disai, which is considered a material joint venture of the BRHBHEGAAEEEAEGELE  GEF
Group provides property management services in Mainland B A IR Y EEEIRTES - WIAEREARR o

China and is accounted for using the equity method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18.

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Ningbo Disai, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the financial statements:

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

REETENKRE @)

TRERBLABNMEZHBER - KT
SRR E R MARY B BEHRER DA
[EREE)

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 10,654 9,648
Other current assets HMmsh&E 1,763 233
Current assets mMENEE 12,417 9,781
Non-current assets EmEEE 295 39
Current liabilities mENBE (5,345) (3,549)
Net assets BEFE 7,367 6,271
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HALBERASEPEMNERLEER

in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBERFTERELA 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the investment FHERREE 4,412 3,792
Revenue & 14,987 11,600
Interest income FLEMA 114 95
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R 5 (31) (29)
Interest expense FBERAXZ - @)
Tax A (1,426) (1,471)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRAFERZERALLEE

for the year 4,825 4,415
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

18. RS ¥ LENEE w)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information THREBENEBREFEBEANSSDED

of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually material: & ER s -
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Share of the joint ventures’s loss JEIEEEEFEER
for the year - (4)
Share of the joint ventures’s total JEIEEE X2 HEEAR
comprehensive loss - (4)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s KEBREEDLEKREN
investment in the joint ventures fBEREE - 1,228
19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. R—KBHEQATNRE
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARKEFT
Share of net assets EILEEFE 3,175 2,689
Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows: AEBBERNTNFFBLT
31 December 2018 2018 12H31H
Registered/  Place of Percentage of
paidup registration ownership interest  Principal
Name capital  and business attribute to the Group  activities
B/ HEMRIR rEBELEEA
A% BRER EEuE BREot FEER
BMEXEEERAH RMB7,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 40 Provision of sports venue
(“Aoye Sports”) leasing services
ENBREBEBRAR ARKE7,0000007t  FE/HRERM RUEESHRERY
(TR%85])
BRI BAHELEERER AR RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 49 Provision of business
(“Zhong Ao Zhong’) management services
BRPRPHELCEERERAR AR#1,0000007T B/ RERLH, RUBEEERS
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

19. R—XEE QN TMNRE (&)

31 December 2017 2017912 A31 H

Registered/  Place of
paid up  registration

Percentage of

ownership interest  Principal

Name capital  and business attribute to the Group  activities
Bift/ MR REEREEEA
£ BREAR FEumE ERaolt FEER
BMBEEEAR (" Aoye Sports”) RMB7,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 40 Provision of sports venue
services
ENRXBEERAR(RERE]) ARET7,00000070  HE/HERM REBESHEERS

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

TRHEPAEENYEARNLIEBIEA

of the Group’s associates that are not individually material: BRI E R
2018 2017
2018 5§ 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year JEAE F BN B E IR 4) (111)
Share of the associates’ total JE(REEE A RIB 2 HEE
comprehensive loss (C)] (11
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBEMNEE RN FIRER
investments in associates HBERTE 3,175 2,689
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31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BMILEE
Acquired
property Software
management and
contracts trademark Total
FREXS ¥ %
BEEYN BHEREE Mt
31 December 2018 2018412 H 31 H RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®Tn AR¥T=R

At 1 January 2018: 7R2018F1 18 :

Cost P AR 109,079 4,812 113,891

Accumulated amortisation BN (18,508) (547) (19,055)
Net carrying amount FRENFE 90,571 4,265 94,836
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of M2018F 1 A1 HEA -

accumulated amortisation Ik 2ty 90,571 4,265 94,836
Additions NE - 752 752
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) W EE —RMIE AT (H17E33) 9,045 - 9,045
Amortisation provided during the year RNt iR 85

(note 7) (Hit7) (13,173) (623) (13,796)
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F12 A31H 86,443 4,394 90,837
At 31 December 2018: W20184F12 4318 :

Cost B 118,124 5,564 123,688

Accumulated amortisation BNy (31,681) (1,170) (32,851)
Net carrying amount RS E 86,443 4,394 90,837
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. B EE#®)

Acquired
property Software
management and
contracts trademark Total
FrERS ¥
EEAH wHREE 1ast
31 December 2017 201712 A31H RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
At 1 January 2017: R2017%F1 A1H :
Cost BN 109,039 - 109,039
Accumulated amortisation ER g (2,750) - (2,750)
Net carrying amount IREFE 106,289 - 106,289
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of 20171 A1 AR -
accumulated amortisation R Rty 106,289 - 106,289
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HE BT B A =) 40 - 40
Additions INE - 4,812 4,812
Amortisation provided during the year Nt tY
(note 7) (K1z7) (15,758) (547) (16,305)
At 31 December 2017 W2017F12 A31H 90,571 4,265 94,836
At 31 December 2017: R2017F12H318 :
Cost P AR 109,079 4,812 113,891
Accumulated amortisation 2t (18,508) (547) (19,055)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 90,571 4,265 94,836
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B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

21. EERIBEE B&
EREERIBAE/(BE)NEHMT -

EERIEEE (BfE)

Depreciation
Impairment Fair value Withholding allowance in
provisionfor ~ change of tax on excess of
trade investment  Intangible undistributed related
receivables  properties assets earnings depreciation Total
BBRE
ESRMEE REMED KEABBR  WENEE
HERE OAVEEE BREE B ik o
At 31 December 2017 72017 F12 A31 H
As previously reported EHZR 23,357 (139) (22,643) (2,104) - (1,529)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 [RGB BB 28]
L7 6,355 - - - - 6,355
At 1 January 2018 (restated) 201851 A1A (EE3) 29,712 (139) (22,643) (2,104) - 4,826
Credited/(charged) to profit (note 11) REFEF A/ (318 (Kiz11) (434) (804) 3,293 963 513 3,531
Acaisition of subsidiaries (note 33)  YxBER B2 7 (f3£33) - (543) (2,261) - - (2,804)
At 31 December 2018 20184512 431 A 29,278 (1,486) (21,611) (1,141) 513 5,553
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 21. EEBBEE BB
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continued) EEFRIEEE (AR #E)
Depreciation
Impairment Fair value Withholding  allowance in
provisionfor  change of taxon excess of
trade  investment Intangible  undistributed related
receivables  properties assets gamings  depreciation Total
BRRNTE  REVED AEDERN BREENE
RERE DQTERY EVAE BN ORERE @t
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 16,375 (299) (26,564) (1932 - (12,420)
Credited/(charged) to proft (note 11) Bzt A/ (F1k) (HizE 11) 6,982 160 3,921 (172) - 10,891
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A31H 23,357 (139) (22,643 (2,104) - (1,529

For the purpose of the financial statement presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

WU HRREINER - ETEEHRBAEENR
BECDHE AT AMMEHERENBREA
SEIREIBAER DN

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B S AR R IR A 30,929 24,530
the consolidated statement of REFIBEEFE
financial position
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE B IS AR R FERH (25,376) (26,059)
the consolidated statement of T IE B & FE
financial position
5,553 (1,529)
FREREEERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 21. EEBBEEE BE @

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

EERREE (BE) @)
RFLATIE A R EILBIREE -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
20185 2017 4
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARKET T
Tax losses not recognised for RBLIEETR A & B R
deferred tax assets HiTEE 18 114,952 108,327

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
arising in Mainland China could be carried forward for a period
of five years to offset against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above item as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above item can be utilised.

At 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities of RMB1,141,000
(2017: RMB2,104,000) have been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. Pursuant to a resolution of the
board of directors of the Company, these subsidiaries will not
distribute any earnings derived up to 31 December 2015 and
75% of earnings from 1 January 2016 onward will not be
distributed. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
RMB171,025,000 (2017: RMB165,837,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

22. ESRURERERREE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 FF 2017 4

12831 H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARETIT

Trade and bills receivables S RWGIE KRR ER 293,676 268,961
Less: Impairment allowance W R E R (85,850) (78,029)
207,826 190,932

Trade and bills receivables mainly arise from property
management service income. The credit period is generally 45
days for property owners and property developers upon the
issuance of demand notes. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management and credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the date of demand note,
net of loss allowance is as follows:

B RUMFENERREEZREMEEER
RIS - RBFBAEE LK XX 0D
XERBNEEN-—RR4H - AEEF
SR EREERUGIREFBREE - AR
VEEEZBPFNREEERR o BHERR
mEAEEEEMRE  MEFPHEERE
QB —R - SN LRl AR EE
ZRBFANEBREERRZTIREFE
W AT EEAETNERERR - BHE
WHREBRE -

\

RREER - BEFRMNZANAENES
FEWEIE R B E IR B B R H R R D
MranF

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4F

12HA31H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETIT

Within 30 days 30HA 20,321 46,480
Over 30 days and within 90 days H@E30B X0 BEA 28,386 34,725
Over 90 days and within 180 days @0 H K180 H N 51,929 37,654
Over 180 days and within 365 days HiE180H M 365HIN 53,847 54,585
Over one year BiE—F 53,343 17,488
207,826 190,932
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

22.

ESEWRERERESE 2

B ZRKFIAREREBREERENZEH M
R @

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 FF 2017 4F

12A31H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETF T
At beginning of year F1 (78,029) (56,027)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 HNE A B mE 4R (12,225) -

FORA T

At beginning of year (restated) F)(&E5) (90,254) (56,027)
Impairment loss, net (note 7) RIEE BT (it 7) 4,404 (22,431)
Write-off b€ - 429
At 31 December 2018 R 2018412 31 H (85,850) (78,029)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

184

HZ2018F12A31BHILELFEET B
B 7 R 25 ZE BI 56 9 95 18 TORIE

REHRE B RRAREREETRED T -
U 8HEMERERE - BBXDNERARR
UEBBREA 2 EF P 23R4 5 HE H H &
BEE (AIEPER) - Lt BERRSA KN
BR - EBERHERNHRE RSN ARA
HEE - RN RGBSR IERNE
BRAFER - —RME - BZRKFAN
AR —F R BAXRNRHINIT/EE A
T UAMIES o

TREIAEEERBBEREAENE SR
RENEERRER

M 2018F12A31H

Less than 6to 12 Over

6 months months 1 year Total

PR6MEA 6Z12EA BB1F @gt
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBEX 16% 26% 47% 29%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRI 4 & (AREFT) 119,548 72,883 101,245 293,676
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  JBEAEEEB(ARETT) 18,912 19,036 47,902 85,850
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

Included in the above provision for the impairment of trade and
bills receivables, which was measured based on incurred credit
losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 December was a provision for
individually impaired trade and bills receivables of
RMB78,029,000 with a carrying amount before provision of
RMB78,029,000.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at 31
December 2017 that are past due but not considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

22 EFEWFRERERERE #)

BZE2017FE128A31BLEEFR B
S ERIFE 395 E T RE

MW12A318 - L8 5 ERETE K B E
BEREBEDRES S EREIRE
ELFEEBIE HeREREREZS
FE W R TE I B W R iR A R & 78,029,000 T K
BE HARBENNEEEABARYE
78,029,000 7T, ©

R2017 F12 A31 BT R AEE SR
FRHIBENRENE S EWHIE N ERE
EBRERRITTOT

31 December
2017
2017 4F

12 H31H
RMB’000
ARETFT

Within 90 days 90 B A
HB#E90H X180 B 37,654
HBiB180H X365 HA 54,585
Over one year FEA—F

Over 90 days and within 180 days
Over 180 days and within 365 days

69,720

17,488

179,447

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and bills receivables
approximates to their fair value due to their relatively short
maturity terms.

ERHTERENEEFRERS NREP
BRE - REFOMER RGO o

EEMEERENBUKKIARES 2 EAREH
EREFBETHENBYITFER - ERNBE
B ARREERAANBREEERE
BEXRE  BUBERAEFERIEELGTE
AIZE395RIE TR B B - sz F AR
AR 2 EE -

HREERBEEE - E S RYGRIE R E
WREMREERE QA FEMES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

23. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

23. AFIAEREAEWKFRIER

RECEIVABLES
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
12831 H 12 4318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®ETT
Payment on behalf of customers to REEPRABEEHERMNR
utility suppliers 78,948 57,227
Prepayments TR FRIE 49,679 24,580
Deposits paid to utility suppliers MAREEHEERZINZS 19,352 17,132
Taxes recoverable G dEEreE 6,076 864
Other receivables H fth EURGRIR 69,104 23,210
223,159 123,013
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE S (26,651) (10,723)
Total et 196,508 112,290
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HinEWRIE R A EEENEEFIT -

receivables are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
At beginning of year F7)

As previously reported SR FT 2 3 (10,723) (4,800)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FNE BB ISR 2R (13,196) -
FOWHTE
At beginning of year (restated) FY)(LEF) (23,919) (4,800)
Impairment loss, net (note 7) BB IEFEE (it 7) (2,732) (7,041)
Write off Biii§i= - 1,118

(26,651) (10,723)
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23.

24,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
bidding deposits for contracts and deposits with suppliers.
Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.
The loss rate applied where there are no comparable
companies as at 31 December 2018 ranged from 1.6% to
30%.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

An analysis of the cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

23.

24,

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

EAAREREMEWRRIE®)

GREEMERZFBITEAAERS A4
R RIEEEZE - BHEEEBEZ
EAREBEMES BELEEREBERLG
Ao BEERBREERFEERAZRURMRE
BT AR 0 B 9 % 2R 4 AR R B0 TEDRI © 742018
F12A31H REEATELEARNER
THEANEEENT1.6%230% °

RERRLEEY
HERALEEMOA M -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 2017 £

12831 H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AREET T

Cash and bank balances IRE MIRIT4E 386,486 448,806
Time deposits TFHTFER 29,309 35,000
415,795 483,806

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB358,782,000 (2017: RMB305,093,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The Group collects deposits from certain community residents
to establish daily repair and maintenance funds in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.

RIEHR » REBUAREAFENE SR
REeEEYW A ARE358,782,0007T (2017
F: AR®305,093,0007T) ° ARBEAA]LA
BRABAEMER A - BIEPEAH
INEEFIRAIREE  SERMNESER
T ASEEBEEBEREETINEERK
ROTARBH B AHME -

AEBERBEPEMEBRAUERAE THER
FREERS - WRIHABRERREES -

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

24,

25.

188

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

All of the deposits collected are required to be kept in
designated bank accounts under the name of the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group although the deposits collected and
the related interest income belong to the community residents.
Pursuant to the property management agreements between the
Group and the community residents, the withdrawal and use of
the funds are subject to approval by the community residents.
As the monies maintained for daily repair and maintenance
funds are not controlled by the Group, they are not recorded as
bank balances by the Group. As at 31 December 2018,
RMB12,516,000.00 (2017: RMB9,598,000.00) are kept in the
daily repair and maintenance funds on behalf of the community
residents.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances and pledged
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

24,

25.

BERBEEEEY &)

BEMM SRS RABAERA T BLRE
RETHER - FTEMBEIRSHIBNAEEE
BB ARMBETAETRITERS - B
AEBEGREERIINDEEE RS @ 17
BEFEAESAGLREERIE - ARTFER
ER B HERRERESNFAIERER TG
WM TAHAEB LR EEITES - H20184F
12A31H ERRHEEERB AR
12,516,000.00 7L (2017 : A R &
9,598,000.0070)F A B H#HENREES °

RITHSEREHRITERF L ZHH K
REAE - RE RBITHEB R ERRITLE
BT TF N T R O Re SR (S B I E AV IR
17 °

B 7 EARIE
RIWEHF - RREERAENE AR
EHBRE AT

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 2017 &

12831 H 12 H31 H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREETIT

Within 60 days 60HA 39,312 30,938
Over 60 days and within 180 days HE60H K180 H N 3,339 8,445
Over 180 days and within 365 days @180 & 365 HA 2,999 3,978
Over one year Bilm—F 2,037 1,604
47,687 44,965

The trade payables are interest-free and normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days.

The fair values of trade payables approximate to their carrying
amounts due to their relatively short term maturity.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HittENSFERESTER
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 &
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARKBTR

Contract liabilities BREE @ 92,010 -

Receipts on behalf of community RAREERRLERES
residents for utilities Uk 161,287 128,671
Received in advance TEMFRIE 188 82,572
Accruals FEETE 66,339 60,283
Deposits received B L ® 57,458 63,017
Other payables Hub g E (b) 16,386 10,351
Other Payables for Option (note 28) H fth B e E A~ 70 (B 28) (b) 21,415 22,155

Amounts due to non-controlling B — KB R A FEHEAR
equity holders of a subsidiary A ARKIE 10,241 5,033
Other tax payables HE M EMRIA 8,008 13,880
433,332 385,962
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

()

190

26. EMENSFERETER &)

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and @ F20184F 12 A31H K&20184F1 A1 H
1 January 2018 are as follows: MENBBENFBOT :
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
2018 F 20184
12A31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Short-term advances received from B E R0
customers
Property management services YEEERE 92,010 82,265

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
to deliver property management services. The increase in
contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the provision of property management services
at the end of the year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s other payables
and accruals included amounts due to non-controlling
equity holders of a subsidiary which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Except for Other Payables for Option, other payables are
non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three
months.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. st ER1TER

2018 2017
20185 20175
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000

BIRAIE (%) HER ARWTR EENE©%) MR ARETRT

Current Ik
Bank loans — secured RITEN — BEF 4.35 2019 20,000 4.35 2018 23,000
20195 2018
4,57 2019 30,000 - - -
2019
Current portion of non-current  JEENEAE R MEIEIESH  HIBOR+1.5 2019 20,382  HIBOR+1.5 2018 19,276
loans — unsecured - A ERRTEE 2019 ERROAE 20184
FEE+15 KEED
70,382 42,276
Non-current JEENH
Bank loans — unsecured ROED — EIEHE HIBOR+1.5 2020-2021 41,459  HIBOR+1.5 2019-2021 58,693
EBRTEE  2020%5Z ERROAE  2019FZ%
FEE+15 2021 5 KEE415 20214
111,841 100,969
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Analysed into: =K
Bank loans repayable: BRATHREENRITEN :
Within one year or —FRHIREK 70,382 42,276
on demand
In the second year E-F 20,610 19,355
Inthe third to fifth years, SE=ZFR%F 20,849 39,338
inclusive (REEEME)
111,841 100,969

IR <)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27.
(Continued)

The Group’s bank loans of RMB20,000,000 (2017:
RMB23,000,000) were secured by the pledges of the Group’s
assets with carrying values at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 as follows:

FTESRITERE)

K& BB R 1TE KA R 20,000,000
(2017 £ - /\Eﬂzzaooo,ooom LA 8 2R
£ B 20184 12 A 31 H %2017 F 12 A 31
B RPBRMEMNEEIEAER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 £

12A31H 12 A31 H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B o AR¥TRT ARBTE

Investment properties B

15 93,122 91,410

In addition, Hangzhou Anjia’s non-controlling equity holder #M
mEEEZERFPLERAF (“Hangzhou Anju”) guaranteed
certain of the Group’s bank loans up to RMB30,000,000 (2017:
Nil) as at the end of the reporting period at nil consideration.

As at 31 December 2018, all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB except that unsecured borrowings
amounting to RMB61,841,000 (2017: RMB77,969,000) were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowing balances of the Group bore interest at
floating rates, except for bank borrowings of RMB50,000,000
at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB23,000,000) that bore
interest at fixed rates.

The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

1 92 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

Pursuant to the Agreements as disclosed in Note 4 to the
financial statements, the non-controlling equity holders of
Zhejiang Yongcheng had a put option to require the Group to
acquire the remaining 30% equity interests in Zhejiang
Yongcheng in four tranches prior to the year 2020. The
considerations are contingent and will be adjusted based on the
future financial performance of Zhejiang Yongcheng and
capped at RMB22,500,000 for each tranche. In each of 2017
and 2018, the Group further acquired a 7.5% equity interest in
Zhejiang Yongcheng, respectively. Since the Group did not
have present ownership interests in the 15% equity interests in
Zhejiang Yongcheng before the non-controlling equity holders
exercised the buy-out option, the Group recorded the 15%
equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng owned by the non-
controlling equity holders as the non-controlling interests in the
financial statements. The buy-out option amount was classified
as a financial liability at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and the
changes in the amount of the option were recognised in profit
or loss. This equity interest redemption option granted to non-
controlling equity holders of a subsidiary is a financial liability
and separated into current and non-current portions (“Other
Payables for Option”).

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

Hitt RMEN R

BB B HRERMTAMBEE 2S00 )
IR IEIERE R E ARBR LIRS
SKZN 2 (8] 52 2020 £F A 25 P4 #E )R8 U B T oK
FRER TR 30% e - REEBAME - ik
PRI Sk B R R SR AR IR T LA AR - &t
KR A AR 22,500,0007T © 12017 4
K o018 F & F  ANEE D A B W I K
FXHI7.5% I HE c RN FEIERER A AT
U R RT - AN B IR A 30 48 AT K AR Y
15% RIEF A R - WASEE DR HR
KPS IR ER T B AT B LK)
15% IR iR sk EIEIE it 25 - W ERREE
MR20184F & 2017F 12 A31H D EA S 7
BE ZPESENEHEANIEZAER -
ZET KRB RARFERESEE AR
BEDHEASRABEL S AR RIER
HAER o ([ HAtn AR FRIA D) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR
Shares [iE)
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary HKDO0.01
shares each
ZEBREE BREE
0.0138 7T
HK’000
FE&TT
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January 2018 and »2018F 118K
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE -
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H 794,544,000 7,945
Shares issued (note (a)) BEITIRG (@) 8,434,000 84
Shares cancelled (note (b)) B ARG (M3t (b)) (372,000 )
At 31 December 2017 and MR2017F12 A31 B X
1 January 2018 201841 A1H 802,606,000 8,026
Shares issued (note (a)) BT (FE () 8,500,000 85
At 31 December 2018 MR2018F 12 A31H 811,106,000 8,111
2018 2017
20184 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE -
Ordinary shares Rl
At 1 January w—H—H 6,619 6,549
Shares issued 2T M 70 73
Shares cancelled BEEE D - )
At 31 December M®12A31H 6,689 6,619

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. B4 (&)

Shares (Continued) B0 (&)

(@)  During the year 2017 and 2018, 8,434,000 and 8,500,000 @ 2017FK2018F RN ' B RIRIER S
shares, respectively, were issued and granted to the SEENETEI (MH:E30) MRBEITRET
eligible employees under the share award scheme (note 8,434,000 fi% % 8,500,000 f% fi% 15 ¥ &
30) at nil consideration. BILES -

(b)  During the year 2016, 372,000 shares were repurchased (b) 20164 A+ 372,000 % B 1 E B =12
but not yet cancelled which were recognised as treasury AR AT 0 R2016F 12 A31 HIER
shares at 31 December 2016 , and have been cancelled BEBSBEG - WER2017F1 A11H
on 11 January 2017. FEEH o

Treasury shares EFRS

A summary of movements in the Company’s treasury shares is AKRa|EFROOESMENT -

as follows:

Nominal

Number of value of
ordinary HKDO0.01
shares each
TEREB BREE
0.0178 7T

HK’000

TETT

At 1 January 2017 R201741 818 (372,000) )

Shares cancelled B D 372,000 3

At 1 January 2018 and R2018F1H1H K

31 December 2018 2018412 A31H - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75k B

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

30. SHARE OPTION AND SHARE AWARD

SCHEME

The Company — Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Company on 20 April
2015 and 10 July 2015 for the purposes of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees of the Group, and will expire
on 20 April 2020 and 10 July 2020 respectively. Under the
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company is authorised
to grant options to the directors and eligible employees to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Share options do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme are as

30. ERER RO R E

2

-1

RAT]—EBRARRERNBRES

B ARESpIERERE ([518)) iRk
KARHR2015%F4 A208 k201597 A 10
BBBARERRN  UAAEBNEE M
EEREEBREREEAEN TSR
20204 4 A20H K& 2020%7 A10 8 Him °
RIBFTE X AREESREEETEER
AENREERIE  EZS
Bt o RERR RN SO T 15 B A 2 AR B

ERE-

REBFTEI R BN FBNT -

follows:
Category of Exercise price
grantees Date of grant per share Vesting period Exercisable period
AR AER A BRITEE HEH A FITELE
Directors 20 April 2015 HKD1.72 20 April 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-20 April 2020
£ 201544 H20H 1,728 7T 201554 H20HE 201656 H30HE
201656 429 H 20205 4 A20H
20 April 2015-29 June 2017 30 June 2017-20 April 2020
2015F 4 H20HE 20176 H30HZE
2017F6 H29H 2020F 4 A420H
20 April 2015-29 June 2018 30 June 2018-20 April 2020
201554 H20HE 201856 H30HE
201856 429 H 20205 4 A20H
Employees 20 April 2015 HKD1.72 20 April 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-20 April 2020
EE 2015 4 A20H 1.727% 7T 201554 4208 % 2016566 A30HZE
20166 A29H 2020%F 4 A420H
20 April 2015-29 June 2017 30 June 2017-20 April 2020
2015F 4 420R & 2017F6 A30RE
2017466 29 A 20204 4 H20H
20 April 2015-29 June 2018 30 June 2018-20 April 2020
2015F 4 4208 = 2018F6 A30HZE
20186 H29H 2020%F 4 A420H
10 July 2015 HKD1.72 10 July 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-10 July 2020
20157 A410R 1.72% 7T 20157 H10HE 20166 H30HZE

In 2018, the Group recognised expense net of RMB135,000 in
relation to the above share options (2017: credit of

RMB3,231,000).
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201646 A29H
10 July 2015-29 June 2017
20157 A10B%
20176 A29H
10 July 2015-29 June 2018
20157 A10B &
201846 A29H

20207 A10H
30 June 2017-10 July 2020
201756 H30HE
202067 A10H
30 June 2018-10 July 2020
201856 A30HZE
20207 A10H

R20184F + A& B i b il BE A% W FE 3R 7 X2
FEAAR#135,0007T (2017 F : X AR

#%3,231,0007T) °
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30. SHARE OPTION AND SHARE AWARD 30. BRERKRGREE (2
SCHEME (continued)
The Company — Pre-IPO share option scheme KRB —BRLAFARERBEREST
(Continued) gl#&)
No share options were exercised in 2018. At the end of the 2018 F LM IR AEEITIE - RIEMR
reporting period, 41,045,723 share options under the Scheme =HEITE N 941,045,723 10 BEARAE B O8N -
have been forfeited in aggregate and the Company had MAREET & - AN R1H 38,954,277 13 M ARTT
38,954,277 share options outstanding under the Scheme, FEERE BERZBARRG D BEITRG
which represented approximately 4.80% of the Company’s #94.80% ° IRIBEARRNEIREFERLER - B
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the T BRI T RS G BN A R FEINETT
outstanding share options would under the present capital 38,954,277 B LAY - FNBRAR (D EEITRI AT
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 38,954,277 2 IR & P15 FXE 4258 A 67,001,000.00 7 7T
additional ordinary shares of the Company for total cash (FHER AR 56,710,0007T) °
proceeds of HKD67,001,000.00 (equivalent to RMB56,710,000)
before share issue expenses.
The following share options were outstanding under the Pre- LT AFARE R ARSI ERETSE
IPO share option scheme during the year: TARITE RS ARE
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
Exercise price Number  Exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
BROEE BREZE SROFEE  BREZE
HKD ’000 HKD '000
BT T4 BT F15
At 1 January W1 A1H 1.72 39,655 1.72 58,546
Forfeited during the year FRR U 1.72 (701) 1.72 (18,891)
At 31 December »12B31H 1.72 38,954 1.72 39,655

The Company — Share award scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution of the board of the Company
passed on 16 January 2018, the Company issued and granted
an aggregate of 8,500,000 new shares to 21 eligible employees
of the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group at nil consideration. During 2018, 8,500,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company were issued under
the scheme with no cash proceeds received. Accordingly, the
Group recognised share-based payment expenses of
RMB5,525,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RRTE — RO REE

BIE2018F1 A16H BB AR ESS
EEREER  ARREHEAREBEAIRESR
£ #£8,500,000 BF M FALEE21N ZEE
®IEB. R2018F A R IEFE A
8,500,000 58 4 & i/ A% 35 17 M & U BN 3R & B
BRIE - Eitt - AEBEFHZE20184F 12
BB EFERIABOARAZIARE
5,525,000 7T, °

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y

197



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR E

31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

30. SHARE OPTION AND SHARE AWARD 30. MR ER KRR B8 ()

SCHEME (continued)
A subsidiary of the Company

On 17 July 2015, M Z2E BRI AR AR (“Hangzhou
Yidao”), a subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in
the provision of software and information technology services.
BRABRYEERAR DT (“Guangdong Zhong Ao”, the
immediate holding company of Hangzhou Yidao) and Mr. Luo
Tao (the representative of the employees of Hangzhou Yidao)
entered into an agreement (the “Equity incentive — Hangzhou
Yidao Agreement”), pursuant to which up to 33% equity
interests in Hangzhou Yidao would be transferred to the
employees of Hangzhou Yidao (“Yidao Employees”) who were
responsible for the development and operation of Hangzhou
Yidao at nil consideration by 30 April 2018 upon satisfaction of
certain performance conditions of Hangzhou Yidao. On or
before 30 April 2019, the Yidao Employees had the right to
require Guangdong Zhong Ao to repurchase all of the equity
interests in Hangzhou Yidao that the Yidao Employees acquired
pursuant to the Equity incentive — Hangzhou Yidao Agreement
at a total cash consideration of RMB22,000,000.

On 5 April 2017, the Equity incentive — Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement was terminated by all parties. Up to 5 April 2017, no
equity interests in Hangzhou Yidao have been transferred to the
Yidao Employees and no equity interests in Hangzhou Yidao will
be transferred to the Yidao Employees after the termination of
the Hangzhou Yidao Cooperation Agreement.

The Group has previously recognised share-based payment
expenses of RMB12,981,000 in aggregate and imputed interest
of RMB1,355,000 in relation to the share-based payment
arrangement under the Equity incentive — Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement as at 31 December 2016 which were fully reversed
in 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the cash-settled option
(2017: Nil) and equity-settled portion (2017: Nil) were both nil.
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R2015F 7 A17H  MMZEEEEREE
BRAR(THUNZEND (KRR EB AR -
FERBRETHEREARERE) EE
PEYEBTBERAT(ERFE]) (M
SRMEELERAR) RBEELE (INZE
KRB R F)FT L ([ RERE — mMNE
EHaR ) o B - MERIMNE R B TEX
B1Z - MM =B 34 33% My I 15 72 2018
FL4ANHAUEREERZEBEMINZTE
NEBEEREZENMMNEINERE(TZI R
B 1) N2019F4B30H= 271 * S HIE
BEREERERD R L ERERERE
— MMNERHZBENTINZ R 2 3R
R REBLEE A AR 22,000,000 7T °

R2017F 4858 @ RIEZRE — MINED
B EREETAFKIE - EE2017F 4 A
5HIE BERZEEEEZNMNEEK
o MARIEMNERAERZEE  §1g
AZEE B EEMINSEIRE -

HZE2016F 12 831 B - REBBER K
B — TUNZRHEE T HRD I RELHE
EREONHRASZAEEXARK 12,981,0007T
THEE R B AR®1,355000C 0 ¥R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements there
in are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(a)

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the PRC
subsidiaries’ articles of association, each subsidiary
registered in the PRC as a domestic company is required
to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit as
determined under generally accepted accounting
principles of The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC
GAAP”) (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the
statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of this
reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any
further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the
capital after these usages.

Other reserve

The amount represented the contribution from Mr. Liu
Jian, the controlling shareholder and director of the
Company, through transferring his 40% equity interest in
Guangdong Zhong Ao, a subsidiary of the Company, to
Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing, both being directors
of the Company and employees of Guangdong Zhong Ao
in2011.

LR e
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31. f#E

AEEREBENSRLEEINGEERED
REF

(a

EERE
RIEBHPEDBDERTENMB LR A
BER SRETHELRRNERT
FO B B8 A R B A B A R AE (10
FEARKMBEARERAN(HE
SRFER D FETE) (R EMEFE
1B1R) M 10% BREEATERBFEE - U
AR EEREARNL0%E - B
BREBEIEL E o AT R MIEL
HEFERIIBRER - A - ATE
BRFERENEHNZERARRLAE
FERDIEEARE25%

Ht A%

HZBREARRERBERFESTRRZ
AR FEBRAARRERER
RPREBRAREERRERLESE
FHRARBMB LR ERS R40%
PP ERE

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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31. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

200

Special reserve

Special reserve mainly represent:(i) capital contribution
amounting to RMB258,000 by Mr. Liu Jian and non-
controlling equity holders for the transfer of 75% and 25%
equity interests in BMEBHMEEREERERQ A
(“Guangzhou Maiyue”) to the Group in April 2015 through
structured contracts at nil considerations; (i) further
capital contribution to Guangzhou Maiyue made by Mr.
Liu Jian amounted to RMB750,000; (iii) the obligation in
relation to the acquisition of the remaining 30% equity
interests in ZhejiangYongcheng recognised in the amount
of RMB80,630,000 but decreased by RMB31,589,000
due to further acquisition of the 7.5% and 7.5% equity
interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng at 26 July 2017 and 22
June 2018, respectively; (iv) additional interests in &N
Rz B R AR A 8)(“*Guangzhou Daojia”) acquired by
the group from a non-controlling equity holder in 2016,
with the difference between the consideration paid and
the additional share of net assets in Guangzhou Daojia as
acquired by the Group amounting to RMB4,000 being
transferred to special reserve; and (v) additional interests
acquired by the Group in Ningbo Yongdu from a non-
controlling equity holder. The difference between the
consideration paid and in the additional share of net
assets in Ningbo Yongdu amounting to RMB376,000
being transferred to special reserve.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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31. #EE )

(c)
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Rl EEEIE() 201564 22 %
EREERESEFEASBEBES
HEETE AR 258,000 @ AR
SEHEZENEREERNBBARAA
(TEMEB ) 75% K 25% & #E : (i) 2l
BAEMEMNEBEBBIEARE
750,000 7T : (i) 52 B8 5O U i T ok
g T30%R EME T AR
80,630,000 7T &2 A7 201747 A 26 H
Y 201846 A 22 H5 BB U EE T T oK
FX7.5% % 7.5% 0% #E i oE > AR
31,589,0007T : (V) A20164F + AEE
m—ZIEERERTEAWEEMN
REEBRBEARARTEMER D
EMER - ENREBAEMNEIRHE
BT E R ZN & B AT U B BEINIR ()
B ZEARE 4000 E@EEE7
i RVAEEA —BIEERER
BE AR SR OKEHREIINMES - B
NRENAERKBEREEFELE
SN 2 B B 2= 58 A R # 376,000 7T
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 2. BEERFEREZNTEIHES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING KNG
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- RNEEGEAEAIFERESNNE A RS
controlling interests are set out below: FHH|T -
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
Percentage of equity interest held by R ERASRER D
non-controlling interests:
Zhejiang Yongcheng T KR
At 1 January m1A1A 22.5% 30%
Decrease in non-controlling interests FEFE A A 2R (7.5%) (7.5%)
At 31 December MK12H31H 15% 22.5%
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARBTT

Profit for the year allocated to B0 FEE IR = R A

non-controlling interests:
Zhejiang Yongcheng T KA 7,887 8,015
Decrease in non-controlling interests FESEAR R 2SR (18,035) (13,554)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IEERER AR S (676) -

Accumulated balances of non-controlling RekE B HEE R SR
interests at the reporting date REtiER 34,931 45,935
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 2. BEEARFERERNBSES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Bt S~ Bl (40)
INTERESTS (Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TREBEID T KK IEE IS E R o

information of Zhejiang Yongcheng.

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company it B e B ARIEARIEE$E -
eliminations:
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue g 367,607 327,950
Total expenses iz 4858 (330,115) (296,203)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRFEREZEWBALLEE 37,492 31,747
for the year
Current assets MEVEE 241,861 203,051
Non-current assets EMEEE 203,538 211,936
Current liabilities mEaRE (192,959) (188,689)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (19,125) (22,078)
Net cash flows from operating activities REKL RN RE R 26,554 35,217
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing EERE (), A8 (107) 898
activities RenEFHE
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB SEE TR SR EFE 7,966 (15,736)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents e RIF e EEBYILINFE 18,481 20,379

2 02 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

The major acquisitions of subsidiaries accounted for as
business combinations not under common control are set out
as follows:

In May 2018, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Foshan
Pairuier from an independent third party. Foshan Pairuier is
engaged in the provision of property management services. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its market share of property management operation in the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with RMB20,000,000 paid on the acquisition date and
the remaining RMB5,000,000 to be paid in May 2019.

In July 2018, the Group acquired a 60% interest in Shanghai
Tangnian from two independent third parties. Shanghai
Tangnian is engaged in the provision of property management
services. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to expand its market share of property management
operation in the PRC. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with RMB3,400,000 paid in
July 2018.

In July 2018, the Group acquired a 60% interest in Shanghai
Tanglei from two independent third parties. Shanghai Tanglei is
engaged in the provision of property management services. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its market share of property management operation in the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with RMB1,600,000 paid in July 2018.

In December 2018, the Group acquired a 60% interest in Guilin
Gangshen from four independent third parties. Guilin Gangshen
is engaged in the provision of property management services.
The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
expand its market share of property management operation in
the PRC. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in
the form of cash, with RMB5,400,000 paid in January 2019.

In December 2018, the Group acquired a 75% interest in
Hangzhou Anjia from an independent third party. Hangzhou
Anjia is engaged in the provision of property management
services. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to expand its market share of property management
operation in the PRC. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with RMB18,100,000 fully
paid during 2018.

LR e
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33. £ E6t

ABRIERBAMM X ER
AR EWBEHIINT

22 1l KO B /B8

M2018F5H  AEBM—BBILE=FU
BHRLURKERN2ELDT - HBILRERKES
REMEEERE - ZRBEXNAEEIRE
HN BN EE B EB TG 2 RN
—#bo - WEEREE B KRB AR 20,000,000
TIMIREFARKEBBSA M TA
R# 5,000,000 LA F 2019 F 5 A 1+ -

R2018F 7R » AEBMRMABEILIE=F U
B LE5F60%MiER - LE5FHERE
MEEIERTY - ZBREERAEERRER
FRENMEEREBMISHEREN—
2o R2018F7H - WHEMNEEREARE
3,400,000 LTI AR AT -

MR2018F 7 H » AEBRMABEILE=F U
B LE5m60% Mk - LSRRIt ERE
MEBTIERT - ZRBERAEERRER
FERNYEEREEB NSO EREN—IB
7o R2018F7 A - INEMNBEREARE
1,600,000 TT AR & A 2 AT -

MR2018F 12 A AEERNUEZBIE=T
BB A= R 60% Mk zR o MBI RIEH1R
HYEEERS - ZWEBBRKASERER
R B EE R ERE IS0 EREHN—0
5o 201991 A - IWENBEREARE
5,400,000 LTI AR S A1 ©

R2018F 12 A REER—ZBIE=F
BTN 232 75% Ml as - MM Lt H1R
%%%%ﬁ%% ZUWB R AEERRE
AR BIR YSRGS (D RERE M —I
Do R2018FHIM  WIEMEEREAR
#18,100,000 LTy AR & A BB A »
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 33. (&5 )
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of all the T BRI T BB A Rl FE R A & Rl & E
subsidiaries acquired during the year were as follows: HEBHNAFENT :
2018
2018
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
st B 5
CEIQFE
Notes RMB’000
B aE AREBTR
Property and equipment I EYSE L] 14 1,407
Investment properties HEYHE 15 4,190
Cash and bank balances W& MRTTHE R 13,703
Intangible Assets mLEE 20 9,045
Trade receivables B 5 M ERIA 5,163
Prepayments and other receivables TE T I8 & H Ath FE W IR 36,586
Trade payables B 5 e IR (7,998)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEERITIER (30,000)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H A FE T 50IE (23,099)
Deferred tax liabilities EERTBAE (2,804)
Tax payable FERTREIE (1,271)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAFEAENAENEERSE 4,922
Non-controlling interests FEIE e e e (1,318)
Goodwill on acquisition U i 2 49,896
53,500
Satisfied: BRIATHAXN
Other payables H b e 508 10,400
Cash B4 43,100
53,500
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB5,163,000 and RMB36,586,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
were RMB6,959,000 and RMB38,645,000, respectively, of
which trade receivables of RMB1,796,000 and prepayments
and other receivables of RMB2,059,000 are expected to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB561,100 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries contributed
RMB67,514,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB3,901,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year would have been RMB1,092,334,000 and
RMB88,564,000, respectively.

33.

LR e
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ey Nt

Z 5 EMGRIE - AR RIE R H b FEURGRIE R
Wi R AFES B A ARES5,163,000
TR AR 36,586,000 7T © & 5 W FKIE KM
HihEWRIBENEENEEI R AARYE
6,959,000 7T & A R # 38,645,000 7C + H &
Z 5 e W RIE A R ¥ 1,796,000 70 A K FE
FRIE N H A e U 3R A R %6 2,059,000 7T I8 T8
HA AT ] o

AEERRERBEENRIRABARE
561,1007C c ZERXSKAE FUATSE - I
HAGABRRANEMESL -

BEC RN ERBBARNBMER -

BUREEHE - FTUREE T B A RN E £ 20184F
12ANBLEFERAEEGEM TREAR
#67,514,0007T Rér & FIE AR 3,901,000
ﬁ o

MEHEEREY)  NEBASEE W XF
TEE D Bl A AR 1,092,334,000 T AR
88,564,000 7T °

PRIAREEERAT
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34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. HE—ZFKEBL T
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Net assets disposed of: HEBEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W - B R 3,456 =
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTT4E S 120 -
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K B At R UK IE 1,351 -
Trade payables =&Y AN G (1,626) -
Accruals and other payables FEETE A N E A FE R IR (2,887) -
Non-controlling interests IR =S (203) -
211 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWERQRAKES 299 -
510 -
Satisfied by: BATHAIN
Other receivables HAth pE U RIR 20 -
Investment in an associate R—REEQNRNEE 490 -
510 -
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHE—ZFRWBARZIRESRIREEEY
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: RO F DT T
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Cash consideration RENRE - -
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERe MRS ER (120) -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EHALE—RWBATN
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary Be RSB RE T3 (120) -

2 06 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

35. RERETMBRMEE

Major non-cash transactions (@ FEFRERS
During the year, the carrying amounts of trade and bills FRBHREWHERERZENIR
receivables amounting to RMB840,000 (2017: HE AR 840,0007T (20174 : AR
RMBS,318,000) were offset as payments for acquisition #8,318,000 7T ) EEAWEE M E NS
of properties and payments of RMB6,874,000 (2017: HT LA - B RARE 6,874,000
RMB18,089,000) for acquisition of properties were JL(2017F : AR ¥ 18,089,000 7T ) Uk
transferred to investment properties and an amount of BUEONRCEBEZREME - A
RMB720,000 has been transferred to property and REET720000c ¢ EEEHBEZYE K
equipment which did not result in any cash flow. HEBMAEEFNEESRE -
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETEFIEEEENEE
activities
Interest-
bearing Other
bank long-term
borrowings payable
FTERTT Hitt R
B FEASRRIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETR
At 1 January 2018 A2018F1H1H 100,969 65,439
Changes from financing cash flows BMERSTREMELEES) (23,314) (22,500)
Increase arising from acquisition of IR BB B & Rl E A IS N
subsidiaries 30,000 -
Foreign exchange realignment YN T (711) -
Interest expense FERZ 4,897 (3,064)
At 31 December 2018 M 2018%F 12831 H 111,841 39,875
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31 December 2018 72018412 531 H

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

35. RERERBERME®)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBFMELEEBENEE (&)
activities (Continued)
Interest
bearing Other
bank long-term
borrowings payable
FTEMRIT HihRH
EE3N BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREETIT
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 A1H 128,948 81,718
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREMEEEE (22,579) (22,500)
Foreign exchange realignment SN B (10,046) -
Interest expense FEFSE 4,646 6,221
At 31 December 2017 #2017 412 A31 A 100,969 65,439

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31

December 2018 (2017:Nil).

2 08 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

The Group leases its properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of five years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

37. KREHERE
fERHE A

AEERBELHERHHEEEDE - %F
HERERNFHRATESF - EHENGER
—RITREEFPXMNRES -

REERR - RIFEEPFT LI NIA T H
FHM ARG EEE - ARBEHNRES
EHEERKFIREEARENT

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018 2017 F
12HA31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETFT
Within one year —FRN 4,753 4,370
In the second to fifth years, inclusive —FEFRAF (BREEEMT) 3,111 5,333
7,864 9,703
As lessee ERAMEA
The Group leases certain office buildings and staff dormitories AEBERBSEHELHERE THAEZE
under operating lease arrangements. FREIFES -

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had total future

REIERR - RIF AT FEIRI B R 7] 5

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating HGCEHE - ANEBERRSEMEEN KL
leases falling due as follows: o

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
12A31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Within one year —FR 2,416 5,449
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ZFEEELF (BREEWMTE) 1,170 12,472
3,586 17,921

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
37 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

38. EXAEYE

B b SCHY RE 37 P wF st B9 AR = A B AES)
RBEHR - REBBIATEARAIE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
12A31H 12 H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T AREET T
Contracted, but not provided for: BATA - BRI ¢
Acquisition of property and W HE 5 K Bt & 1,620 2,774
equipment and leasehold HEWERE
improvements
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — R E A A (@) 30,000 -
31,620 2,774

210

In June 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with
of the equity holder of EFIIEIE B EHARBZ AR A
(Guangxi Huihuang Property Advisory Services Company
Limited*) ("Hwhuang Property”) and EFIIEIE FithEAh
R £ B AR A A (Guangxi Huihuang Real Estate
Advisory Services Group Company Limited) (“Huihuang
Real Estate”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
acquire 51% equity interest in Huihuang Property and
51% equity interest in Huihuang Real Estate at an
aggregate consideration of () RMB30,000,000 payable in
cash (subject to adjustment); and (ii) not more than
RMB70,000,000 payable by the Group in cash upon
satisfaction of the certain conditions.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

MN2018F 6 A ASBHEMEEE
EBARBERAR([EEEE]D R
EABEEHEFARGEBRBRA
Al ([BEFHE]) MERFE AL
i Bt AEEREREBIIEEE
¥51% M NRIERIEIEEHE51% /3%
B EmREBABIAR S ARE
30,000,000 7T £ A (A T A %) + (i)
RESE TIEGE  BAEENES
S NARZ R AR 70,000,000 7T °
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. BEt AR F R &
BALANCES

(@) Related party transactions () EEHAEXS
A non-controlling equity holder of a subsidiary of the RQF)— W B R F 8 I R = 5
Company provided a corporate guarantee in respect of BAB2018F 12 A1 BEER T X
certain bank loans granted to the Group up to EENETRTEREZARE
RMB30,000,000 (2017: Nil) at nil consideration as at 31 30,000,0007C (2017 4F : Z) et
December 2018. iR o

(b) Compensation to key management b) BHFEEEEAESNENE
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during FAEEEBEAENTMOAT

the year was as follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARBTET

Short-term employee benefits EHEBRA 19,700 15,690
Post-employment benefits BERR 1R B A 117 140
Share-based payments A& 15 5% 611 (12,371)

20,428 3,459
The remuneration of key management personnel is TESHAENEMIREAZER
determined by reference to the performance of individuals TISBRET o

and market trend.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

31 December 2018

Financial assets

201812 A 31 H

THEE

40. £ELT B (3R¥EH)
ZERSBMTARNBEPROBETENT -

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
R A
TE®N
TREE
RMB’000
AR® TR

Financial assets included in prepayment
and other receivables (note 23)

Trade and bills receivables (note 22)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 24)

FH TR IR N E A KR IR
EMEE(MiF23)

B2 R FIR N R (ffa22)

Re MREEHEY (HiF24)

140,753
207,826
415,795

764,374

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R A A
STE®
k=R
RMB’000
AR®TR

Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals (note 26)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27)

Trade payables (hote 25)

FEAEMRENFURME ERO
TRBE(ME26)

SHRRITER (MZE27)

B 5 NI (K7t 25)

228,987
111,841
47,687

2 —I 2 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. €@ T & (ZEH) (&)

(Continued)

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
RAFETA
BEN
TRIBE
RMB’000
AR®TR

Other Payable for Option

Hfth A FE 5 3R

39,875

428,390

31 December 2017

Financial assets

2017512 HA31H

Loans and
receivables
B R EWGIA
RMB’000
AREFT

Financial assets included in prepayment
and other receivables (hote 23)

Trade and bills receivables (hote 22)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 24)

FT AT FRIE & B Ath FE IR GRIE Y
SREE (it 23)

E SRR M R (M 5F22)

W MRS B (HE24)

86,846
190,932
483,806

761,584

TREFEBMERAE

2018 F 5} 21 3
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. €@ T & (Z¥EH) &)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RN
FTER
TRBE
RMB’000
ARETT

Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals (note 26)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27)

Trade payables (hote 25)

FFAEMENFIE R ETE RN

TRBEWE26) 196,721
FHESRITER (MaE27) 100,969
B SR E (MiE25) 44,965

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through

profit or loss
RATEHA
B
BRIAE
RMB’000
ARETFT

Other Payable for Option

H b B B 5 5B 65,439

408,094

2 -I 4 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

31 December 2018

B H5 R B

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

EHMTANAFERQIFEER

BREmEEAFESEEENSRITAN
AEESBTANKHAELRAFENT

2018 12H31H

Carrying
amount Fair value
IREE ATE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEs AR¥T T ARB T
Financial liabilities TREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPEERITER 27 61,841 58,760
Other Payables for Option E b BR#E PR OB 39,875 39,875
101,716 98,635
31 December 2017 2017412 431 H
Carrying
amount Fair value
REE NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEs AREFIT AREFT
Financial liabilities TRAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 27 77,969 82,414
Other Payable for Option E b HR#E FE ST R 65,439 65,439
143,408 147,853

TREFEBMERAE

2018 F 5} 21 5
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale investments was based on
quotation from bank. The fair values of the non-current portion
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and other long-term
payable have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other long-term payable as at 31 December
2018 was assessed to be insignificant.

Management has assessed that other long-term payable
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the fact
that these borrowings are made between the Group and non-
controlling equity holders of a subsidiary based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Management has also assessed that the fair values of the
Group’s other current financial instruments approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the board of directors. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and results
are discussed with the board of directors once a year for annual
financial reporting.

2 1 6 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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HEREHATFENFRITREAER - 518
RITIERREM R EBENFIAIETRBZ H K
AHEDERAEBLUGE - EERREST
BHHR 2 TERR 2 ITIR AT R R
EREPTIEMETE - K2018F12A31 8 -
REBE 25 BRI TIE RN E b K HAFE S 3k0E
M BAORRE T E AL TERK -

BB E T E A R (A AT R
HREEAE T EhMRN SRR
51— A R SRR RS A SRR
FTIBFIR M -

EEENCHE  AEEEMRSH SR TE
MAFEEEREERES  TEHRZET
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41. € TENAFERAFERELHK
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy NFEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRERASESRTANAFERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: A
Liabilities measured at fair value: EATEFENEE
As at 31 December 2018 7A2018F12A31H
Fair value measurement using
ERAATHBENDTEGE
Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMS  EATEHRE BEARTEE
H#RE WAYE WARE
(5—-F8) (5=f) (5=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR%T:x
Other Payables for Option H o HAE pE N B - - 39,875 39,875
As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
Fair value measurement using
AN THENLTESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME  EAUBE ERTAEBE
HRIE WABUR W A\ BE
(B—F) (B=E) (B=F) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR

Other Payables for Option Hott HARE 9 0B

- - 65,439 65,439

A 217
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

As at 31 December 2018

EMIANAFERAFEER
(#)

AFEBR )

BAFEHRNEE (@)

REZE2018F N2017F12 A31 B I F &
N-pefmEERERABENS  F—f8H
FEBZHEVEATEFESEY F=ET
ENFEFEEANEDL -

A 2018F12A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTHENAFETE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
TEIBT R
HHRE
(8-F8)
RMB’000
AR®T R

Significant  Significant

observable unobservable

inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTERE EAFTUE
BARE ZBARE
(=) (%5=8) #st
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARBTR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITIER -

- 58,760 58,760

As at 31 December 2017

R2017F 12 A31 H

Fair value measurement using

ERATEENAFERE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EBRMS  EAABE  BEANAH
HHRE BABE ERANE
(5—E) (BZE) (B=R) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETRT AR®BTT ARKETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s ERITEN - - 82,414 82,414

2 -I 8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and a long-term payable.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings set out in
note 27.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings).

LR e

31 December 2018 720184 12 531 H

42, cREMEEEERBER

AEENSRTASREEARAFEFA
BamemEE RehReFEY 718
RITERERBENHR -

=113

ZE TR TANTIRZANEAASENEE
BB - AKEBREZHREAMBEREER

BfE - MERKAEENESEKSIANE
WRENE SRR -

AEBEeMTAEENTERRSHNXME
% SNSRI - FEERRERESE SRR
EXEg R ERURSEREZARNK
R ARBCRBMENT -

ESEN

7R (B P A P2 ) T 35 ) 2R 8 B By = 22 LY
FE2T FRE A SRR ERITIE TN AR -

TRUPENE AR AL TG L%
BRBTEOERT - AR ERBHFIHE(H
HEOR BN FI% (ERRAOB ) KYBUBE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax

BEE RRBE B R 8

EH(FR)  #i (Gfd)

RMB’000

ARET T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ2018F12A31ALLEE 50 (350)
(50) 350
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2017F12 A31 BILFE 50 (454)
(50) 454

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and
nearly all transactions are conducted in RMB. All of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those
owned by the Company and certain subsidiaries which are
denominated in USD and HKD.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
USD and HKD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

42, SRIEREEEERBE ®)

SIS JEL Bz

AEENEBURNTEARM - BETFHRAER
FAARKEAET - AEERMBEERBEIN
AREGFE  HEAARATRETHE AR M
BEEARTTRABTTAHERSD ©

TRIPANBERAREZTETERN S IE
AIREE NI A E M BRI TENER
T AKEBEHRRINB(REREERAE
MR FEZEFHME) WEURE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
USD/HKD in profit
rate before tax
ERRBRT R AT
fE FI3E
EH(CFR) 8 GEd)
% RMB’000
ARET T
2018 2018 4
If the USD weakens against the RMB AHETTHAREES 10% (1,862)
If the USD strengthens against the RMB AHETTHAREHER (10%) 1,862
If the HKD weakens against the RMB EBTTH ARG 10% 2,469
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB ARETTHAREER (10%) (2,469)
2017 2017
If the USD weakens against the RMB AFETTHAREEESS 10% (5,894)
If the USD strengthens against the RMB EETRARBE (10%) 5,894
If the HKD weakens against the RMB BB AR 10% (3,953)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB EBTHARKER (10%) 3,953

Credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term deposits,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

2 2 O ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 cREREEEERBE®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at R2018F12A3MEHMWEXKAR K
31 December 2018 FAREERE D
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TREVEEAEEEERENEZEBEZR
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, FrEENSAEERR W TENEBEE
which is mainly based on past due information unless other B AERE(BAEEE 2 A HEI A&
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- BEMERBRIN)  RFERBEE DR 2018
end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The F12ABHETSE - MZVCHEASE
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial BEMNEROENMREERSYMEEGHE
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee BER -
contracts.
12-months
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 AR H AFEREREREREEE
FEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
P& 1 PEER2 P& ER3 k(A7 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARETL ARETL AREFT ARETFT
Trade receivables* g SR E - - - 292,636 292,636
Bills receivable™ A ES A 1,040 - - - 1,040
Financial assets included NN
in prepayments and Hib el
other receivables TB3IER
— Normal™ — L@~ 167,404 - - - 167,404
— Doulbtful™ — REE™ - - - - -
Cash and bank balances Be RRTHEE 415,795 - - - 415,795
584,239 - - 292,636 876,875

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of bills receivables and the financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

* MAREEFEREBENE S EUK
BEME  UWEEEEAERMNEREER
WM 22

o REEEBRLREBREEYEAY BYE
ENBETEREERVSRABREERR
BRIEIENES - BIRIEN FRIR N B fth UL
RBEFIENEREEReREERFEE R
WA EBE] BRI EREENEEE
AR [RER] -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

222

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2017

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term deposits,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-

bearing bank borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

42, cHEMREEEERBE &)

MR2017F12A3 BN E XA R K
FREERE D
AEMYEEACEETER - AHFFE
MELENAEELEREENEERARE
ERSRELZEY EHEXR EHENK
REREREE - HbEREIE - SARR
ERENZETANEEE -

ERAAEEERNE S ERGKBRELD
EERBNE - TEEERHENTHBRE
Mk 22 o

REBE E AR
AEBEH B IZRUGBRITIESEREDIT

BURBRUENTE ReREAIHED
PIEEER

ES FHRRIBED FTHERITIRT R
MEREENZIRHARAT

3to
Lessthan  less than 1to5 Over

Ondemand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total

D 3ED
REX 3R R12{8A 1E5F  5ENLE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000c RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTn AR®TR AR%TR AR%¥Tn ARETR

31 December 2018 2018%12A31A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B RITER - 30,855 42,837 66,061 - 139,753
Trade payables B ENFE - 47,687 - - - 47,687
Other payables and accruals Hip e AR 34,229 194,758 - - - 228,987
g

Other Payables for Option Hh B R Tl - - 22,500 22,500 - 45,000
34,229 273,300 65,337 88,561 - 461,427

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, cRIAREEEEREEK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MEESEK &)
3to
Less than less than 1105 Qver
Ondemand ~ 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
N 3xD
REX A M12MEA 185% 5FHLE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%®TR ARETT ARETT AR%TR
31 December 2017 2017412 B31H
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3 ERITER - 736 44,823 63,023 - 108,582
Trade payables B S REMNFUR - 44,965 - - - 44,965
Other payables and accruals Hi B T5ER
[t B 20524 176,197 - 196,721
Other Payables for Option HipEiREE R T - - 22,500 45,000 - 67,500
20524 201898 67,323 108023 - 417768
Capital management BEARER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are REBEAEENEEEEZER2ERAERL
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern I IR IR TR T (R IE TSR B AN LR -

A B HEB MR ARERTITBIREE -

AEBERBEBERRECRIEREEN AR
FREEEEAEBRELRAE - BRITX
FBEARGERE - AR E R BT B M A R K B
ZRE - ARFREEARRBITHR - A&
BEAN S TN BEARENR - RNE
Z2018F 12 431 H R #E E2017F 12 A 31
BIEFER > EREANBIE - BERHEF

PRIAREEERAT
2018 F 7y
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, and amounts due to
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

42.

cEEAMREEEEREEK#)

BEXREE@#®)

AEBNEEARBRLERERER - AR
REEFERAEHBEANERFE - &
HEFRBREFRRITER ﬁﬂ‘f—%%%@
BIPEER R A ANRBERRE KRS
B - BEXRBEER TT?EH)\JETMZE”“WEA
BEMRNEEABLENT ¢

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27) BRI TIEK (B5E27) 111,841 100,969
Amounts due to non-controlling equity e —REE A R IEIE i =

holders of a subsidiary (note 26) A AR (M:E26) 10,241 5,033
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REeRIREEEY (415,795) (483,806)
Net debt BIB 58 (293,713) (377,804)
Total equity S MEEE 605,950 546,693
Gearing ratio BEEBELE N/A N/A

TERA TEA
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

43. AR TR R K

AR ARRE RN B IR R LR

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment E IS G 109 -
Investment in a subsidiary R—KWBRRWIEE 97,930 95,049
Due from subsidiaries JE LB B A B FE 311,987 351,821
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 410,026 446,870
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayment and other receivables AN RIE B B At JE M R IE 1,398 228
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEEYD 30,140 76,974
Total current assets MENEERE 31,538 77,202
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Due to subsidiaries FEH B B A B FUE - 4,585
Other payables and accruals EM R IARERTE R 208 188
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITEN 20,382 19,276
Total current liabilities MBI BERRE 20,680 24,049
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 10,858 53,153
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABERE 420,884 500,023
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERTTER 41,459 58,693
Total non-current liabilities EREEEREE 41,459 58,693
NET ASSETS BEFEE 379,425 441,330
EQUITY R
Share capital R 2R 6,689 6,619
Other reserves (note) H b (EE) 372,736 434,711
TOTAL EQUITY e 379,425 441,330

PRIAREEERAT
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

43. AR TR R EK &)

Note: P
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIFEERENT ¢
Capital Share
Treasury Share redemption option Accumulated
shares premium reserve reserve losses Total
EFRG BREE EXBORE BRERRE RitBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%TR
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 /18 ©) 433,481 45 22,975 (37,121) 419,377
Profit for the year FERFE - - - - 12,906 12,906
Shares cancelled [mEaE[) 3 - 3 - - 6
Recognition of equity-settled BRUARSEER
share-based payments R - 5,653 - 2,486 - 8,139
Share options forfeited BRI AR - - - (5,717) - (6,717)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 &
and 1 January 2018 20181 A1H - 439,134 48 19,744 (24,215) 434,711
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (33,581) (33,581)
Shares cancelled [EEa[M) - - - - - -
2018 Interim dividend 2018FFHIRR B - - - - (33,984) (33,984)
Recognition of equity-settled WA EER
share-based payments LN - 5,455 - 418 - 5,873
Share options forfeited BRI AR - - (283) - (283)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 331H - 444589 48 19,879 (91,780) 372,736

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited after the vesting

day.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

45.

(@)

Pursuant to the written resolution of the board of the
Company passed on 15 January 2019, the Company
issued and granted an aggregate of 6,516,000 new
shares to 14 eligible employees of the Group as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group at nil
consideration.

On 26 February 2019, the Company entered into a capital
injection agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to make a capital injection in total amount
of RMB56,300,000 into ZIMNIEEEZEEZ
YEERAGMR AT (“Suzhou House Construction”).
Suzhou House Construction is a company established in
the PRC with limited liability which is principally engaged
in the provision of property management service. Upon
completion, Suzhou House Construction will become a
66%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

At 29 March 2019, the board of directors resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$5.0 cents) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 6
June 2019, making the total dividend payment of
approximately HK$20.4 million. Subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), the
final dividend is expected to be payable on or about 20
June 2019. The aggregate amount shall be paid out of
the Company’s share premium account if the payment of
the dividend is approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

In December 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement to purchase 60% of equity interests in &R $4
SR E MR B R AT T2 A R A F)(“Guangdong Ming-King-
City Landscape Architecture Co. Ltd”) (“Ming-King-City”)
from an independent third party at a total consideration of
RMB9,000,000. The transaction was completed in
January 2019.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019.

LR e
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44. {EHREE

@)

45.

RIBRARZESEN 201941 H15H
BRAMEARZR  AQFEERA
EEUUBREEREERITRELAH
6,516,000 & ¥T A% 0 + 1EREFH AR
AIFTIEE B R B s 52 ) -

R2019F2 A26H * AARFIMIEE
g Bt ARBREBEREM T
EEg2EWEREER AR ([EFHMNE
ENDEELRITE BEAARYE
56,300,000 7T ° &k M EZE & — B R
BN EBRAR  TEREDES
BRI - BARE  BRNEERBK AL
ANEEE 66% RAERMB AR -

MR2019FE3A20H - EFE&mAmE
Z£2018F 12 A1 B It FE IR KR
% B &M 2.5 (2017 4 : 5.0 1)
F2019F 6 A6H BHARRRKES
MARRRE - @B BT 542045 &
BT o AR B REIEA LT FEER
HEFRe((BREBFARE]) LHE
% TEHARAEIR B AR 20194 6 A 20
Bk g &R o 20K+ A% B & RR R A
ERBEFAS L& AeBBEA A
AR R EEP R -

R2018F 12 A + A% B 7] 3 W B
& LNAIBM = W B R SRR
BEMRERET TEARAR([#487K 1)
#960% & #E - @ E AR 9,000,000
TC° AR HER2019F 1 A °

B RBAE

BB RDN2019F3 20K EF @t
o N A 2 o
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M E

For the five years ended 31 December 2018 &= 20184 12 A31 HILAFEFE

Results 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
E | 2014 20154 20166 2017 & 2018 £
(RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)
(ARET) (AREFR) (ARETF) (ARETRT) (AR%TR)
Revenue e 361,202 420,155 635,146 977,552 1,023,011
Cost of sales HERMA (240,491 (280,067) (478,408) (680,715) (740,906)
Gross profit EFH 120,711 140,088 156,738 296,837 282,105
Other income and gains I € 4,321 11,343 23,309 20,617 30,809
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAY (3,765) (7,615) (29,450) (6,394) (5,539)
Administrative expenses THEY (21,472) (61,002) (99,675) (115,121) (151,065)
Net impairment losses (recognised)/  (H3R) /EE&REE
reversal on financial assets BEBEFE (16,459) (13,785) (13,434) (29,472) 1,672
Change in fair value of financial EBEARATE; AEE
liabilities designated as at fair value HeRagEn A TES
through profit or loss - (6,343) - - -
Share of profits and losses of; JEMEATFE REE
Joint Ventures REDE 98) 243 2,148 2,645 2,895
Associates NG| (670) - - (111 @
Other expenses Hifx (1,035) (110) (10,675) (10,282) (1,641)
Finance costs B RR () (1572) (4,705) 9,512) (1,833)
Listing expenses Bpli=5a (3,980) (35,881) - - -
Profit before tax BREC AR 77,548 35,366 24,256 149,207 157,399
Income tax expenses FERREZ (21,650) (24,753) (27,608) (49,919) (50,449)
Profit (loss) for the year EEFE(ER) 55,898 10,613 (3,352) 99,288 106,950
Assets and liabilities 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
EEREE 20144 20154 20164 20174 2018
(RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)
(ANREF) (AREFL) (AREFRT) (ARETRT) (AR%ETR)
(Restated’)
(l2 &)
Non-current assets FRBEE 73,391 92,580 437,945 448,519 519,681
Current assets REAE 205,653 618,253 678,256 787,852 821,538
Total assets BEE 279,044 710,833 1,116,201 1,236,371 1,341,219
Current liabilities REAE 173,766 196,541 487,991 561,642 649,974
Non-current liabilities EREAE 9,639 12,555 184,764 128,036 85,295
Total liebilities BaME 183,405 209,096 672,755 689,678 735,269
Net assets EEFE 95,639 501,737 443,446 546,693 605,950
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